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Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”,
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading mid-to-high end

together

camera and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer in PRC.
The Group is primarily engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules, and centred on mid-to-high end
camera and fingerprint recognition module market for global
branded smart phone and tablet PC manufacturers. The Group
is one of the first few manufacturers in the PRC to use chip on
board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”) technologies and molding
on board (“MOB”) and molding on chip (“MOC”) technologies
in the manufacture of camera modules, as well as to produce
ultrathin camera modules with resolutions of 64 mega pixels and
above, dual/multiple camera modules, 3D modules, under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules and fingerprint recognition modules
with various technologies on a mass production scale. Currently,
the Group’s product mix covers ultra-thin camera modules ranging
from 2 mega pixels to 64 mega pixels, dual/multiple camera
modules, optical image stabilization (OIS) camera modules, 3D
camera modules, automotive camera modules, smart home
camera modules, capacitive fingerprint recognition modules and
optical under-screen fingerprint recognition modules. The Group
is committed to becoming an advanced intelligent vision company
and continuously enhancing ability building of three aspects of
intelligent vision products, being optical designs, computational
imaging and system integration. We believe, through resolute and
consistent promotion of the three strategies of building of Industrial
4.0 mass production infrastructure, technological innovation and
vertical integration of core components’ production, we will stand
out in the fast-growing camera module and fingerprint recognition
module markets and realise the mission of “to illuminate
machines”.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LFUBME

(In Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands, except per share amounts or (AT T £Z 258805 5 HEBHES))
otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-_HA=1+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF ZT-N\F ZT—tF —T—RE —ZT—AfF
Consolidated
X
Operating results REEE
Revenue LON 13,169,678 8,135,161 7,938,958 4,991,158 2,202,395
Gross profit EH 1,179,872 353,108 882,733 422,437 240,571
Finance costs BhE AR (52,811) (44,146) (16,912) (5,548) (9,948)
Profit before taxation BR AT F 606,901 1,330 509,515 214,587 114,701
Income tax BIREE (64,529) 13,069 (73,238) (23,832) (12,702)
Profit for the year FREF 542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999
Attributable to: 55
Shareholders of the Company KA &) ik & 542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999
Non-controlling interests S - - - -
542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999
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(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

Five-Year Financial Summary
LFUBHRE

(ANEBTT FRErESBHEBEI)

BEZE+=-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-Hh —Z-N\F —E—+tF —E-RF —T-A1fF
Consolidated
At
Basic earnings per share EAGRAF

(RMB cents) (ARES) 47.6 1.3 39.8 18.4 10.1
Diluted earnings per share BEeRAaN

(RMB cents (ARES) 47.2 1.3 38.9 18.1 9.8
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Non-current assets FERBEE 3,271,908 2,210,953 1,953,154 826,185 453,930
Current assets RBEE 7,363,293 4,228,658 4,147,096 3,694,144 1,536,731
Total assets EEHAE 10,635,201 6,439,611 6,100,250 4,620,329 1,990,661
Bank borrowings RATIER 1,328,785 1,178,241 1,078,119 335,432 142,164
Other liabilities HEi B & 6,439,461 3,157,935 2,876,474 2,616,932 630,940
Total liabilities BfEAE 7,768,246 4,336,176 3,954,593 2,952,364 773,104
Net assets EEFE 2,866,955 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557
Total equity DM 2,866,955 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557
Key Financial Ratio TEMBLLE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 9.0 4.3% 11.1% 8.5% 10.9%
Net profit margin (%) HBRIE (%) 4.1% 0.2% 5.5% 3.8% 4.6%
Gearing ratio (%) EAREEL R %)

(Note 1) —(Hfit) 48.2% 56.0% 50.2% 21.4% 11.7%
Rate of return on net asset (%) % & 7 [ % % (%) 18.9% 0.7% 20.3% 12.2% 8.4%
Current ratio (times) B & ()

(Note 2) (Hiit2) 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 2.0
Quick ratio (times) EE K (fF)

(Note 3) (Hi#3) 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.7
Net asset value per share ARBIBERFEA

attributable to equity EIHERFEE

shareholders of the Company 2.48 1.86 1.92 1.45 1.18
Price per share as at 31 +=-A=+—H

December (HKD) FRERK

(BRI 12.90 4.45 11.00 4.00 1.59
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) m&EX (M) 24.28 299.93 23.10 20.29 13.19
Market capitalization as at t-HA=t—8_

31 December (HKD thousand) mM1E (BT T) 14,931,440 5,036,164 12,271,567 4,327,084 1,634,447
Dividend per share BRBE.

(RMB cents) (ARED) 9.0 7.8 35
Dividend yield B S W 1.30% 0.90% 1.21% -
EBITDA (Note 5) B %RT)?%& .

B35 A K
(H7#25) 951,027 281,217 662,232 284,155 167,098
Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents the balance of bank borrowings and #7717 : BABELREHEZE HKHIER
related parties’ loans as of the end of the year/period divided by TEZMEEFERGERIAESR
total equity as of the end of the year/period. F RS 1258
Note 2: Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total — ffzt2: KRB ERIEHEE BRI EHE
current liabilities as of the end of the year/period. ERERUNREAERE-
Note 3:  Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories  ff;73 : FRENHRIEHEZE HRKN R E
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year/ EMREREFEBRIARESEER
period. 8o
Note 4:  Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares fifit4: TRAREEHZEZE HARAOKRETE
divided by earnings per share as of the end of the year/period. LA SIS %S o
Note 5:  EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) + f#35 - EBITDA BB AT FIHEBT)+ITE &
depreciation cost + amortization cost. FA+#HEER-
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Five-Year Financial Summary
hFMBHE
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Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the
sixth annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
since its listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, despite the ever-changing and unpredictable
global political and economic situations, there were still substantial
conflicts over various international issues such as trade
protectionism, geopolitics in the Middle East and competitive
monetary policy, but the governments of various countries seemed
to understand the logic of “either work together for mutual benefits
or fight each other with collective damage” as they resumed the
negotiation with pragmatic actions to reach common ground while
reserving differences in order to tackle the risks arising from the
gradual decline of global economy.

In such macro-environment, although the Chinese economy
remained stable in general, it was inevitably implicated. According
to the statistics published by the National Bureau of Statistics of
China on 28 February 2020, the gross domestic products (GDP)
of the PRC experienced a year-on-year increase of 6.1% in 2019,
representing a decrease in growth speed of approximately 0.5
percentage point as compared to that of 2018 and reaching a new
low for the past 29 years.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In the challenging operating environment, although there was a
negative year-on-year growth in sales volume of mobile phones
in China for consecutive quarters, however, according to the data
from certain independent research institution, Chinese phone
brands achieved a remarkable performance in the second half of
2019 and sales volume in the Chinese market had been stabilised
under the trend of dynamic online transaction and commercial
application of 5G. Meanwhile, in overseas market, Chinese phone
brands reaped an abundant harvest again. In emerging markets
such as India and Malaysia, the four top Chinese brands have
remained as the top 5 for local sales volume of phones for a
long time and in aggregate accounted for more than half of sales
volume in certain countries with increasing market share year by
year. Chinese phone brands had nearly one third of market share
even in some developed markets such as the European market.

Meanwhile, the importance attached by consumers for photo-
taking effects and privacy protection of smartphones as well
as the demand of Chinese smartphone brands for consistent
appearance of products facilitated the innovation of multiple
camera modules, 3D modules and optical under-glass fingerprint
recognition modules, which further enhanced the significance
of relevant products in smartphones and contributed to the
relatively outstanding business performance of the Group under a
changeable peripheral environment.

Looking back to the Year, the Group successfully implemented
three strategic measures: expansion of scale of sales, optimisation
of client structure and improvement of product mix, and set
a new record of monthly sales volume and monthly income in
the fourth quarter. Thanks to the trust and support from core
customers and the joint effort of all staff members, the Group has
achieved the three major development objectives as specified in
the annual results announcement for 2018 and the interim results
announcement for the year 2019, i.e.: (i) shipment of camera
modules in 2019 will increase by not less than 50% (30% as
originally set in the annual results announcement for the year
2018) year-on-year, of which the proportion of shipment of camera
modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above will account
for not less than 50%; (i) shipment of under-glass fingerprint
recognition modules in 2019 will account for not less than 40%
of the shipment of fingerprint recognition modules; and (jii) with
a constant demand from customers and the Group’s business
development, production capacity of camera modules will be
gradually expanded to not more than 50 million units per month by
the end of 2019.
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During the Year, the sales volume of camera module products
of the Group experienced a rapid growth as the sales volume
reached approximately 406.04 million units, representing an
increase of approximately 53.9% as compared to approximately
263.89 million units in 2018, in which, the sales volume of camera
modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above reached
approximately 218.44 million units, representing an increase of
approximately 90.4% as compared to approximately 114.72 million
units in 2018. For the fingerprint recognition module products
business, the Group focused on the product mix optimization and
the sales volume of it slightly decreased by approximately 5.2%
from approximately 107.55 million units of 2018 to approximately
101.95 million units of the Year. There were three major reasons
for the rapid growth in sales volume of camera module products:
(i) multiple camera module design continued to be the mainstream
choices of smartphones which further expanded the demands
for camera modules; (i) the customer structure of the Group
during the Year was further optimised and the Group’s positions
of suppliers in numerous core customers were promoted,
allowing the Group to obtain greater market share; and (i) the
production capacity of camera modules of the Group expanded
from approximately 35 million units per month at the end of last
year to approximately 50 million units per month at the end of the
Year (based on the historical standard of production efficiency
of camera modules with resolutions of 13 mega pixels) and the
automated production capacity was significantly enhanced,
indicating a substantial improvement of production capacity.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the Year, the product mix of the Group’s camera
module products and fingerprint recognition module products
was significantly optimised, in which: (i) the sales volume of
camera modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above
accounted for approximately 53.8% of the total sales (of which
camera module products with resolutions of 32 mega pixels
and above accounted for approximately 9.6%), representing a
growth of approximately 10.3 percentage points as compared
to approximately 43.5% in 2018, in which, the sales volume
accounted for approximately 59.5% in the second half of 2019,
representing a half-on-half increase of approximately 12.7
percentage points as compared to approximately 46.8% in the
first half of 2019 and a year-on-year increase of approximately
13.6 percentage points as compared to approximately 45.9%
in the second half of 2018; and (i) the sales volume of under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules accounted for approximately
49.3% of the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules,
representing an increase of approximately 37.5 percentage points
as compared to approximately 11.8% in 2018. The product mix of
the Group’s camera module products and fingerprint recognition
module products experienced a significant optimisation, which was
mainly due to the following reasons: (i) the upgrade of application
and function of camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules have always been one of the highly concerned functions
of smartphones of consumer, and core customers continue to
promote the upgrade of the specifications of camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules; and (i) the Group’s capability of
providing high-end camera modules and under-glass fingerprint
recognition modules have constantly received recognitions and
acquired absolute trust from the customers, which enhanced the
supply share of mid-to-high end products.
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During the Year, the core strategy of the Group’s vertical
integration has continued to deepen and has made good
progress. The Group’s investment in Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Newmax Technology”) (a company listed on the Taipei
Exchange in Taiwan, stock code: 3630) has initially demonstrated
results. After more than two years of sharing and consolidation
of resources and technologies, Newmax Technology made a
turnaround to profit in 2019 and the net loss attributable to
the shareholders of approximately NT$310,677,000 in 2018
was substantially improved to the net profit of approximately
NT$506,592,000 in 2019, contributing a net profit of approximately
RMB39,996,000 to the Group. In addition, to support the further
expansion of operating scale of Newmax Technology and its effort
to improve operating results, the Group actively participated in the
action of capital injection and shareholding expansion of Newmax
Technology during the Year which successfully raised a fund of
approximately NT$2.07 billion for Newmax Technology, providing
capital reserve for the expansion of production base of Newmax
Technology and enhancement of its research and development
capability and thereby laying a solid foundation for the continuous
and sound development of Newmax Technology.

In terms of technology, the Group and Newmax Technology
have realized comprehensive technical cooperation and resource
integration in optical under-glass fingerprint recognition modules
and 3D structured light modules, and thereby accelerated
introduction of projects from a number of customers. In the future,
we will focus on exploration of new projects, such as cooperation
on time of flight (ToF) module lens and other high resolution
RGB lens. In terms of cost control and customer resources,
we will further enhance customer loyalty by serving customers
with more cost-effective solutions by increasing procurement
ratios and sharing resources. In the future, both the Group and
Newmax Technology will display their respective advantages and
complement each other to jointly promote customer development,
capacity improvement, technical progress and services
enhancement, and strive to achieve win-win results for customers,
the Group and Newmax Technology.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Looking back to the Year, the sales revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB13,169,678,000, representing an
increase of approximately 61.9% as compared to approximately
RMB8,135,161,000 of last year. The growth in sales revenue
exceeded the growth in sales volume, mainly because the product
mix optimisation strategy which has been implementing by the
Group for years has gradually achieved results and the camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules both achieved
increase in average selling price. The average selling price of
camera modules during the Year was approximately RMB25.52,
representing an increase of approximately 6.9% as compared
to approximately RMB23.86 of last year, mainly because: (i) the
capabilities of research and development, production, sales and
delivery of the Group were significantly enhanced in general which
led to a promotion of the positioning in the supply chain of multiple
core customers and a further increase in the proportion of high-
end products; (ii) the proportion of sales volume of the Group’s
camera modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above
to the sales volume of camera module products increased by
approximately 10.3 percentage points to approximately 53.8%;
and (i) the specifications of camera modules for smartphone
were substantially improved in general and the average selling
price of certain high-end projects surged by multi-folds. The
average selling price of fingerprint recognition module products
was approximately RMB27.06, representing an increase of
approximately 58.2% as compared to approximately RMB17.10
of last year, primarily because the proportion of optical under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules with higher prices was greatly
increased and certain traditional capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules adopted a new design of side buttons, which enhanced
the difficulties in production and selling price.
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During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
9.0%, representing an increase of approximately 4.7 percentage
points from approximately 4.3% of last year. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) the production
capacity of the Group has recorded a substantial increase, whilst
the significant increase in sales volume of camera modules
maintained a higher utilisation rate of production capacity, resulting
in a lower marginal cost; (i) production automation upgrading
and transformation gradually shows the effect with the manpower
requirements for producing the same output significantly reduced,
resulting in a decrease in the proportion of labour costs; and (iii)
the significant rise in proportion of high-end products during the
Year enhanced the added value. However, the exchange rate of
RMB against US dollar fluctuated violently during the Year due to
trade disputes and other factors, which affected the gross profit
margin of the Group.

During the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its research
and development (“R&D”) on camera module products, and
unswervingly devoted its effort in three directions, namely new
materials, new processes and new products. The specifications
of the camera modules in terms of functions, performance and
miniaturization have been greatly improved. In respect of functions,
the ultra-high pixel single camera modules of 40 mega pixels, 48
mega pixels and 64 mega pixels, and the integrated triple camera
modules have been successively put into mass production,
which fully reflects that the Group’s technology precision in the
production of high-end modules has reached the leading level in
the industry. Meanwhile, the R&D team has completed the pre-
research and has a grasp of new technologies such as periscope
five-fold optical zoom modules, and ultra-macro imaging modules,
in order to make preparation for mass production in a short term.
With regard to performance, during the Year, the Group made
breakthroughs in the module assembling technology such as
motor driven by shape memory alloys (SMA), new optical image
stabiliser (OIS) and variable aperture, which marked a progress
towards mass production. As for miniaturization, a number of
self-developed and innovative miniaturized front and rear camera
module solutions have passed the inspections of customers, and
have been successively put into mass production, which are used
by customers in their flagship models with higher requirements of
product appearance and performance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group strived to seize the development opportunities
arising from the transformation of 2D to 3D in optical imaging.
After becoming the first module manufacturer in the PRC to
put 3D structured light modules into mass production in 2018,
mass production of time of flight (ToF) 3D modules was officially
commenced in the Year, which not only consummated the Group’s
technological reserve of 3D modules, but also consolidated the
Group’s leading position in terms of 3D modules technology. Other
than the increase in phone applications for virtual reality (VR),
augmented reality (AR) and mixed reality (MR), we also catered
for the demand of relevant products in internet of things (loT)
applications such as sweeping robots, unmanned supermarkets,
drones, security surveillance and so on. In the future, the Group
will enhance the technological development of time of flight (ToF)
3D modules, including the R&D of new projects such as long-wave
iToF and dToF.

During the Year, under-glass fingerprint recognition modules are
considered to be a major biometric verification device of high-end
smartphones, in which optical under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules were predominant and became the mainstream
technology development direction. The Group was one of the
leading manufacturers of optical under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules. The Group was qualified to be the main supplier for
some important models of numerous major phone brands in the
PRC and its business achieved lasting and satisfying development.
Looking ahead, the Group will strive to develop new generation
of products such as TFT-LCD optical under-glass fingerprint
recognition modules and large-area optical fingerprint recognition
modules, in order to prolong the leading position of the Group in
this field.

1 6 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

AEE 2 NINE K EKE H2DER3DH # &
BB #2201 BFNRBERNERSELEHE
DB RAMBATLER R AFEIRLERN
B EFRESRIEE (ToF) 3DRAE - < AL B 3D
MR BT BB R - EEAKENIDIRA
iy LRS- B F RN E B E R (VR)
EIR B IR (AR) KR A B3R (MR)E R #93E hnsh -
TRECE B A (oT)E R EL AR s i 23 A ~ SR A
Bm - EAM ROERFHBERNFR
R £ B 5 #E — 2R {L TR B BB (ToF)3DAR
BRI - B RIKBRITOF » dToF & #T 18
ER=EsisE

AEE - B TNEAGAIRAC BT 550 s
FEROETELEMBIERE EPAEARFTHE
AIEAEBEEDR KRBT RORMER A&
BAXENF MESEANBALRER L —
REETEIEFRRENESHRIRGE
HER ZHENPRNESRENER -REXR
Ko AEERHNFETFT-LCON BB T 45
BRI RAE - KEFR Y B AGER RAEH —
REM » BB S B 7 <RI B <R SE 3 fis



As for large-scale high-end manufacturing, the Group achieved
a significant progress in production automation upgrading and
transformation during the Year, the existing production lines
of the Kunshan production bases have undergone large-scale
transformation into InLine intelligent production lines, which greatly
reduced the manpower demand for production and significantly
improved the production efficiency and the first pass yield. The
new production lines adopted the construction standard of fully-
automated digital intelligent factory with extensive use of automatic
optical inspection equipment (AQI) to promote lean production and
significantly reduced the manpower demand to industry-leading
levels. Moreover, the Group continued to optimise the customer
service standard by directly connecting with the delivery system
of customers to promote the development of “one-click delivery”
system, which significantly enhanced the overall experience of
customers in terms of delivery efficiency and quality. Meanwhile,
the Group firmly advanced its customer-centric service strategy
and its key strategy of global resources allocation. Construction
of the first phase of the production base located in Greater
Noida in the capital circle of Uttar Pradesh, India, was preliminary
completed in the fourth quarter of the Year, and has been put into
mass production. In the future, the Group will be committed to
building the production base in India into a second manufacturing
centre outside of the Kunshan production base, thereby to provide
high-end quality products and fast-responding quality services to
our overseas customers.

Overall speaking, the development opportunities and challenges
coexist in the camera module and fingerprint recognition module
industry. On the one hand, the market competition was still
fierce in the process of increasing the industry concentration of
the camera module industry. On the other hand, the demand
for camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules is
still expected to grow steadily and product specifications are
also expected to constantly improve with the increasingly
broadening application areas, which brings good development
opportunities for the Group. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that only when constantly and deeply
promoting large-scale intelligent manufacturing, R&D of new
technology and vertical integration, firmly propelling the strategies
in platform, components as well as system integration, adhering
to a customer-centric service strategy, firmly promoting lean
management, the Group will be able to maintain its relatively
long-term competitiveness and provide high-end and high quality
products and quick response services for our general customers,
and ultimately strive to achieve the vision of the Group as “to
illuminate machines”.
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PROSPECTS

The eventful year of 2019 finally came to an end after a series of
major events, including the celebration of the 70th anniversary of
the founding of the People’s Republic of China, Sino-US trade
dispute, and Brexit negotiations. The year of 2020 began in a
political atmosphere where China and the United States were
seeking common ground while shelving differences with ongoing
negotiations. The Directors believe that the macroeconomic
situation remains challenging in 2020. On the one hand, the
growing prevalence of trade protectionism and geopolitical
relations may cause great uncertainties in global economic growth;
on the other hand, the novel coronavirus pneumonia raging round
the globe in early 2020 would pose greater challenges to the
growth of global economy. However, the Directors still believe that
5G is one of the definite directions for global technological and
economic development, and the intelligent mobile communication
terminal is an important carrier for further commercialisation of
5G and popularisation of loT, thereby there are still favourable
opportunities and broad prospects for the development of the
intelligent mobile communication terminal industry. The demand
of consumers for purchasing or replacing their mobile phones
may be delayed but will not be vanished. Intelligent vision
systematic products are still one of the highlights that consumers
are most concerned about when purchasing the intelligent
mobile communication terminal. Accordingly, the Directors
remain confident in the long-term development prospects of the
intelligent visual industry, and will build technological edges by
continuously advancing the R&D of new materials, new processes
and new products; to further improve profitability by optimising
customer structure and product mix; to strive to improve
production efficiency and reduce manufacturing costs by further
strengthening production automation and endeavouring to move
towards intelligent production; to step up risk-aversion capability
by enhancing internal control management; and to strengthen the
systematisation capability of intelligent vision products by further
promoting the vertical integration of key components. Altogether,
it would dedicate to enhancing the core competitiveness of
the Group, better cope with potential fluctuations and seize
opportunities for the industry development in 2020.

1 8 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

AIREE

MEAREN T - N FEREL B REE
tTRFER PXB UL  REBBHH
FRINBREMHEENTHE  — T _TFEP
EMBERFEFR HEGEOBORSE T
W EERE T _TFNRELBELZNA
FEmkE - —HE HRBITHNEZRETR
M EBORBAR A BT G2 REEIE RE R
RAOTEEN: m—hE —ZE_FF0H
BERESMARERIRESE 2 IREEE
RHEBRERHE - 1B EFARRGE
ERMEMEERROEEEIR.Z— M
BB BER IR EGHE — PR E(LMIoTHE
EHEZREE  FAUEEBHBERHITED
RABERNBERESMERNERAS B
BERERERTFRNFRIAHEETE
'R MEERBRFCERMDARBHEEER
BERERHBERRMREINSEZ —
b BEFEHEEEABTENRPERAMNRIDA
EOBE YHEEBBHEERME HTE
MFEMMERETRMES BBRLEEP
RN EEmGERIGE — SRR T
BEE—TMBEEBS T L NAEEN
HEBERS NIRRT EEREMFEEEENX
ABBIRAZEERRENHRREREE N
BRE-—SHEROTHMHEERIKEAS
BICERERBERMMNARGLEEN  EMB HIE
FEENZOEBR N R -2 -TF
R BE IR T B R B M ATETT R B R 0
iB o



The Directors remain unswerving in continuously promoting the
development of intelligent visual system products, and cautiously
optimistic about the business development of the camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules in the coming year, and believe
that:

(i) Camera modules is one of the end-consumers’ most
concerned smartphone components, which shows a
continuous rising trend in the proportion of material cost
of smart terminals. The triple-camera or multiple camera
module design has become the standard configuration
of high-end smart terminals, and the specifications and
functions implemented are even more innovative, which
greatly enriches the user experience. Looking forward to
2020, with the backdrop of the popularity of 5G networks
and the expansion of broadband, multiple breakthroughs
in camera functions and performance are likely to occur,
which will enhance the technical threshold of camera
modules. The Group expects that the market demand
for camera modules will continue to grow steadily. The
pixel specifications of camera modules have continued to
improve, and at the same time, the technical requirements
for optical image stabilisation, large aperture, ultra wide
angle and others have continued to rise, which will bring
favourable conditions for the development of the Group.

(i) The customer mix of the Group has been significantly
optimised compared with the past. The Group has
established comprehensive cooperative relations with
leading Chinese mobile phone brands and has gained more
market share. Meanwhile, the Group vigorously promotes
the entry of overseas customers using the Android system
to effectively reduce the risk of excessive customer
concentration. The Group will be committed to improving
the penetration of related customer and optimising the
product mix supplied to such customer. The future business
growth can be more stably based on the explicit long-term
trend of the pursuit for upgrade on image effects by the
mobile terminal, which will facilitate the Group in giving a
better play through its accumulated reserves of capacity,
technology, talents and capital.
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(i)

The popularity of the under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules in mobile phones is constantly increasing, and it
gradually develops a complementary rather than exclusive
relationship with the face recognition system, bringing
positive effects on the development of the fingerprint
recognition industry. At the same time, the cost of organic
light-emitting diode (OLED) screens is expected to decrease
and the production capacity is expected to further expand;
the technology of using optical under-glass fingerprint
recognition modules under TFT-LCD screens is expected
to be more mature; and the technology of the ultra-thin
and large-size optical under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules is also more mature, all of them are expected
to be favorable for the accelerated penetration of optical
under-glass fingerprint modules.

Camera modules are one of the most important human-
machinery interactive interfaces during the IoT era. With
the popularity of 5G networks, the popularisation of AR/
VR is expected to accelerate significantly, and it will bring
more application scenarios to 3D modules and systems
and accelerate the progress of 3D modules becoming the
standard configuration of high-end mobile phones. As the
first 3D structured light modules manufacturer with mass
production in China, the Group has accumulated abundant
technical reserves and the ToF plans have been officially
mass-produced in the Year. With this technical foundation
and preparation, the Group is expected to seize this new
opportunity.

It has become the common development goal of domestic
and overseas vehicle brands to improve driving safety
and the operation experience of users through Advanced
Driver Assistance System (ADAS), Surround View, In-
cabin Monitoring and other intelligent driving systems,
which will promote application increase and specification
improvement of vehicle camera modules. In 2019, the
Group successfully obtained the Tier 2 supplier qualification
of various well-known domestic automobile brands. It
expects to obtain specific project cooperations in 2020 and
continue to move forward in the vehicle vision system.

20 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

(i)

B T HEAGE AR AR F RN E REER
B fe Tt - BT R R A B R K
MBI R - RIRSGRITTR
BRHRBEREEAOYR - R BE
T —HREBOLED)F MK AFTET
f& L ERE B L2HE — IR A TFT-LCD
FRETERAZAF THEXBNESR
R A B INACH - B R AR
2305 T 48 808 R R 45 # B g b A0
R A ERNBAFE THESUEAR
DR I2 5 BLUE A PRI -

BEBASHRYBESREENAR
ERREREZ — HEEGHME M E &
T ARNVRRYE B BB INR - I ¥
BDEAMERHREZHEMIZ R
INRSDIEAK RS i T HIRERE D
EE - AEBERBNEREEIDER
NRRENRERER CRETEER
RiEE ToF A RBRAFALERE
E-REURMERMERET $HEEE
UL S -

BB B) R FT(ADAS) - IRAR - A
EREEREREAS BABNLE
M- REAPRIEERS CRAER
SMREmEMARERB R WHEB
R G IRIE A R IR R AR AR TT o
AEER-_FT-NERIBEERNZ
KEB AEmEN Tier2f R EHE -
ER-_ZF_TFMFABEBANE R
EHRBERREBEBI A -



The Group will adhere to the vision of “to illuminate machines”
and strengthen its capacity development in three aspects, namely
optical design, computing vision and system integration, continue
to enhance the R&D of new materials, new processes and
new products and improve its large-scale automated precision
manufacturing capability, and push forward the construction and
production expansion of the production base in India, proactively
promoting lean management, and proactively carry out marketing
activities to enhance its customer relationship, aggressively
expand overseas renowned smartphone branded customers and
continuously enhance the core competitiveness of the Group.
The Group will focus on developing high pixels camera modules,
multiple camera modules, optical image stabilisation modules,
ToF modules, periscopic camera modules, optical under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules in multiple forms and other high-
end products, provide assistance to Newmax Technology, our
associate, in the development of smartphone camera module
lens, 3D module lens and under-glass fingerprint recognition
module lens, with an effort to strengthen the technical cooperation
and resource integration between camera modules and key
components such as lens, at the same time striving to achieve a
further breakthrough in the application of camera modules in non-
mobile-phone sector.

The Group will endeavour to achieve the following objectives in
2020: (i) the shipment of camera modules in 2020 will increase
by not less than 20% year-on-year comparing with that of the
previous year, of which the proportion of shipment of camera
modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above will account
for not less than 60%, whereas the proportion of shipment of
camera modules with resolutions of 32 mega pixels and above
will account for not less than 25%; and (ii) continuously review the
demand from customers and the Group’s business development,
production capacity of camera modules will be gradually expanded
to not less than 60 million units per month by the end of 2020,
the production capacity statistics of which is statistically based
on the historical standard production efficiency of products with
resolutions of 13 mega pixels.

The Directors are confident in leading the Group to embrace the
challenges, and make further efforts to achieve good development
and strive to create greater value for the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).
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AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, always considered the provision
of good personal experience for customers as our operation
direction and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’
needs in product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product
quality and technology innovation, and gained high recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.

In January 2019, Kunshan Q Technology Limited (“Kunshan QT
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was awarded
the “Top Ten Intelligence Production Transformation Enterprise and
Top Economies of Scale Production Enterprise in Kunshan City for
the Year 2018” granted by the People’s Government of Kunshan
City;

In April 2019, Kunshan QT China won the “Annual Strategic
Cooperation Award” of 2018 granted by Chino-E Communication
(FRE5@E) , a world-renowned smartphone manufacturer;

In September 2019, Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman of the
Company, was awarded the “Outstanding Contribution Award” in
recognition of his outstanding contribution towards the 30 years
development of Kunshan City since its evacuation from a county
to a city, and he is one of the forty representatives who won such
honour;

In November 2019, Kunshan QT China won the “Outstanding
Partner Award” of 2019 granted by Xiaomi Communication Co.,
Ltd. (/KRB ABR A F), a world-renowned smartphone
brand;

In November 2019, Kunshan QT China won the “Global Best
Partner Award” of 2019 granted by ZTE Corporation, a world-
renowned smartphone brand;

In December 2019, Kunshan QT China was awarded the
“Excellent Quality Award” of 2019 granted by Huaqin Telecom
Technology Limited Company (#E &) @M AR A F) , a world-
renowned smartphone manufacturer;
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In December 2019, Kunshan QT China received the “Outstanding
Supplier Award” of 2019 granted by Lenovo, a world-renowned
smartphone brand;

In December 2019, Kunshan QT China won the “Best Quality
Supplier Award” and “Best Technical Support Award” of 2019
granted by Nubia Technology Limited (235t T AR AF]), a
world-renowned smartphone brand; and

In January 2020, Mr. Fan Fugiang (the chief financial officer of the
Company) and Mr. So Yung Pang (the director of investor relations)
won the “Best CFO Award” and the “Best IR Award”, respectively,
at the 4th Session of Golden Hong Kong Stock Annual Award
Ceremony.

He Ningning
Chairman

Hong Kong
13 April 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB13,169,678,000, representing an increase of approximately
61.9% as compared with approximately RMB8,135,161,000 in
2018. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to: (i) as
benefited from the successful results of the Group’s expansion
strategy, the sales volume of camera module products for the
Year achieved a significant increase of approximately 53.9%
as compared with that of last year; (i) by virtue of the gradual
success of the Group’s strategy of optimising the product mix
of camera modules, the proportion of shipment of camera
module products with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above
reached approximately 53.8%, which resulted in a steady
increase in average selling price of camera module products
by approximately 6.9% year-on-year and hence a year-on-year
growth of approximately 65.2% in the sales revenue of camera
module products; and (i) although the sales volume of fingerprint
recognition module products of the Group for the Year decreased
by approximately 5.2% year-on-year, the average selling price of
fingerprint recognition module products increased significantly by
approximately 58.2% year-on-year due to the obvious product
mix optimisation, so that the sales revenue from fingerprint
recognition module products still increased by approximately
50.6% to approximately RMB2,758,860,000 from approximately
RMB1,832,022,000 of last year.

Cost of sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB11,989,806,000, representing an increase of approximately
54.1% as compared with approximately RMB7,782,053,000 of
2018. The increase in the cost of sales was mainly attributable
to: (i) the increase in raw material cost by approximately
63.5% as compared with that of last year due to sales scale
expansion; and (i) the depreciation expenses arisen from the
production plants and equipment as a result of the investment
in capacity expansion increased by approximately 32.0% to
approximately RMB244,549,000 as compared with approximately
RMB185,264,000 of 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB1,179,872,000 (2018: approximately RMB353,108,000),
representing an increase of approximately 234.1% as compared
with that of the year 2018, while the gross profit margin was
approximately 9.0% (2018: approximately 4.3%). The significant
increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) the
production capacity of the Group has recorded a substantial
increase, whilst the significant increase in sales volume of camera
modules maintained a higher utilisation rate of production capacity,
resulting in a lower marginal cost; the proportion of depreciation of
production plants and equipment to sales revenue for the Year was
approximately 1.9%, representing a decrease of approximately 0.4
percentage point as compared with approximately 2.3% in 2018;
(i) production automation upgrading and transformation gradually
shows the effect with the manpower requirements for producing
the same output significantly reduced, resulting in a decrease in
the proportion of labour costs; the proportion of direct labour costs
to sales revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately
3.4%, representing a decrease of approximately 2.1 percentage
points as compared with approximately 5.5% in 2018; and (iii) the
significant rise in proportion of high-end products during the Year
enhanced the added value. However, the exchange rate of RMB
against US dollar fluctuated violently during the Year due to trade
disputes and other factors, which affected the gross profit margin
of the Group.

Other revenue

For the Year, other revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB43,013,000, representing a decrease of approximately 67.7%
as compared with approximately RMB133,113,000 of 2018. The
decrease in other revenue was mainly attributable to: (i) subsidies
or incentives received by the Group that were granted by local
governments at different levels during the Year were approximately
RMB28,986,000, representing a decrease of approximately 72.1%
as compared with approximately RMB103,908,000 of 2018;
and (i) the interest income during the Year was approximately
RMB13,911,000, representing a decrease of approximately 52.1%
as compared with approximately RMB29,058,000 of 2018.
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Other net loss

For the Year, the Group recorded other net loss of approximately
RMB63,839,000, representing an increase of approximately 27.1%
as compared with other net loss of approximately RMB50,223,000
in 2018. Such other net loss was mainly attributable to: (i) loss
on disposal of assets was approximately RMB17,514,000
(2018: approximately RMB15,687,000); (ii) net exchange
loss of approximately RMB25,373,000 (2018: approximately
RMB44,613,000) due to the depreciation in exchange rates of
RMB against US dollar during the Year; (i) loss on impairment of
machinery was approximately RMB10,587,000 (2018: Nil); and
(iv) a net realised and unrealised loss on foreign currency forward
contracts was approximately RMB501,000 (2018: a net gain of
approximately RMB12,418,000).

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB14,946,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 19.5% as compared with approximately
RMB18,562,000 of 2018. The proportion of selling and distribution
expenses to turnover was approximately 0.1%, representing a
decrease of approximately 0.1 percentage point as compared
with approximately 0.2% of 2018. The decrease in selling and
distribution expenses was mainly attributable to the stable
customer relationships and the Group’s endeavour on cost saving,
thus the express costs in relation to the sales activities were
effectively reduced.

Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, the total administrative and other operating expenses
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB128,140,000,
representing an increase of approximately 57.8% as compared
with approximately RMB81,201,000 in 2018. The increase
in administrative and other operating expenses was mainly
attributable to: (i) an increase of approximately 80.1% in staff
salaries and labour expenses from approximately RMB28,219,000
of last year to approximately RMB50,828,000 resulting from
increase in number of staff and average salary; and (ii) increase
in other expense such as bank charges, tax surcharge and
maintenance expense due to the business expansion during the
Year.
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R&D expenses

For the Year, the total R&D expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB396,244,000, representing an increase
of approximately 48.9% as compared with approximately
RMB266,198,000 in 2018. The R&D expenses for the Year were
mainly utilised in the Group’s continuous R&D investments in
new products and new processes, so as to allow the Group to
develop camera module products with higher pixels, multiple
camera module products with different application functions,
camera module products with smaller size, 3D module products,
camera module products applied in automotive and loT areas,
side-mounted fingerprint recognition module products and optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition module products, as well as
optimise and enhance the standards of production automation.

Finance costs

For the Year, the finance costs of the Group was approximately
RMB52,811,000, representing an increase of approximately 19.6%
as compared with approximately RMB44,146,000 of 2018. The
increase in finance costs was mainly attributable to the increase in
bank borrowing balance of the Group in the Year in order to fulfill
the requirements for production and operation expansion.

Share of profit of an associate

For the Year, Newmax Technology, an associate of the Company,
recorded a profit. The share of profit of an associate attributable
to the Company was approximately RMB39,996,000, while the
share of loss of an associate for the year 2018 was approximately
RMB24,561,000.

Income tax expenses

For the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB64,529,000, while the income tax expenses
for 2018 was approximately RMB-13,069,000, which was
mainly attributable to the profit before taxation of approximately
RMB606,901,000 recorded by the Group in the Year.

SRR e

MEER

AEE AEENAEBABEORARE
396,244,000t MZZE—NFHHARE
266,198,0007T # 1N 4948.9% ° 7 F £ fff 3% &
REZARAEEHTERMNFTIENTE
WEEA - KEMEAEEEAREESBREREN
BEGEBEER ETRERNENSEEE
REER RIENEEHBREEREER
SDIEMEER AN REHEIoTEEEEE
RaER B IBAGEHIERE R RSN
BETENFBNEAERS UREBLCRALE
EEM S

BB A

AEE AEBNBREXNADAEARKE
52,811,000t R Z_ZE— \FHHARE
44,146,0007C 18 hN#719.6% @ BhE Ak A8 #4241
TEHRAMEEEEERBEREACZEE
EERRAFENRITERBBEBEM LA

FE A B & 1 B

REE  RATH— KSR RIFER G
B AQFELEEAREMNOAEARKE
39,996,0007T ' M —F — \F R BEMLEZQ
AIE 1B A A R #24,561,0007T °

FrEBmMx

AEE AEBNASHERANAARK
64,529,0007T ' T —ZE— \FEWREHERLD
BARME-13,069,000C FERHANAFE
RE BERFBR T ANE T 49 A R #606,901,000
Tt

2019FF# EHiE (£E) ERAF 27



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Profit for the Year

Based on the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the Year
was approximately RMB542,372,000 (2018: approximately
RMB14,399,000), representing an increase of approximately
3,666.7% as compared with that of the year 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB1,328,785,000. It represents an increase
of approximately 12.8% from approximately RMB1,178,241,000
as at 31 December 2018. Among the borrowings, short-term
borrowings were approximately RMB1,269,548,000 whereas long-
term borrowings were approximately RMB59,237,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and/or USD. The cash flow overview of the
Group in the Year and 2018 was set out as follows:
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As of 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents of the AEBBE_T-ALF+_A=1t—HHN

Group amounted to approximately RMB411,517,000, representing
an increase of approximately RMB311,597,000 from approximately
RMB99,920,000 as at 31 December 2018. The increase in cash
and cash equivalents was mainly attributable to the significant
profit growth of the Group for the Year as compared with that of
last year and the record of a net cash inflow.
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Operating activities

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities amounted
to approximately RMB2,399,551,000 in the Year, while the net
cash outflow of operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB172,505,000 in 2018. The Group’s cash flow from its
operating activities recorded a net inflow, which was mainly
attributable to:
Year significantly increased from approximately 4.3% in 2018

(i) the gross profit margin of the Group for the
to approximately 9.0%; (i) the operation scale of the Group
has continued to expand, and with the strong support from
the suppliers, both the amount and the proportion of the bill
settlement of the payments due from the suppliers increased
substantially, resulting in the significant increase of trade
and other payables of approximately RMB2,873,230,000
from approximately RMB3,061,432,000 in the end of 2018
to approximately RMB5,934,662,000 in the end of the Year;
meanwhile, with the good cooperation maintained with its
customers, the turnover days of accounts receivable in the
Year was approximately 109 days, representing a decrease of
approximately 4 days as compared with approximately 113 days
of 2018; as of 31 December 2019, trade and other receivables
was approximately RMB4,919,289,000,
increase of approximately RMB1,887,922,000 as compared with
approximately RMB3,031,367,000 as of 31 December 2018, in
which the increase amount is less than that of trade and other

representing an

payables; and (iii) amount due to suppliers of RMB1,221,331,000
(2018: approximately RMB436,411,000) of the Group was directly
settled by the bank through import trade loan financing during the
Year, which was excluded from the cash outflow from operating
activities and will be included in the cash outflow from financing
activities upon the trade loan is due and repaid.

Investment activities

The net cash outflow arising from the investment activities of the
Group in the Year amounted to approximately RMB1,271,487,000,
which was mainly attributable to: (i) the expenses for plant
expansion and purchasing equipment amounted to approximately
RMB1,156,255,000; and (i) the payment for the investment in

Newmax Technology of approximately RMB155,799,000.
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Financing activities

The net cash outflow used in the financing activities of the
Group in the Year amounted to approximately RMB816,739,000,
which was mainly attributable to the cash outflow for repaying
bank borrowings of approximately RMB3,008,131,000
deducted by: (i) the inflow of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB1,921,727,000; (ii) the subscription amount of approximately
RMB39,784,000 received from employees for the subscription
of ordinary shares of the Company upon exercising their share
options in accordance with the share option scheme of the
Company; and (iii) net proceeds amounting to approximately
RMB182,155,000 from the completion of placing of 15 million
existing ordinary shares on 30 December 2019.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019, as
defined by the balance of bank borrowings and lease liabilities
divided by total equity at the end of the Year, was approximately
48.2%, representing a decrease of approximately 7.8 percentage
points from approximately 56.0% as at 31 December 2018, which
was mainly attributable to: the recorded profit of the Group for
the Year of approximately RMB542,372,000 and the net proceed
from the completion of the placing of 15 million existing ordinary
shares amounted to approximately RMB182,155,000, resulting in
the increase of net assets for the end of the Year of approximately
RMB763,520,000 as compared with that of the end of the year
2018.
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Treasury policies

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and
was amended by the risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company on 24 March 2016,
the details of which were disclosed under the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of the 2016 annual report.
The Board, the Risk Management Committee of the Company
and the staff at the relevant positions always remain alert to the
performance and risk assessment of the wealth management
products so as to ensure that the wealth management operation
does not pose excessive risk to the principal amount. At the same
time, the Company also pays close attention to the liquidity and
debt asset position of the Group in order to ensure the sufficiency
of its working capital and maintain the debt asset ratio at a
reasonable level.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year ended
31 December 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

On 20 August 2019, Taiwan Q Technology Limited (“Taiwan
QT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed
the participation in the capital injection of the associated
company, Newmax Technology. A total of 8,321,701 new shares,
representing approximately 4.5% of the total number of issued
ordinary shares of Newmax Technology as enlarged after the
completion of the capital injection, has been allotted and issued to
Taiwan QT at the price of NT$82.8 per share. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2019,
12 July 2019 and 20 August 2019 respectively.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the assets pledged by the Group
included bank deposits, shares of an associate, trade receivables
and bills receivables of approximately RMB478,632,000 (31
December 2018: approximately RMB462,174,000), which were
used as guarantee for bank borrowings and bank guarantee
letters.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of employees
3,745 (excluding staff under labour service agreements and
internship agreements) (as at 31 December 2018: 2,874).
The Group is committed to providing all staff with fair working
environment, providing newly recruited staff with induction
training and job technical counseling to help them to adapt
to job requirements quickly, providing all staff with clear job
responsibilities guidelines and for employees at different positions
with on-the-job training together with other training programmes
to help improving their skills and knowledge, and strived to
provide all staff with competitive remuneration packages. For the
Year, the remuneration of the employees (including staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements) of the
Group was approximately RMB725,391,000 (2018: approximately
RMB623,001,000). Apart from basic salary, the package also
includes performance bonus, medical insurance and provident
fund (staff under labour service agreements and internship
agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations of
the PRC).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, the Company has granted a total of 71,682,000 share
options to its staff on 26 October 2016, 9 June 2017, 7 December
2018 and 21 June 2019 respectively pursuant to a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted on 13 November
2014, with specific details as follows:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options to 165 staff (including two
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu
Sanmu) in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, and
grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2018 onwards upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
26 October 2016 for details). During the Year, the Company
has accepted the applications from 131 staff (including
two executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu
Sanmu) and issued a total of 9,808,200 ordinary shares
at the exercise price of HK$4.13 per share and total
consideration received was approximately HK$40,508,000.
A total of 1,066,800 options granted on 26 October 2016
lapsed as a result of the resignations of 8 staff during
the Year, and a total of 9,616,200 share options were
outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of
8,083,000 share options to 48 staff (none of the grantees
are Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of their respective associates)
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, and the
grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2018 onwards upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
9 June 2017 for details). During the Year, the Company
has accepted the applications from 21 staff and issued
a total of 945,600 ordinary shares at the exercise price
of HK$6.22 per share and total consideration received
was approximately HK$5,882,000. A total of 400,000
options granted on 9 June 2017 lapsed as a result of
the resignations of 2 staff during the Year, and a total
of 945,600 share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2019.
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EEENWED N

(i)

(iv)

On 7 December 2018, the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options to 83 staff (none of the grantees
are Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of their respective associates)
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, and the
grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2020 onwards upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
7 December 2018 for details).
were exercised during the Year; and a total of 1,624,000

None of such options

options granted on 7 December 2018 lapsed as a result
of the resignations of 13 staff during the Year. A total
of 11,096,000 share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2019.

In addition, on 21 June 2019, the Company granted a
total of 11,454,000 share options to 68 staff (none of
the grantees are Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates) in accordance with the Share Option Scheme,
and the grantees may apply to exercise the share options
by phases from 1 April 2021 onwards upon fulfilling
certain conditions (please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 21 June 2019 for details).
such options were exercised during the Year; and a total
of 4,680,000 options granted on 21 June 2019 lapsed as
a result of the resignations of 13 staff during the Year. A

None of

total of 6,774,000 share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily due to certain
receivables, payables, cash balances and loans that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB arising from
the operating activities such as bank borrowings, product sales
and purchase of raw materials. The Group is also exposed to
currency risk from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Year, the Group recorded an
exchange loss of approximately RMB25,373,000 as the sales
income of the Group was still mainly settled in RMB but various
raw materials for production and some equipment for production
were purchased from overseas and settled in USD, while there was
a considerable fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB against
USD during the Year with the central parity dropping from 6.8632
at the beginning of the Year to 6.9762 at the end of the Year,
representing a depreciation of approximately 1.6%. As affected
by multiple factors such as politics, economic, and supply and
demand, the trend of RMB against USD in the future is subject to
great uncertainties. It is difficult to adjust the business mode of the
Group in the short run. Therefore, the profit or loss of the Group
may still be affected by exchange rate fluctuation in the future.
The Group will, on one hand, strive to strengthen the expansion
of overseas business continuously to increase USD income; on
the other hand, the Group will coordinate actively with suppliers
receiving settlement in USD to seek the consent of certain
suppliers to purchase domestically or arrange settlement in RMB,
so as to reduce the demand for USD. Meanwhile, the Group will
enhance monitoring of the exchange rate fluctuation on a daily
basis, adjust the proportion of USD deposits to total deposits
balance and the proportion of USD loans to total loans balance
from time to time with reference to the analysis of exchange
rates fluctuation trend, and fix the future foreign exchange
costs by properly using currency derivative instruments such as
foreign exchange forwards and options, so as to strengthen the
management of foreign exchange risks and strive to reduce foreign
exchange loss. However, the Group is also clearly aware that there
are many factors affecting exchange rates, and the mechanism
to determine exchange rate is complicated and fickle, thus it is
difficult to estimate its trend. Therefore, the profit or loss of the
Group may still be affected by exchange rate fluctuation.
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BEEERWED T

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
were initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by
global offering. The net proceeds from the above global offering
was approximately HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant
listing expenses). As at 31 December 2019, the fund raised was
fully utilised in accordance with the intended use of the global
offering.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the placing
of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each under a
general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholder to
two placees, namely Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and The
People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent
of the Company and its connected persons, at the placing price
of HK$3.90 per placing share. The net proceeds from the above
placing was approximately HK$154,428,000, after deducting
the related placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses. As at 31 December 2019, the fund raised was fully
utilised. The capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use
of the net proceeds of the placing.

On 29 December 2017, the Company completed the placing of
20,000,000 new ordinary shares under a general mandate granted
to the Directors by the Shareholders to not less than six placees,
being professional, institutional and/or other investors, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons, at the placing price of
HK$10.80 per placing share. The net proceeds from the above
placing was approximately HK$214,218,000, after deducting
the related placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses. As at 31 December 2019, the fund raised was fully
utilised. The capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use
of the net proceeds of the placing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 23 December 2019, the Company completed the placing of
15,000,000 existing shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the placing
price of HK$13.68 per each placing share (the “Placing”) to
not less than six placees (who were professional investors and
whose respective ultimate beneficial owners were (a) independent
of, and not connected with, the Company and its connected
person; and (b) independent of, and are not acting in concert
with, Q Technology Investment Inc. (LK E B R 2 ) (“QT
Investment”) and persons acting in concert with QT Investment.
The aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares was
HK$150,000 based on the par value of HK$0.01 per share and
the market value was HK$211,500,000 based on the closing price
of HK$14.10 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
signing date of the placing agreement (i.e. 18 December 2019). On
30 December 2019, the Company allotted and issued 15,000,000
new shares to QT Investment, the controlling shareholder of
the Company (the “Subscription”). Upon the completion of the
Placing and Subscription, the net proceeds obtained by the
Company was approximately HK$203,300,000, after deducting all
costs and expenses incurred by QT Investment in connection with
the Placing and Subscription and to be borne by the Company,
and other expenses incurred by the Company which included the
placing agent’s commission, the stamp duty, the Stock Exchange
trading fee and the SFC transaction levy. The net price of each
share issued was approximately HK$13.55. In view of the Group’s
intensified capital requirement for the R&D expenditure on multiple
camera and other high-end camera modules products, the cost
for production capacity expansion and the need of working capital,
the Directors consider that the Placing can help to raise additional
funds to strengthen the financial position. The Directors are of
the view that the Placing and Subscription will also broaden the
shareholder base and the capital base of the Company and is
helpful to the continuous growth and sustainable development of
the Group. As of 31 December 2019, none of the funds raised has
been utilised. The remaining funds raised will be utilised in the first
half of 2020, and the capital utilisation will be consistent with the
intended use of net proceeds from the Placing. It is expected that:
() approximately HK$162.6 million, representing approximately
80% of the net proceeds from the Subscription, will be used as
capital expenditure required for production capacity expansion for
camera modules by the first half of 2020; and (i) approximately
HK$40.7 million, representing approximately 20% of the net
proceeds from the Subscription, will be used for R&D by the first
half of 2020.
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EEENWEDH
DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 of approximately RMB9.0 cents
(equivalent to HKD10.0 cents) per share (final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018: Nil) to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 10 June 2020. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company to be held on 22 May 2020, the proposed
final dividend is expected to be paid on or around Monday, 22
June 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the AGM to
be held on 22 May 2020, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 19 May 2020 to 22 May 2020 (both days
inclusive). All transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later

than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2020.

17th Floor, Hopewell

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 8 June 2020 to 10 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
June 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has strictly complied with the applicable environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where the
respective members of the Group are located. During the Year,
the Group had continued to revise, improve and implement a
number of internal rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of
Wastewater Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management
Regulations and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures, and
to further perfect the wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse
gas treatment system in order to strengthen its management
and control in production and domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the wastewater discharge is in compliance with statutory
requirements, and clarified the ranges, procedure and instrument
of collecting the data of greenhouse gas for the effective
management of greenhouse gas of the Group in the long run and
prepared for reducing carbon emissions. As the same time, the
Group had also amended and implemented certain regulations
and measures including improving the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drills with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China successfully obtained the compliance certificate in terms
of environmental protection granted by Administration of Work
Safety and Environmental Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial
Development Park.

Particulars of the environmental protection management of
the Company are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEB ZBEFS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({f2888) (“Mr. He”), aged 49, was appointed as
a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. He has been the chairman
of the Board and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company since 13 November
2014. He is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning
and formulation of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He
founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007 and has more than
20 years of experience in the electrical and electronic industries.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. (R =£ &
HAEPR A RF)), a manufacturer of electronic components, from
July 1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for
sales and delivery management. In November 2000 and June
2004, Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (&R
s K AR A 7)) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in
agency sales of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom
Equipment Co., Ltd. ORI AN EZEBRERMNEEESRAF)
(“Shenzhen CK”), a company principally engaged in the research,
development and sales of complete handsets components, and
has been the chairman of Surewheel and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He
is primarily responsible for the strategic planning. In December
2004, Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited ( 78 7] & {= 5 fi a% #85
(AR) R AT (“Heyuan CK”), a company principally engaged
in the sales and manufacturing of complete handsets and handset
components and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan
CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of
Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director and the sole shareholder
of QT Investment, a controlling shareholder of the Company as at
the date of this report. Mr. He received his bachelor’'s degree in
science, majoring in weather dynamic, from the Peking University
in July 1992 and his master’'s degree of business administration
from the University of California in March 2002. Mr. He is also
the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive Director
and chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer’) of the
Company.
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EERGREEB2EBEFE

Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China)
Inc. (formerly known as “CK Telecom (Great China) Inc.”), Kunshan
Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT Hong Kong”),
Kunshan QT China and Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India)
Private Limited (“India QT”), each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Ef@3&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 48, was
appointed as a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. Wang was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8
July 2016 and is primarily responsible for operation and business
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
served as a supervisor of the quality assurance department of SAE
Magnetics ( Rze#TE T8 ) , a computer hardware manufacturer,
from October 1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily
responsible for product quality assurance. From August 1998 to
January 2005, he served as the sales assistant manager of the
Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited
(ZE2EFE® (FB)BAM2A7A), a manufacturer of electronic
components, where he was primarily responsible for the sales of
the electronic components. From February 2005 to April 2014 and
December 2005 to April 2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where
he was primarily responsible for audit management and budgeting.
Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring
in fluid machinery and engineering, from the Sichuan University of
Science and Technology (P0JII T #£8% ) in June 1995. Mr. Wang
is the step-brother of Mr. He.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Kunshan
QT China, Chengdu Q Technology Limited (“Chengdu QT”) and
India QT, each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.
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Mr. Hu Sanmu (# = &) (“Mr. Hu”), aged 44,
president of sales of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the

is the vice

expansion of sales network and maintenance of relationship with
customers. Mr. Hu was appointed as an executive Director of the
Group since 8 July 2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held
various positions in VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited (12 5 &
BFEmR ORI ARRF],

manufacturing of telecommunication products, from July 1998 to

a company principally engaged in

November 2002, where he last served as a mechanical structure
engineer and was primarily responsible for the mechanical design.
From November 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various
Ltd. (RRELZEHIE
a manufacturer of connector products, where

positions in Tianjin Amphenol Kae Co.,
BEFARRAA),
he last served as a sales engineer and was primarily responsible
for maintaining the relationship with existing customers and the
expansion of sales network. From July 2004 to November 2009,
Mr. Hu held various positions in Van Telecom Limited ( i 22 B} %
BRAR),

sales of precise connectors, where he last served as the sales

a company principally engaged in manufacturing and

director and was primarily responsible for sales management
and product planning. Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in
engineering, majoring in mechanical design and manufacture from
the Xi’an University of Science and Technology ( FEZ& Rl #x A E2) |
previously known as Xi'an Mining Institute ( FEZ &2 £26k ) | in July
1998.

Mr. Hu is also a director of Kunshan QT China and Q Technology
Korea Limited, which are a subsidiaries of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (§ %) (“Mr. Ko”), aged 69, JP, was
appointed an independent non-executive Director (the “INED”),
a member of each of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
of the Board, the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board, the Nomination Committee and the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee of the Company
on 31 May 2017. Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours)
degree from The University of Hong Kong, and holds a Master
of Science degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of California at Berkeley. He is an Adjunct Professor of
Peking University and Tsinghua University and Emeritus Professor
of Electrical & Electronic Engineering and the former Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Ko was the Vice Chairman of Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science Department of the University
of California at Berkeley from 1991 to 1993 and a member of Bell
Labs in USA from 1982 to 1984. Mr. Ko is an independent non-
executive director of each of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock
code: 0097), Henderson Land Development Company Limited
(Stock code: 0012) and VTech Holdings Limited (Stock code:
003083) respectively, all of which are Hong Kong listed companies.
Mr. Ko is also a director of Beken Corporation (1E3BEMR B ( L
) B B BR A R]) (stock code: 603068) (“‘Beken”), which is a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (A &R %) (“Mr. Chu”), aged 50, was
appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014.
From June 1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu served at various positions
in Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (B ERFHARMHBR A F ), which
is a provider of computing devices, testing and skilled solutions,
and last served as a sales expert and was primarily responsible
for overseeing its sales department in respect of the computing
devices. From May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu served as the
investment manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp. ( # 5 3%
BRI ERMABRAE), which was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Development Financial Holding Corporation ( #F Z
e miE R B R A F) (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise
operations, management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was
primarily responsible for exploring and assessing investment
plans and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr.
Chu established WK Innovation Ltd. (Z & EIFRHDBR AT,
a venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he was
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of WK
Technology Fund (E&REIZEE, previously known as E &A%
WERMABRAT), aventure capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily
responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (&ZEHXBRHBR A A, Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation ( ¥ @& RHL AL (D&
R 2 |], Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on the Taiwan
Cretai Securities Market (R /EFHERBEEH L) . Mr. Chu is
also a director of Beken (stock code: 603068), which is a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and was an independent
director of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2385), which
is a company listed on the Taipei Exchange.

Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association ( &/ EEI R EHERENS
from May 2008 to May 2010.
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Mr. Ng Sui Yin (REE) (“Mr. Ng”), aged 51, was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. Mr. Ng
was previously the financial controller of Beijing Gas Blue Sky
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 6828). He is now the financial controller
and company secretary of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 0894). Mr. Ng has extensive experience in the areas
of finance, audit, tax, bankruptcy, information technology and
business development. Mr. Ng has been admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April 2001
and April 2009, respectively. Mr. Ng was registered as a certified
tax advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in July 2010. He
received his Honours Diploma in Accounting from the Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and Master’'s degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Fugiang (S8 E &) (“Mr. Fan”), aged 42, was appointed
as chief financial officer of the Company on 8 July 2016. Mr. Fan
is primarily responsible for financial management, securities affairs
and risk control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held
various positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a state-
owned bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to Agpril
2014,
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily

respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief

responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College (JE R BIB £ # 242 ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a university
diploma from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee (F HEHR A Z E ) located in the PRC, in January
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology (I # T X
£)in July 2019, majoring in administrative management. Mr. Fan
was one of the joint company secretaries of the Company before
his resignation on 21 November 2017.

Mr. Fan is also a director of Zhuhai Q Technology Limited ( Zk/&
FHMEFREAR AT ) and Shenzhen Q Technology Limited
CORYIT R E FRIFRB R A7), which are the subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Fan received the Top Ten Distinguished Employees ( +1£&
T ) Award of Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the years 2005
and 2006 and the Innovative Employee Award (5 T1E% ) by
Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the year 2007.
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Mr. Liu Tongquan (Bl & #) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 42, is the
production director of the Group and the assistant general
manager of Kunshan QT China. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible
for the capacity planning, production planning and scheduling,
process engineering, development of automation and production
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as a
production manager of Kunshan Giantplus Optoelectronics
Technology Co., Ltd. (BIWEEXERMARAA), a LCD
display manufacturer, from July 2002 to November 2007, where
he was primarily responsible for production management. Mr.
Liu received his bachelor’'s degree in engineering, majoring in
measurement and control technology and instrumentation, and his
bachelor’'s degree in economics from Wuhan University (2 X
£) in June 2002 and July 2002, respectively.

Ms. Le Yanfang (£#3%) (“Ms. Le”), aged 36, is the senior
human resources manager of our Group. Ms. Le is primarily
responsible for management of human resources of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Le served as the head of the
human resources department in AVCON Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (EFEEHMRMBRAE), a company principally
engaged in the provision of the multi-media communication system
solutions, and was primarily responsible for formulating human
resources policies and human resources affairs from October 2007
to December 2010. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate from
Jiujiang Vocational and Technical College ( 17T B 3 £ 17 22653 )
in June 2004, majoring in electronic technology and application.
Ms. Le completed an online programme in human resources
management provided by Nankai University ( 7 A22) in January
2012.
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Mr. Liu Tilun (2l381&) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 51, is the vice president
of technology center of the Group. He is mainly responsible for
the management of R&D, trail production and mass production
processes of new products, new materials and new technologies.
Mr. Liu has more than 17 years’ experience in optical and
electronic field. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as an
engineer in charge, project manager, senior project manager and
project director of opto-mechanical department successively in
Liteon Technology Co., Ltd., and held position of opto-mechanical
engineer of consumption image department of Kinpo Electronics,
Inc. from May 1998 to May 2003. Mr. Liu was graduated from
National Taipei Industrial Technology College (NTIT) in 1993,
majored in mechanical engineering.

Mr. Cheng Zhihua (= 1t) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 44, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 21
November 2017. Mr. Cheng graduated from the Jinan University
(B2 K &) with a bachelor of accounting degree in 1999 and
further obtained a master of business administration degree from
the Jinan University in 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is currently
a financial director of a private company in Hong Kong and has
more than 20 years of experience in handling accounting and
compliance matters at various companies and accounting firms in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Cheng has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2017.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

Details of use of proceeds from Global Offering of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page
36 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

Details of use of proceeds from placing of Shares are set out in
the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF SHARES” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 36 to 37 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five accounting years are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 191.

Directors’ Report
EEgRE

ARREEMAREAFEAEEZF
EHREMEEZZAHMBHRE -

RRUEMEREAHE

ARAREZRBEEMBRARNF BN
AREEREEIEEwEDITFEIOEH
[EXBEMFIRERE] -

ROBEEMEREARE

BHBREMGSHREAENFBHRAFTE
BREEBEENWEDITEICEEITAEN
(OB EFMERIBERE] -

FERK
ARRA—BMRAZRAD LHEL
AXERFREHFEEEMA HAH
UMM R At B EEFHE -
LEMBHRE

AEBR& LD EEAFENEERE
EREMBHRAFEREF6E8H

Sz g
II\E

AEERAFENEEHNEI9NED
EHBRmLEMEmKER-

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 49



Directors’ Report
EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 23 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 9 to 23. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 24 to 39 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Group Five-year Financial Summary
on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Corporate Governance Report, the Environmental,
and Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 9
to 23, pages 24 to 39, pages 98 to 128, pages 129 to 179, and
pages 49 to 97 respectively. These discussions form part of this

Social

Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 of approximately RMB9.0
cents (equivalent to HK10.0 cents) per share to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 10 June 2020. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or around Monday, 22 June 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 19 May
2020 to 22 May 2020 (both days inclusive). All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2020.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 8 June 2020 to 10 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
June 2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 21.6% (2018: approximately 14.1%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 50.4% (2018: approximately 40.9%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
36.4% (2018: approximately 37.3%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 92.2% (2018: approximately 83.5%) of the total
turnover of the Group.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note notes 20 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2019, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves (including
share premium and retained profits) available for distribution
to the equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,287,535,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,020,682,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) N

Mr. Wang Jiangiang
Mr. Hu Sanmu

Directors’ Report
EEgRE

EEIN

ARBRAFERANBICFHFITERNA
OF B 75 S R BT 5E29 o

RITRO R EREE

BRAREMBEEI RRBRAFE
I 8 B AT B RE -

A] 731k 1k

REFMERBERAIE AR E
RENESADIRTARBRER A
BT ARREGERAR (HEERA
Al -R—T—-—NF+-A=+—8"
AR T ARRBRERSE ANRE

(BERMDEEBRREBER) @EHAEA
R #1,287,535, 0007u(__-=-—)\fﬁ %
AR #4,020,682,0007T) °

BE

RAFEANEEARE BB ARF
BEEWMR:
HITESE

fEEEE (ZHE)N
Themkt
=L

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 53



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang M?
Mr. Ko Ping Keung NARM
Mr. Ng Sui Yin ARM

member of audit committee of the Company
member of remuneration committee of the Company
member of risk management committee of the Company

zz 3 >

member of nomination committee of the Company

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Ko Ping Keung will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

During the Year, no Director resigned from his/her office or refused
to stand for re-election to his/her office due to reasons relating to
the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 40 to 48 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company, among which, the term of office for
each of Mr. He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months
commencing from the month in which the Shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office for
Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commencing from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017. If Mr. Hu
Sanmu is re-elected at the AGM, the Company intends to renew
the service contract with him for a term of 36 months commencing
from 1 June 2020. The service contract of each executive Director
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other party.
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, pursuant to which the term of office for each of Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin is 3 years commencing from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the Shares were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange; and Mr. Ko Ping Keung’s
term of office is three years commencing from 31 May 2017. On 2
December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin signed
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of 36 months
commencing from 2 December 2017. If Mr. Ko Ping Keung is re-
elected at the AGM, the Company intends to renew the letter of
appointment with him for a term of 36 months commencing from 1
June 2020.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its holding company, its
controlling shareholder or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
relation to the positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company

EERFETBRAERKS A
ERORESTER 2ER

R-ZZE—NAF+-_A=+—"H KQ7
BEEXRTETHRAERAR R R E G
EE(TERABBENESTIEZEFHF M
BIEG ([BHREEEG]) EXVER) 8
o - AR, (BRBBERASTE T AR
BENBEEMRBE)RESFFHEZIR
BEEAH M EEIEDIEXVERSET7 M8 EBAY
&SR A S AN N | K B X T A B2 8 R 3B
A5 REE GO EIB2HERARTEF

V& R A SR IR £ T AR BB &%+ P
HEMBETAESETEFRHINELE
SR ([Z2ESPR ) BRI AR QR R
FrefEz T -

(a) REDFARS 2ERE

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ issued of the issued
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
(Note 2)
sz
B FEAH 2B HEERT
ABHE 5/ REME ROBE BR BROBEDE
(Hfitz)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 752,491,000 Long position 65.01%
s corporation (Note 1) gE
Ry rEER (Hret1)
He Ningning Beneficial owner 980,000 Long position 0.08%
A EE ERBEAA A
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 11,128,400 Long position 0.96%
T ERBEAA (Note 3) W E
(H15t3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 2,383,000 Long position 0.21%
A=K ERBEAA (Note 4) W&
(Hteta)
Ko Ping Keung Beneficial owner 200,000 Long position 0.02%

SEL:

EZBAA
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the sole beneficial owner of QT Investment which
owned approximately 65.01% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2019. Under Chapter XV of the
SFO, Mr. He Ningning is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,157,476,000 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2019.

On 2 April 2020, an aggregate of 483,600 Shares were issued
to Mr. Wang Jiangiang pursuant to the exercise of 483,600
share options granted to him by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of
HK$4.13 per share. Since 2 April 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
has been the beneficial owner of an aggregate of 11,612,000
Shares of the Company.

On 2 April 2020, an aggregate of 360,000 Shares were issued
to Mr. Hu Sanmu pursuant to the exercise of 360,000 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13
per share. Since 2 April 2020, Mr. Hu Sanmu has been the
beneficial owner of an aggregate of 2,743,000 Shares of the

Company.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares

Name of Directors/ Capacity/

(b) RAEBRD z2HER

Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s

Number of issued
underlying Shares M2
Shares in (assuming
respect of that the share
the share options are

Chief Executive Nature of interest options granted Position held exercised in full)
HER 5
HEAR S BT
B 4 (Hiz2)
PRERE BMABES
EE FETH BREN (RBERE
ABHE 5/ EnitE HERGHE %8 E2EITHE)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 483,600 Long position 0.04%
TR EnBEAA (Note 1and 3)  t¥#&
(H#21%3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 360,000 Long position 0.03%
=R EnBEAA (Note 1 and 4) 55>
(Htat1k4)
Notes: Hrat -
1. Details of the above share options have been disclosed in the 1. FiERECFBEERTXER

following sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and note 27
to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

2. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares 2. #ZEFA
divided by 1,157,476,000 issued Shares of the Company in

total as at 31 December 2019.

3. On 2 April 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option

B E BB RARAEHFHBR
RM 2T ER o

7 L tE R A R 2 E9 AR B X
Tﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ“jﬁf‘_? NEF
TZA=+T—BMEHTRMHAH
1,157,476,0000% °

3. RZZE-_ZTFWA-H TE®WELE
N ERRATEBK4A3B TITEER

Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 ZE-RFT A+ B RIEER

per share. Since 2 April 2020, the share options granted to Mr.

Wang Jiangiang were all exercised.

4. On 2 April 2020, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option

TR SR T 2 483,60017 B AL -
BT _TFNA_HE 2@k
ERERNBRECEEBITE

4, RIZE-THEMA-H  HEAEL
NEFRRITEBK4A3EB TITEER

Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 ZE-RETHZTRNAREER

per share. Since 2 April 2020, the share options granted to Mr.

Hu Sanmu were all exercised.
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(c) Interest in Associated Corporation
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(c) REBEE zER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of shares in
Name of Directors/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature issued shares associated
Chief Executive corporation of interest held corporation
NIERBEE
EE ITETH iz e 81T 2RTRHA
ABHAR HEZE AR LV 1131 ROEAE Bk
He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 2 100%
A EE EHIRE EnEAA
Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of R EXFIEEBEEIIN R_ZE—NLF+ =

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as follows:

RZE—NAF+_A=+—H #AR
BEEMA THAL (BRARAESEK
FETHRABNN) RIRMDSAEERG (82
BERATETEMBENIFESMEE)
REE RN EFH R E P 3365
TRARN BTN ERMAZ SR
BT

Approximate
percentage of

total issued
Shares in
Capacity/Nature Number of the Company
Name of Shareholder Long/short position of interest Shares held (Note 1)
HEEAT
ERITRA
BYFEIL
BRRAE BE/ KR 517/ EmER R G & B (Brzt1)
QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 752,491,000 65.01%
EREKE A EnEAA (Note 2)
(Htet2)

Note: Wit -

1. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares divided
by 1,157,476,000 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2019.

2. Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of Q
Technology Investment, which owned approximately 65.01% of the
issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2019.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group had not made charitable or other
donations of HK$10,000 and/or above.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 has brought additional
uncertainties in the macroeconomic situation. As of the date of the
2019 annual results announcement of the Company, the impact
of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s operation in 2020
was insignificant. However, the epidemic has spread rapidly in
the United States, Europe, India and other countries and regions
in recent times. The Group’s manufacturing base in India has
suspended production and operation as required by the Indian
government. As the production capacity of the manufacturing
base in India accounts for less than one-tenth of the total
production capacity of the Group, the impact of the suspension of
production and operation of the manufacturing base in India on the
Group’s capability of delivery is insignificant. Combined with the
development of the epidemic in Mainland China, the management
of the Group also expects that the suspension of production and
operation of the manufacturing base in India will not be long-
lasting. The management of the Group is in the process of making
continuing assessment of the impact of the outbreak of the
COVID-19.

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 24 to 39 and above, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that had occurred after 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

62 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

AEERAFEYEEH —BBTRS
HIA EZEEREMIBK

BEFERSHE

“ECTENENFUERREERED
HEBRBERESKEITHARE
BEARAIBM _ZE-NEFEEELSE
ZALL HFRERESEESRNEE -
T_EENEEFEEN-BLOHER
X BN ENESFER MR ERE
R AEBERHEMEREEMD K
HHNERNNEREFELEE S BEH
EREEMNEERSARERERRR
RO+ 2 — - Bt - ENEREE
WEELEEELHAKBNINENF
SEM HEPERENRBERIBR
AEBEEBNMHENERERMNE
FEEELETERBEARKHE - A5 E
B3R B L N R (S R A R AR B R

1=
RIS E -

BRAFIRFEABEEZFEI0OEMNERE W
HAOME FAAERN RZT—NF
+TZA=+—HEREERAREQMZ
BABEZEAEE EMEZEEH-

EEFMROLEREH AL
RAFE EFHFMREEREHFAL

MR B BB & G R 5 R MY 6 &%
7 o



UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, were appointed as
directors of Beken Corporation (1§ BEKERE (L&) KH
fRAE]) (“Beken”) since 26 February 2017. On 15 April 2019,
Beken was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603068), in turn, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
were redesignated as directors of Beken.

On 5 June 2019, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, was appointed as
independent director of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 2385), which is a company listed on the Taipei Exchange in
Taiwan.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other important changes
in the information of Directors required to be disclosed in this
report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
Share Option Scheme and granted a total of 59,935,000 share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to the Group
made or possibly made. The Company also granted an aggregate
of 71,682,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme to
the eligible participants: () on 26 October 2016, the Company
granted an aggregate of 39,425,000 share options to 165 eligible
participants (the “Share Options 2016”); (i) on 9 June 2017, the
Company granted a total of 8,083,000 share options to 48 eligible
participants (the “Share Options 2017”); (i) on 7 December 2018,
the Company granted a total of 12,720,000 share options to 83
eligible participants (the “Share Options 2018”"); and (iv) on 21
June 2019, the Company granted a total of 11,454,000 share
options to 68 the eligible participants (the “Share Options 2019”).
Details of the schemes are set out below:
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A. Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of this report:

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 19 May 2017, an ordinary resolution was passed
by the Shareholders to approve the refreshment of the
maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon
the exercise of all options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to not exceeding 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders of the refreshed
limit. On the date of approving such ordinary resolution
(i.,e. on 19 May 2017), the total number of Shares in
issue of the Company was 1,095,597,000 shares,
therefore, the maximum number of Shares relating
to the options that may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company were refreshed to 109,559,700 Shares,
representing approximately 9.36% of total number of
1,170,351,630 Shares in issue on the date of this report
(i.e. on 13 April 2020).
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including exercised
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)  the issue of a circular containing the identity of the
Eligible Participant, the numbers of and terms of
the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such Eligible Participant), the information
as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) of and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of, the Listing
Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
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The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time in the
period after the date upon which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date subject to the provisions for early
termination set out in the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up by eligible
participants within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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10.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years commenced from 13 November 2014,

The total number of the Share Options 2016:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (representing approximately
3.78% of the 1,041,771,000 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 26 October 2016) and
approximately 3.37% of 1,170,351,630 shares of the
total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 13 April 2020)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 165 Eligible Participants. During the Year, the
Company accepted the applications from 131 grantees
(including two Executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu) to issue a total of 9,808,200 ordinary
shares to such grantees. A total of 1,066,800 share
options were lapsed as a result of the resignations of 8
grantees during the Year, and a total of 9,616,200 share
options were outstanding as at 31 December 2019.
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11.

The period within which the Share Options 2016 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

()  upon, among others, the revenue (“Revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by not less than 25% as compared
with the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 (both days inclusive); and

11.
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(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2019 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December

2020 (both days inclusive).

12. The basis of determining the exercise price of the Share

Options 2016:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2016 under the Share Option Scheme is

HK$4.13 per Share.

18. The total number of the Share Options 2017:

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of
8,083,000 share options (representing approximately
0.74% of the 1,095,597,000 shares of the total number
of issued Shares on the date of grant of the relevant
share options (i.e. on 9 June 2017) and approximately
0.69% of the total number of 1,170,351,630 issued
Shares as at the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April
2020)) under the Share Option Scheme to 48 Eligible
Participants. During the Year, the Company accepted the
applications from 21 grantees to issue a total of 945,600
ordinary shares to these grantees. A total of 400,000
options were lapsed as a result of the resignations of
2 staff during the Year, and a total of 945,600 share
options were outstanding as at 31 December 2019.
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14. The period within which the Share Options 2017 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

(1) Share Options One:

() upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2017 increases by not
less than 25% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2018 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both days inclusive); and
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(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive).

(2) Share Options Two:

)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 increases by not
less than 20% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive);
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(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive); and

(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive).

15. The basis of determining the exercise price of the Share
Options 2017:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2017 is HK$6.22 per Share.
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16. The total number of the Share Options 2018:

On 7 December 2018 the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options (representing approximately
1.12% of the 1,131,722,200 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 7 December 2018) and
approximately 1.09% of the 1,170,351,630 shares of
the total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 13 April 2020)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 83 Eligible Participants. During the Year,
such share options were not exercisable, and a total of
1,624,000 share options were lapsed as a result of the
resignations of 13 grantees. A total of 11,096,000 share
options were outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

17. The period within which the Share Options 2018 must be

exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance

with the following manner:

() upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ending 31 December 2019 increases by
not less than 20% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018, up to 40%
of the share options granted (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) shall be exercisable during
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

(both days inclusive);
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(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2020 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December
2021 (both days inclusive); and

(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive).

18. The basis of determining the exercise price of the Share
Options 2018:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2018 is HK$4.65 per Share.
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19. The total number of the Share Options 2019:

On 21 June 2019, the Company granted a total of
11,454,000 share options (representing approximately
1.0% of the total number of 1,141,905,400 issued
Shares on the date of grant of the relevant share options
(i.e. on 21 June 2019) and approximately 0.98% of the
total number of 1,170,351,630 issued Shares as at
the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April 2020)) under the
Share Option Scheme to 68 Eligible Participants. During
the Year, the Share Options 2019 were not exercisable,
and a total of 4,680,000 share options were lapsed
as a result of the resignations of 13 grantees. A total
of 6,774,000 share options were outstanding as at 31

December 2019.

20. The period within which the Share Options 2019 must be

exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance

with the following manner:

() upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 15%
from the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2021
to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 15% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2022 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 15% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December
2023 (both days inclusive).

Basis of determining the exercise price of the Share
Options 2019:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share

Options 2019 is HK$6.02 per Share.

21.
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B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive
scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group.
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre-
IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following purposes:

()  motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the
longterm growth of the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board might determine to the full-time, key
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”).
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
of the total number of issued Shares immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Prospectus) and approximately 5.12% of the
total number of issued Shares of 1,170,351,630 Shares
as at the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April 2020)).
These options were granted on 13 November 2014 to
subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares. No further options will
be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, as the rights to do so have been terminated.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

()  up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;
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(i)  up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31

December 2017; and

(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31

December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such

option becomes vested.

As at the date of this report, none of share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme had lapsed accordingly.

5. The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

is RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option

Scheme.

During the Year, none of share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised
or remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme had lapsed accordingly.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted BIEEREAZIREEERENE
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: NZEEFHBFHOT :

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BRESRZRERAHE
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited as at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019
Ho8-hE H-2-1%
-5-E tzA=t-8
HATEH RER HATEN
£ RUEAE TRH ERE AERRH RERfTE REREHE KA/ 8K BhE
Directors
£
Wang Jiangiang 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 967,200 - (483,600) Yo7 - - 483,600
“The period within which the Share Note 3
Options 2016 must be exercised to
subscrioe for Shares” on pages 69 to
70
g% ZE-AFTAZTAR E2H 6002708 (2T FEREN 967,200 - (483,600) 71 - - 483,600
ARRATRER] & s
Hu Sanmu 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under “The 720,000 - (360,000) %=1 - - 360,000
period within which the Share Options Note 3
2016 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares” on pages 69 to 70
[EEUN ZE-RETAZTRE FRHE00ZI0E [ZF - EEREN 720,000 - (360,000) ¥ - - 360,000
ARRATRBR] &% #iits
Directors (in total) 1,687,200 - (843,600) - - 843,600
EZ(AH) 1,687,200 - (843,600) - - 843,600
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Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BREVRZEBRA%A
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited as at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019
RZZ-1F RZB-NF
-A-8 tZAZt-8
HATEN ER HATEN
E3 RiEAH %8 ERE AERRL RERfTE REREHE &M/ R4 BRE
Employees 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under ‘The 18,804,000 - (8,964,600) e - (1,066,800) 8,772,600
period within which the Share Options Note 3
2016 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares” on pages 69 to 70
3 ZE-AEHAZTAR F2HE0Z08 [ZF—~FRREN 18804000 - (8,964,600 4 - (1,066,800) 8,772,600
ARRATRER] BE s
Employees Share Options One 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under “The 1,891,200 - (945,600) %2 - - 945,600
period within which the Share Options Note 4
2017 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares: (1) Share Options One” on
pages 7110 72
&5 (BRE-) ZE-tERANR FRMEMENA[E-LFERESD  1891.200 - (045,600) 22 - - 945,600
PEROGEDR: (1) BRE-] 8% ez
Employees Share Options Two 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under ‘The 400,000 - - - (400,000) -
period within which the Share Options
2017 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares: (2) Share Options Two" on
pages 7210 73
25 (BRED) ZE-tERANE FRHENEIE 25—t FEREN 400,000 - - - 400,000) -
PERHARDR: (2)BRE=] 8%
Employees 7 December 2018 please refer to the paragraph under “The 12,720,000 - - - (1,624,000) 11,096,000
period within which the Share Options Note §
2018 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares” on pages 74 to 75
8 “2-\EtZAtA FRMEMEBE (5 -)\FERESD 12720000 - - - (1,624,000) 11,006,000
ERHGEBR] &% Hits
Employees 21 June 2019 please refer to the paragraph under ‘The - 11,454,000 - - (4,680,000) 6,774,000

period within which the Share Options
2019 must be exercised to subscribe
for Shares” on pages 76 to 77
EE ZE-NERAZT-R F2BE6ETE 23 -NERREN - 11,464,000 - - 4,680,000 6,774,000
ARRATRER] &

Employees (in tota) 33,815,200 11,454,000 (9,910,200) - (7,770,800) 27,588,200
[ 1CH) 33,815,200 11,454,000 (9,910,200 - (7,770,800) 27,588,200
Total 35,502,400 11,454,000 (10,753,800) - (7,770,800) 28,431,800
@ 35,502,400 11,454,000 (10,753,800) - (7,770,800) 28,431,800
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Notes:

On 2 April 2019, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options, and Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share options,
and a total of 8,964,600 share options were exercised by the
employees on the same date. The exercisable price per Share
was HK$4.13. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$7.19 per Share.

On 2 April 2019, a total of 90,000 share options were exercised
by the employees. The exercisable price per Share was
HK$6.22. The weighted average closing price immediately
before the date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$7.19 per Share. On 30 April 2019, a total of 285,000 share
options were exercised by the employees. The exercisable price
per Share was HK$6.22. The weighted average closing price
immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$8.05 per Share. On 30 July 2019, a total of
570,600 share options were exercised by the employees. The
exercisable price per Share was HK$6.22. The closing market
price of the immediately preceding business day before the date
on which the share options were exercised was HK$7.72 per
Share

On 2 April 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share options,
and a total of 7,957,230 share options were exercised by the
employees on the same date. The exercisable price per share
was HK$4.13. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$8.45 per Share.
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4, On 2 April 2020, a total of 426,000 share options were
exercised by the employees. The exercisable price per share
was HK$6.22. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$8.45 per Share.

5. On 2 April 2020, a total of 3,648,800 share options were
exercised by the employees. The exercisable price per share
was HK$4.65. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$8.45 per Share.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in this report
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the related party transactions
constitutes a continuing connected transaction or connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules. The Disclosure of
those certain continuing related party transactions has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the notice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of
precise connectors from Van Telecom Limited (“Van
Telecom PRC”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”)
with Van Telecom PRC, pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC
agreed to supply the precise connectors to the Group for
a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 16
December 2016, the Company and Van Telecom PRC renewed
the Purchase Agreement (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC
agreed to continue to supply to the Group precise connectors
for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on
31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and Van
Telecom PRC entered into a supplemental purchase agreement
(the “Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”) to
revise the annual caps of transactions under the Renewed Van
Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement for the three years ended 31
December 2020. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 13 July 2018.
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The price for the precise connectors supplied by Van Telecom PRC
under the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement
was determined by reference to the price at which comparable
types of precise connectors that are sold by independent suppliers
to the Group under normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of its business and such price shall be no less favourable
to the Group than was available from independent suppliers. In
considering whether to purchase from Van Telecom PRC, the
Group sought quotations from at least two independent third
parties offering the same or comparable products. The Group
purchased the precise connectors from Van Telecom PRC if the
price and quality of the products offered were comparable to or
more favourable to the Group than those offered by independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (“‘CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning
(“Mr He"), an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As
such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase
Agreement and the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB Nil and the annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB Nil.
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Supply agreement in respect of the supply of camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules to CK
Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement”) with
Heyuan CK, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
the camera modules to Heyuan CK for the production of its
products for a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 29 December 2014, the Company and Heyuan CK entered
into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master
Supplemental Supply Agreement”) to revise the annual caps of
transactions agreed by Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement. On
16 December 2016, the Company and Heyuan CK renewed the
Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan CK
Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which, Heyuan CK agreed to
continue to purchase camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules from the Group, for a further term commencing
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On
2 June 2017, the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a
supplemental supply agreement (the “Supplemental Heyuan CK
Supply Agreement 1”) to revise the annual caps of transactions
under the Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement for the three
years ended 31 December 2019 under the Renewed Heyuan
CK Supply Agreement. On 13 July 2018, the Company and
Heyuan CK entered into a supplemental supply agreement (the
“Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement II”) to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan
CK Supply Agreement | for the three years ending 31 December
2020. On 31 October 2019, the Company and Heyuan CK
entered into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Supplemental
Heyuan CK Supply Agreement lII”) to revise the annual caps for
the transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement |l for the three years ending 31 December 2021. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 October 2019.
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The price for the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules supplied by the Group under the Supplemental Heyuan
CK Supply Agreement Il and Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement Il was determined by reference to the raw material
costs and production costs to be incurred by the Group and the
profit margin, which is expected to be comparable with the level of
profits derived from the Group’s sales to independent customers,
subject to adjustments arising from the expected quantity, quality,
delivery schedule, specifications and market competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement
Il and Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement Il was
approximately RMB12,117,000 and the revised annual cap amount
for the Year was RMB20,000,000.
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Property sub-lease agreement entered into by
Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and Chengdu CK Technology Limited
(“Chengdu CK”)

On 6 June 2014, Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Chengdu CK (the “Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Chengdu CK agreed to sub-lease certain portion of
the premises situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu
Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District,
Chengdu, the PRC (# BIRK &R T = ¥ [@ K2 — 321958 R T 8L (4 &
CIEE121R6/E ) , with total gross area of approximately 242 sg.m. to
Chengdu QT for a term from 6 June 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 16 December 2016, Chengdu QT and Chengdu CK renewed
the Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement (the “Renewed Chengdu
CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which, Chengdu CK
agreed to continue to sub-lease certain portion of the premises
situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu Software Park,
No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, the PRC
(FEKETSFERE K219 RNTEHHRERCEI2IR6E) ,
with total gross area of approximately 242 sg.m. to Chengdu
QT, for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring
on 31 December 2019. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2016 for details.

The landlord of the premises sub-leased by Chengdu CK to
Chengdu QT is an independent third party, the rent under the
Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement to be paid by
Chengdu QT to Chengdu CK is determined with reference to
the market rent for similar premises in the vicinity and the rent,
utilities and management fees payable by Chengdu CK under the
tenancy agreement entered into with the Landlord and on normal
commercial terms, and such prices shall be no less favourable to
Chengdu QT than is available from independent third parties.

Chengdu CKis a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK, which
is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He and as to 10.0% by
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (“Mr. Wang”), an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer, respectively. As such, Chengdu CK is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement
was approximately RMB55,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB130,680.

Property lease agreements entered into by Kunshan
QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom PRC

Kunshan QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into two factory building and dormitories lease
agreements (collectively the “Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreements”) with Van Telecom PRC on 23 June 2016 and 16
September 2016 respectively, pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC ( 1 BI)T & & B I T2 B B5 199955 ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term up to 31 December 2018. On 16 December
2016, Kunshan QT China renewed the lease agreements with
Van Telecom PRC (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed
to continue to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (#F Bl T & & & 1L T2 A 519995 ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and
expiring on 31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, Kunshan QT
China and Van Telecom PRC entered into a supplemental property
lease agreement (the “Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreement®), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed
to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s dormitories situated
on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
(P BT # & B 1L ZEHEE19995%) and part of the additional
factories situated on Building No. 3, 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC (Fr BL &% & B 1L 5 % 58 #5199957 357
FE) to Kunshan QT China, for a term commencing from 1 January
2018 and expiring on 31 December 2020, to revise and supersede
the Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 July 2018.
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The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to Kunshan QT China
is its own property, the rent under the Supplemental Van Telecom
PRC Property Lease Agreements paid by Kunshan QT China to
Van Telecom PRC was determined with reference to the market
rent for similar premises in the vicinity and on normal commercial
terms, and such prices offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be
no less favourable to Kunshan QT China than is available from
independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreement was approximately RMB3,191,000 and the annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB3,549,600.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of
voice coil motors, linear motors, bi-directional VCM
(“VCM, LM, bi-directional VCM”) and other electronic
components from Heyuan Youha Micro Electronic
Technology Company Limited (“Heyuan Youhua”,
formerly known as Huizhou Youhua Micro Electronic
Technology Company Limited)

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) with
Heyuan Youhua, pursuant to which Heyuan Youhua agreed to
supply the VCM and LM to the Group for a term from 1 July
2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and
Heyuan Youhua entered into a supplemental purchase agreement
(the “Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) to
revise the annual caps for the transactions under the Heyuan
Youhua Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2020, pursuant to which, Heyuan Youhua agreed to
supply VCM, LM and bi-directional VCM to the Group. On 31
October 2019, the Company and Heyuan Youhua entered into a
supplemental purchase agreement (the “Supplemental Heyuan
Youhua Purchase Agreement II”) to revise the annual caps for
transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2021. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 October 2019 and 11 November 2019.
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The price for the VCM, LM, bi-directional VCM and other electronic
components supplied by Heyuan Youhua under the Supplemental
Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement Il was determined with
reference to the price at which comparable types of VCM, LM,
bi-directional VCM and other electronic components are sold to
the Group by independent suppliers under normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business, and such price shall
be no less favourable to the Group than that were available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from Heyuan Youhua, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the VCM, LM, bi-directional VCM
and other electronic components from Heyuan Youhua if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Heyuan Youhua is owned as to approximately 0.25% by Mr.
Hu Sanmu, an executive Director of the Company, and as to
approximately 66.11% by Westalgo Great China, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of QT Investment, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such,
Heyuan Youhua is a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement and Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement |l was approximately RMB110,749,000 and the revised
annual cap amount for the Year was RMB130,000,000.
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Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of
flexible printed circuit board and rigid-flex printed
circuit boards (“FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs”) from
C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd. (“Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic”)

On 2 June 2017, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the “Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic agreed to supply the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs to the
Group for a term from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13
July 2018, the Company and Huangshi C-Flex Electronic entered
into a supplemental purchase Agreement (the “Supplemental
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement for the three years ending
31 December 2020. On 31 October 2019, the Company and
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic entered into a supplemental purchase
agreement (the “Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement II”) to revise the annual caps for the
transactions under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2021. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 October 2019 and 11 November 2019.

The price for the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs supplied by Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement Il was determined with reference
to the price at which comparable types of FPCs and Rigid-Flex
PCBs are sold to the Group by independent suppliers under
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, and
such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering the
same or comparable products. The Group purchased the FPCs
and Rigid-Flex PCBs from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.
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Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He and
as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang. As such, Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement and the Supplemental Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement Il was approximately
RMB101,962,000 and the revised annual cap amount for the Year
was RMB130,000,000.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of
connectors and holders (“connectors and holders”
from Kunshan KEIRAKU Precision Co.,Ltd (“Kunshan
KEIRAKU”))

On 13 July 2018, the Company and Kunshan KEIRAKU entered
into a purchase agreement (the “Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Kunshan KEIRAKU agreed
to supply to the Group connectors and holders, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 July 2018.

The price for the connectors and holders supplied by Kunshan
KEIRAKU under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
determined with reference to the price at which comparable types
of connectors and holders are sold to the Group by independent
suppliers under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business, and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group
than was available from independent suppliers. In considering
whether to purchase from Kunshan KEIRAKU, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering
the same or comparable products. The Group purchased the
connectors and holders from Kunshan KEIRAKU if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.
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Kunshan KEIRAKU is owned as to 97% by Kunshan KEIRAKU
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by QT
Investment, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing rules). Accordingly, Kunshan KEIRAKU is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total transaction
amount under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB82,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB9,000,000.

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such transactions
have been:

(i)  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) entered into on normal and fair commercial or better terms;

(i) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable for the interests of
Shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) the total annual transaction amount of the Year has not
exceeded the annual cap.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant
independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.
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The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult a professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
has resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 April 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to
the Company’s Shareholders and protecting and enhancing
Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support are in place for the Group to achieve
its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but
are not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and
strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major capital
expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board

of association (the “Articles of Association”).

committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Sanmu

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Ko Ping Keung
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had appointed three INEDs,
representing half of the Board members, and has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members, and met
the requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report (i.e. 13 April 2020), QT Investment,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, held 1,816,016
shares in issued of Smartsens Technology (Cayman) Co., Limited
(“Smartsens” ), a private company, representing approximately
1.31% of the total issued shares of Smartsens as at the date of
this report. Smartsens is a company engaging in development of
semiconductor solutions, which was founded on 9 March 2017
and registered in the British Cayman Islands. Mr. Ko Ping Keung,
an INED of the Company, owns approximately 7.62% equity
interests in the ordinary shares or preference shares of Smartsens
personally or through a company under his management; WK
MEIFEE D AR A F) (a venture capital
company, where an INED, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, currently works

Innovation Ltd. (&

as a director) held directly and indirectly approximately 4.63% of
preference shares of Smartsens. Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang also serve as directors of Smartsens, but do not
participate in specific operations of Smartsens. As at the date
of this report, the Group has no significant business dealings or
major commercial transactions with Smartsens. The Company
considers that: (i) the controlling shareholder of the Company
holds a very low proportion of shares in Smartsens and does
not have any significant business dealings with Smartsens; (ii)
the aggregate of shareholdings in Smartsens held by Mr. Ko
Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang personally or through their
companies is only 12.25% and the aggregate of voting rights of
the board of directors of Smartsens is less than one-half, they
do not participate in and cannot determine the daily operation
management of Smartsens; and (i) Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang do not rely on the investment in Smartsens as
their major source of income. Therefore, the Company believes
that the investment of QT Investment (the controlling shareholder
of the Company) in Smartsens does not affect the independence
of Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang as INEDs of
the Company. Based on the above circumstances and the
confirmations submitted by each of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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As at 31 December 2019, there was no Director who held
directorships in each other’s companies nor had significant
relationships with other directors by participating in other
companies or groups.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Ko Ping Keung held 200,000 Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.02% of the issued
Shares of the Company. During the Year, none of the INEDs held
more than 1% of the number of issued Shares of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a term of three years,
which is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Time and Directorship Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that they have devoted sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the Year
and have disclosed to the Company at least twice a year the
number, identity and nature of their positions in listed public
companies or institutions are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, as
well as other significant commitments.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no director who had held
directorships in more than seven public companies, including the
Company.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

During the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, Mr. Ng Sui
Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) have complied with the requirements
of the Code Provision A6.5 of the CG Code, have participated
in relevant continuing professional development and training,
including special training on amendments to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, special training on acquisition and disposal and
external training on enterprise development management at the
Company’s expense, and all Directors have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided
briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held 17 meetings in total (i.e. on
15 January 2019, 26 February 2019, 8 March 2019, 25 March
2019, 1 April 2019, 26 April 2019, 29 April 2019, 14 June 2019,
21 June 2019, 26 June 2019, 12 July 2019, 2 August 2019,
12 August 2019, 31 October 2019, 11 December 2019, 18
December 2019 and 30 December 2019 respectively) with notice
given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance(excluding the
interim meetings). Before each Board meeting, an agenda and the
accompanying Board papers have been sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting or
such other period as agreed in advance. The company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping
all Board meeting’s minutes. The draft and final versions of the
minutes have been circulated to the Directors for comments and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

SREARE

EEREERRR

RAFEE SEF (A EELL T2
MEE HZAREE SRAKLE R
BEXENMRFELE)HEETEEST
AMEXABSIRZRE 2R T BRI E
EXRERLEI BIATEREHEL
MR AR SHE R R BB )| B U
REENERENILREXEEERAMH
MSNEBIERIE - BRAA QB AERE
BEZCRERAARARHEFIE
g

AN KRB EAFRERESRHE
B FEEECSUNERLAEFERERE
KRB

EXEERRESHERLHE

%
B

FE EESHBITTLREE D
AR E—NF—A+HABE -ZF—Ah
F_AZ+XB - ZE—HAFE=ZANB"
—E-—HAFE=ZA-+HB - ZZ—AhEF
MA—HB -ZE—NAFmHA=-+8 =
Z-NAEFENNA=-Z+NAB ZZ2—LEX
A+HHE ZE—AF~A=-_+—H8"
—E-NFRAZTRB-ZE-NF
tA+ZHB - ZE—-NAEFENAZH =
T-AENA+ZB ZE—NAF+ A
=t+t—B-ZF—-NAF+=ZA+—8"
—E-NEFE+ART+NBE=ZZE—NF
TZA=TH YHELREETEXAE
MEFELEN (RESEBIN) -NE
REEEEHN XL RESFSCEERE
E BB =RAISSEA 1 E AR EE
ExRHEEMERESS XY A2
AARME ([RAWNE]) BEREME
EETCRCB - REREERE REE
HEARHRESERARSERERTES
BEHERES UMEESHTER MHK
BRIRATARAEEESESH-

20195 F3 EHMBE (£E) BRATF 103



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:

EEENAFELEEEERERKRE
G

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERE BEEREE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors BEEHSZ By BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) fBEELE (F/F) 1717 1/1
Mr. Wang Jiangiang FlEREE (7THAAZ)

(Chief Executive Officer) 17/17 11
Mr. Hu Sanmu A= RELE 17/17 11
INEDs BAFHITES
Mr. Ko Ping Keung EREEE 17/17 11
Mr. Ng Sui Yin REEEBLE 17/17 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MREFTE 17/17 1/1

During the Year, as part of the commitment to best practices, all
Directors have participated in the discussions in respect of certain
business development of the Group through electronic means of
communication, such as E-mail and instant messaging software.
Such arrangement ensured fast and timely provision of information
to Directors, to supplement the formal Board meetings.

In addition, to meet the requirement of keeping up with the
Group’s business performance by the Directors, a monthly
management report, which contained the financial performance
and key business issues of the Group, was provided to the
Directors by the management of the Company on a monthly basis
throughout the Year. Director can contact the management of the
Company individually and independently to get more information of
the Group.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

A. Purpose
To ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business.

B. Nomination and appointment
The Nomination Committee will identify eligible candidates
on merit basis based on the Company’s daily business
needs while taking into account the benefit of diversity of the
members of the Board.

C. Measurable objectives
Selection of candidates to the Board will be based on a range
of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

D. Monitoring and reporting
The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of
the Board in the Company’s Corporate Governance Report
each year and monitor the implementation of this policy.

E. Reviewing this policy
The Nomination Committee will review this policy in due
course to ensure that this policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will review this policy and the measurable
objectives at least annually, or as appropriate, to ensure the
continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Board Member Diversity EEEREZUILER
REZEEHRAZERTEFTEKRENE
AFRoMER XEER TELRK
BERBERNZ ESHAEEERAS
DT FFAIB R T :

The Nomination Committee comprehensively considered the
gender, age, region, cultural background, industry experience
and professional experience of the Board members. The detailed
analysis of the relevant factors for Directors is as follows:

Person-time/the number of

Factors Categories the Board members
FSES il AR/ EBEHEAH
Age group 30-45 years old 1/6
F e 4 A 30-45/E 5%
46-60 years old 4/6
46-60/E 5%
61-75 years old 1/6
61-75/E 5%
Region Mainland China 2/6
i [ B K BE
Hong Kong, China 3/6
R EEB
Taiwan, China 1/6
PE G
Identity Executive Director 3/6
15 HITES
Independent Non-executive Director 3/6
BYFRITES
Profession(Note) Engineering/Technology 2/6
=X (M) T2/ #iil
Accounting 1/6
=L
Management 3/6
B
Expertise(Note) Electrical and electronics related 3/6
industry experience
H5& (M) BERLEFHBITELR
Science technology 4/6
BHX
Other industry experience 2/6
(banking/finance/energy)
HIT¥E5S% (RT 2@ 8ER)
Corporate administration 6/6
PET
Board members of other listed companies 2/6

Note: Directors can have various professional backgrounds and expertise

Hp LT AR EEEKE
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Corporate Governance Report

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has developed and adopted a nomination policy

for directors (the “Nomination Policy”), under which appointment

of new Directors or re-election of Directors have been carefully

considered as required by the Nomination Policy and based on

formal procedures. A summary of the Nomination Policy of the

Company is set out below:

A.

Purpose

The Nomination Policy is aimed to set out the procedures and

criteria for nominating director candidates of the Company

to ensure that all nominations for the Board members are fair

and transparent, thereby facilitating the efficient and balanced
development of the Board.

Nomination procedures

1.

The Secretary of the Nominating Committee collects
and analyses the necessary personal data submitted by
candidates.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee will convene
a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination
Committee to consider matters in accordance with its
terms of reference.

For filling a casual vacancy to the Board or as an
addition to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
conduct the relevant selection process (coupled with
the relevant selection criteria) against the nominated
candidate and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration, and the Board will then make a decision
as to whether the nominated candidate shall be eligible
to be appointed as a director of the Company.
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4. For re-appointing a director of the Company, the
Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant
selection process (coupled with the relevant selection
criteria) against the Director proposed to be re-
appointed and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration, and the Board will then make a
decision as to whether the Director shall be eligible to
be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. if the
Director proposed to be re-elected is an INED who has
served the Board for more than 9 years, the Nomination
Committee shall also assess whether the INED has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules
and should be re-elected at the next general meeting of
the Company and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration.

C. Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be considered by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity

o professional knowledge and industry experience which
may be relevant to the Company

e commitment in respect of available time

° Board member diversity, including not limited to the
gender, age, ethnicity, language, cultural and educational
background, industry experience and professional

experience

° In case of a candidate for an INED of the Company, the
independence of such candidate will be assessed

1 08 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Board’s decision

The entire Board is ultimately responsible for the selection
and appointment or recommendation (as the case may be) of
candidates for the Company’s directorship, and accordingly,
shall consider the recommendations from the Nomination
Committee and make a decision as to:

1. In relation to new appointment, whether the nominated
candidate shall be eligible to be appointed as a director
of the Company to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board, or (as the case may be) to be nominated
and recommended to the Company’s shareholders for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company; and

2. In relation to re-appointment, whether the director
shall be eligible to be reappointed as a director of
the Company, and (if such director is an INED of the
Company who has served the Board for more than 9
years and whose re-appointment shall be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Company’s
shareholders under the Listing Rules) whether such INED
has remained independent in the context of the Listing
Rules and should be re-elected at the next general
meeting of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting,
and among other things, reviewed the structure, size,
composition and diversity of members of the Board, assessed
the independence of the INEDs and recommended to the
Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors as Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM”)..
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the Group’s
business and overall operations. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its

resignation or dismissal;
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reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments
contained therein;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;

considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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° reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

e reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

e  considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in
total (i.e. on 25 March 2019 and 12 August 2019 respectively)
(the “Audit Committee Meetings”) and reviewed the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the unaudited consolidated results for the six months ended 30
June 2019 of the Company, respectively, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code and
disclosure thereof in the relevant annual and interim reports, the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the 2019 AGM.
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The attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:

SREARE

BEERNAFELHREERZ
BRaNE

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HEREB (KE)
Name of Directors EEHSR BEEREEERRE
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) BEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Ko Ping Keung mREEE 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MRFELE 2/2

Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by all the Directors in

person, not by an alternate.

The Audit Committee held one meeting on 9 March 2020 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Ko Ping Keung. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;
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° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and

objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive Directors;

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions

elsewhere in the Group;

e reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and

reasonable and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and

are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her

own remuneration.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
on 25 March 2019, and reviewed and recommended to the
Board for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of
the Directors and senior management, determined the policy for
the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance
of executive Directors and approved the terms of re-appointed
directors’ remuneration.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’'s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the

remuneration packages of Executive Directors.

The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERB ()
Name of Directors EEgAF FEREESZERH
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) MRESRE () 11
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RInELE 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SEREEE 1/1

Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 9
March 2020, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors
and senior management.
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RERWE

Nomination Committee

The

Nomination Committee has been established with written

terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises

two
and

INEDs, namely Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
an executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He

Ningning is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The

principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

include, but are not limited to:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assessing the independence of the INEDs;

developing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewing the measurable objectives for implementing such
Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting on
25 March 2019, and among other things, reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of members of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors as Directors at the 2019 AGM.

The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERB (HZE)
Name of Directors EEgE FEREESBERH
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) ZEELAE (£/F) 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SREEE 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TMREFTE 11

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Company also amended and published the terms of reference
for the Nomination Committee on 26 February 2019 (please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 26 February 2019 for
details).

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 9 March
2020, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
INEDs and recommended to the Board for considering the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Hu Sanmu and
Mr. Ko Ping Keung as Directors at the forthcoming AGM, as well
as reviewed the implementation of the Nomination Policy and the
Board’s Diversity Policy.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan
Fugiang, the chief financial officer of the Company. In particular,
two members are our INEDs. Mr. Ko Ping Keung is the chairman of
the Risk Management Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

e reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

° reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;

° reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million
exclusive) as requested from time to time (the provision of
reviewing the risks associated with the purchase of wealth
management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB10 million (RMB10 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time was amended to reviewing
the risks associated with, and approving, the purchase of
wealth management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time, pursuant to the amendments
made to the funds management policy at the Risk
Management Committee meeting held on 24 March 2016);
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e reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

e  considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held two
meetings in total (i.e. on 25 March 2019 and 12 August 2019) (the
“Risk Management Committee Meetings”). At the above meetings,
the Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the
Group’s wealth management product investment in terms of
whether such investment have complied with the Group’s treasury
and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks associated
with such investment and reviewed the status such as debt asset
ratio, operating cash flow and gearing ratio of the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Risk Management
Committee Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERB ()
Name of Members REHA FEREHESBERH
Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman) mREEE (L/F) 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBRE 2/2
Mr. Fan Fugiang BEMALE 2/2

Note: The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 9
March 2020, and reviewed and assessed the Group’s wealth
management product investment in terms of whether such
investment has complied with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment, reviewed the status such as debt asset ratio, operating
cash flow and gearing ratio of the Company, and also assessed
whether the operating cash of the Group is sufficient and the
control policies of liquidity risks.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office
for Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr. Ng
Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang is three years with effect from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange : the term of
office for Mr. Ko Ping Keung is 36 months commenced from 31
May 2017. On 2 December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.

None of the Directors has a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least
once every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-
election and will continue to act as a Director throughout the
meeting at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors
to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall
be those who have been the longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant
to Article 83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Hu
Sanmu and Mr. Ko Ping Keung will retire by rotation at the AGM
and, being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. If
Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Ko Ping Keung are re-elected at the AGM,
the Company intends to renew their service contract and letter
of appointment with them respectively, the terms of both are 36
months commencing from 1 June 2020.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

EENEREEAETMHN

AERERZHMFBINENE G B
WKRMIEOA

BIBECETREBASKZTARE &
MEEANB (BEFHRINDFHH (HERZ
MANERAEFEFERS [EERE
MEBB2BEFIT] A)INEHAT :

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in RMB) FMAER (ARY) ATEE
Nil to 1,000,000 = %=1,000,0007T
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2#1,500,0007T 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the
services provided during the Year is set out below:

BB

AEE EHERETMEHMER SN
SB 2B REED -

PAAFE R 2 RIS E AT B BAD
ESHEMEBAZHMIE DT

Fee paid/payable

e ENER
RMB’000
Services R AR¥T T
Interim review and annual audit service —E-NFHEEMHLFEE
for 2019 B 7& 2,100
Total 4B 2,100*

* The amount includes service fee of RMB1,981,000 and related VAT of

RMB119,000.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Highlights of our internal control system include the
following:

e  Code of conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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° Internal audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in PRC on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Cheng Zhihua (“Mr. Cheng”) as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 21 November 2017

Mr. Cheng is an external service provider to the Company and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules). The
primary contact person between the Company and Mr. Cheng is
Mr. Fan Fugiang, the chief financial officer of the Company.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The appointment
and removal of the joint company secretaries or the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or make a motion may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by
the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or making a motion at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or making a motion at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong (Flat 1-7, 17/F, Topsail Plaza, 11 On
Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for the attention
of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial officer of the
Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s) made
or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company, at Flat 1-7, 17/F, Topsail Plaza,
11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong by post or
by email to Mr. Cheng Zhihua at tonycheng128@yahoo.com.hk or
Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.fan@ck-telecom.com, for the attention
of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial officer.
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Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary and/or the
chief financial officer will forward the communications relating to:

1.  matters within the Directors’ purview to the executive
Directors of the Company;

2. matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and customer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Group had been disclosed in the
Prospectus dated 20 November 2014 of the Company.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend
on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company, future prospects and other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Holders of the Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the Shares. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
discretion by the Board of the Company.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Company’s distributable
profits and/or reserves (including share premium account) as
permitted under the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands.
To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of
profits will not be available to be reinvested in operations of the
Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out in
any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in
the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders can
have equal and timely access to information about the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About this Report

This report is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report publicly released by Q Technology (Group) Company
Limited, which aims to disclose the relevant performance and
impact of the Group on environmental, social and governance
issues (“ESG”). For corporate governance, please refer to page 98
to 128 of this annual report.

The Board understands its responsibility of ensuring the integrity
of this report. This report discloses the performance and impact
of all material topics related to the Group and fairly illustrates
the performance of the Group on each topic. The Board has
reviewed this report and confirmed the accuracy, truthfulness and
completeness of its contents.

Reporting Guideline and Principles

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to
the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and based
on the actual conditions of the Group. This report adheres to the
reporting principle of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
“Consistency” in presenting the changes in quantitative data in a
way that allows year-on-year comparison, which truly reflects the
ESG performance of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Boundary

The data collection of this report covers the production base and
the headquarters located in Kunshan which is the principal site
of the Group’s major business activities. After considering that
the Group’s offices located in other places such as Shenzhen,
Chengdu, Taiwan and India, etc., which are of supporting nature
and their economic activities have no material influence in social
and environmental aspect, they are therefore not included in the
scope of this report.

RIR HERERRSE

BN AR &

AHREREHRME(RE)BERARSE
mipE o MmEy GRIR-HERERR
) BEBRBEAKERNRE Hek¥E
A (TESG ) HmEMBEBERAMTZE -8
EEER 1 F2HFMEBE28
Ho
EEeHpEERAREEBEMENE
T-AREREMFEEEEHENEL
HRENKARTE TRERLKE
REZENKRR EFGCERARSE
RAATER EEHZE-

HERESIRER

AREDERELHBEXI S LR
M-+t (RR e RERMEIE
5)  REAAERBEERBRBEMAK
AREBRF (B2 [E1] [
R [ =B MHmERR RIZFLBEW
TRAEINEEBERZL EERRAE
B S AR ESGR IR °

HERR

AREHBEREEABEURE LML
EEMMAERLAE HAXEETE
REESNELE M - ZEINANEEMLRN
H s B anR Y| - &l - 8B EE S8
MAERTEUEENKEDE HEH
ABEHE RETETEREATE
WA EIER -

20195 F3 EHMBE (£E) BRATF 129



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR HERERRSE

Reporting Period

The reporting period (the “Reporting Period”) is the financial year
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Feedbacks

We are committed to disclosing comprehensive and accurate ESG
information to our stakeholders and you are welcome to provide
opinions and advice on this report through the following contact
methods:

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited

Address: No. 3 Taihong Road, Hi-tech Industry Park, Kunshan,
Jiangsu Province

Email: richard.fan@ck-telecom.com
louis.so@qtechglobal.com

Website:  http://www.qgtechglobal.com/index.html
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Chairman’s Message

Dear stakeholders,

Currently, the series of challenges in global economic development
and the uncertainties in macroeconomy have caused a massive
brunt to the consumer electronics industry. Meanwhile, the
approaching 5G era will also bring immense opportunities to the
smart product development. Amid the interlacing challenges and
opportunities, we maintain unwavering confidence in the long-
term development prospect of intelligent vision industry and
believe that only by building of industrial 4.0 mass production
infrastructure, technological innovation and vertical integration of
core components and proactively fulfilling social and environmental
responsibility can the corporate sustainable development be
realised.

“Regarding environmental protection as our due
responsibilities”

We integrate environmental protection into the daily operation of
the Group and strictly manage the emission of the “three wastes”
(wastewater, flue gas and waste) and generation of noise. We
continue to devote efforts in emission reduction on the basis of
emission compliance including enhancing the utilisation of energy-
saving equipment and system, applying solar heating hot water
pump system and improving the energy-saving technology of ice
water machines during the Year.

“Upholding striver spirit”

Adhering to the principle of “respecting one’s value, cultivating
one’s potentials, elevating one’s mind”, we endeavour to help
every employee gain respect, achieve growth and actualize values.
In line with the rapid development speed of the Group, we devoted
considerable resources in staff training to enhance the level of
participation, effectiveness and convenience. We planned to
launch knowledge sharing platform in 2020 to achieve knowledge
systematisation.
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RIR HERERRSE

We deeply understand the importance of a safe production
environment to the staff. During the Year, we carried out potential
hazard inspection and supervise the rectification by relevant
departments. Addressing the possible safety accidents during
production process, such as chemical leakage and fire, we
enhance the emergency response capabilities by organising
trainings about chemical usage and treatment, fire drills, etc.

“Centring on customer experience”

“Persisting in performing the principal business in a craftsman spirit”
is one of the core values of the Group which has been guiding us to
work meticulously with great precision. Along with the development
of 5G, we are confident about the prospect of camera module and
intelligent vision industry. By continuously promoting the R&D of
new materials, new processes and new products, attaching high
importance to product quality and timely products testing, we can
ensure to provide customers with quality products while seizing the
profits brought by the development of 5G, in order to gain good
recognition of the Group’s product quality and comprehensive
service from customers. In the future, we will continue to uphold the
mission of “to illuminate the machines” and endeavour to provide
end users with a high quality integrated solution of intelligent vision
for smart mobile devices to reciprocate the customers’ trust on us.

Supplier management is a critical segment for us to ensure
product quality and the stable supply of high-quality raw materials,
laying foundation for us to stabilise high-quality production.
By extending the social and environmental requirements to
suppliers and impose comprehensive selection and assessment
on suppliers, we will facilitate the healthy and sustainable
development of the industrial chain.

Looking ahead, we would like to express our heartfelt thanks to
all stakeholders for their continuous recognition and support from
all stakeholders. We will strive to capture opportunities and make
unremitting efforts on the path of sustainable development and
continue to create greater value for stakeholders including the
cooperation partners, customers and investors!

He Ningning
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
13 April 2020
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT TmIEEZREERE

ESG Strategy ESGE B&

The Group adopts the sustainable development goals (‘SDGs”) ZARNEFEFMEAFIEHNEEXEEB
advocated by the United Nations and formulated a sustainable fZ ([A[#FEHEBE]) S4B 5K
development strategy based on its own operating conditions, in 53R iE2 Al B R B - SHIIEK
order to make contribution to facilitate the achievement of global 2 AjFEXRE BE/ELEE 8 71
sustainable development targets. Currently, we identified three H iR H=-BHEAEFZSESETEY
SDGs with significant connection to the Group’s operation, namely BiE R HFERXEBE  BIEEESEE T
Goal 8 Decent Work and Economic Growth, Goal 12 Responsible {Ef&KEIME - BiZ12B S X 8B M4
Consumption and Production and Goal 16 Peace, Justice and & » LA BI1Z16H1F « IF 3 8258 K HHE o
Strong Institutions. We will incorporate these SDGs into the K fifGELAHELXE B EZNEREA
sustainable development strategy. AEERRERE SR

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS
AFERRER

To establish a smooth communication
channel, provide a safe and decent
working environment and offer good
welfare package in order to achieve
mutual development with the staff
members

RUNGBBRE Rtz s-
BEHNIERR  ARRIEFEAN
B HETEF HRER

The connection between the sustainable development strategy of Q Technology and the SDGs of United Nations

I KA FFERRE A S B A5 EERA R E
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RIR HERERRSE

ESG Governance Structure

The Board is responsible for the supervision of the Group’'s ESG
work and assumes full responsibilities for the ESG reporting work.
The Group has established a cross-department ESG task force
which is responsible for reporting the Group’s relevant ESG work
performance to the Board on a regular basis and assisting the
Board in formulating the Group’s sustainable development strategy
and regularly reviewing ESG goals.

The ESG task force members from various departments including
the process department, the finance department, the administrative
management department, the factory affairs department, the human
resources department, the procurement centre, the market centre
and quality centre, are responsible for monitoring the ESG indicators

ESGERZEE

EEgaEEBAKEEESGIEERH
HESGER TEREE2HFEXT - A5 E
B EEPFIMESGIENE - BERE
TS FHERAEBEESGHEBE TEX
R HOhESSH TEEMNAFEEERE
By BE N F iR AT ESGHE 1Z -

ESGT /MR BiREREHE - M 75 EE -
TTHREEE WA ANBRE KB
oL AR O - TERL  mEROE
ZEBGHIT AEEREEBEARH
MESGHE 1R AKX MBI B F -

in relation to their roles and setting relevant goals.

The highest authority for ESG affairs

that is responsible for the overall
supervision and allocation of resources for
implementation of work required
ESCEERSAEHE BI2AEESR
B IREEMFELERAEER

The overall work coordinating organisation
for ESG work which shall report the ESG
work performance to the Board and assist
the Board in formulating sustainable
development strategy and reviewing goals
ESGI{ERE K - MEFSERESG
TERR BHEFSHIETHEERE

B kAt B AR

The departments of the ESG
task force members which are
responsible for implementing
the work requirements of the
Board on ESG affairs
ESGI{E AKX EHF - 8 &
g?ﬁ%@%ﬂ&e%ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬂ’ﬁ

The ESG work responsibility of Organizing the Responsible for Responsible for
each department ESG information environmental talent recruitment,
EBa P PIMESGT ERE collection and management training development
reporting work and and community
MEESGE B reporting participation and
S RER BEBRBEEIE jointly managing
REH occupational health

and safety with
the administration
department
BE A7 EI%
ERMBERAEE I
BT ER AL R B R B
EREEZE
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Responsible for
supply chain
management and
product responsibility
affairs and the
establishment of
integrity business
model with
cooperation partners

AAREREELE

mBEERE WEAE

BHEURRHER

X

T=E-

Responsible for
jointly establishing a
process system that

meets international
or national
standards with
other departments
and supervising the
implementation
Rt T S
[N 7 & BIBR X
FRIZEMTIZHIE - W
EBEMTER
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Under the coordination by the finance department, the ESG task
force collects and consolidates the information that requires to
be disclosed on a yearly basis and reports to the Board in form
of reports. The Board will, on a yearly basis, review the Group’s
relevant ESG work and performance, and the reports periodically
submitted by the ESG task force and supervise the effective
implementation of sustainable development strategies and the
alignment of the ESG strategy with the Company’s operation
strategy.

Establishment and Review of ESG Goals

Each department of the ESG task force shall set up supervision
indicators and goals addressing the issues they are in charge
of. The process department and the relevant departments will
regularly review the achievement of goals. The ESG task force of
the Group has been regularly reviewing the goals concerning the
environment, safety, supply chain and product, and periodically
reporting to the Board the achievement of goals.

Environmental indicator

AR

Safety indicator

ZEER

Supply chain indicator

&

R HERERKRE

M EBBEERE ESGLIENEETF
WERBEEMBEHRBREDS WURER
ANAEESEHER - ESHFFER
NEEESGHEE TEXRIR KESGIE/N
HEHRINERE EEUHEERS
BE ) BUEE A MESGEL RS B2 A A A
MBS A — B o

ESGE & E Mg
ESGI{F/ )M 7% B B BB PI#1 49 HL A

EHNRERLERESMBER - RIEH
HAARBE A T BB R A EX
B AREBESGI{E/N B A2 & &
ERRE 2 HEEARERBEF

m 77N

VERRAEESERBZEAR-

Product indicator

e EmER

The ESG performance supervision indicators of Q Technology
TP ESGR B B 1 1512
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R HERERKRE

ESG Risk Management

The Group regards ESG as an important part of implementation
facilitation of development strategy and it is committed to
creating value for all stakeholders. ESG task force organises
communication with stakeholders every year, including employees,
customers, investors and suppliers, to sum up their opinions on
ESG issues which have significant impact on the Group, and
identifies relevant ESG risks based on the relevant ESG risk
evaluation results from all departments.

In accordance with the requirements of the relevant ESG issue
management system, all departments regularly carry out work
evaluation, including supply risk management, talent appraisal and
environment target assessment. In consolidation of internal assessment
results and external communication feedbacks, the Group endeavours
to lower the ESG risks and capture relevant opportunities.

During the Year, through a 4-step procedure, namely identification,
prioritisation, validation and review, we identified important issues
which were closely related to the daily operation of the Group and
highly concerned by the stakeholders.

ESGE k& & 12

AEBEBESCGREB LR ZEHREE
MEZEKREBD BORZFEAEEET
BIEEE - ESGT RS FHEMMN =S
HEL AR BEEL TF REE.
HER RELMHYAKREEERRE
MESGEEME R - il L&A PIMESG
MHERR L ER - BRIREESGRE R -

EBRERPIIRRERBESCGEEEIRR R
MEK FREHIEFG eREER
REE ATRH REBEFEFT B
AR EERARINEE BB EE AL
B N REESGAR  WILEB KIS -

FAR-BEBER BF B ABAN
ERF RMENEAEEBFEER
DEBEENEREISERINEER

o

e Management of the Group verified and confirmed the material topics to be mainly

Validation X ; :
disclosed in this Report
EiX CEEEREEYL BREEURE UNEAREHEHRE
Review e Review the processes of assessing the material topics and identify areas for improvement
WG WIR T AR BRIk E =R

Upon assessment, we prioritised 27 potentially material topics
according to the stakeholders and the management of the Group
and ranked them into four levels. The 7 topics at level 1 were the
material topics of the Group. The materiality assessment results
were reviewed and approved by the management of the Group.
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Level 1 £—B X
e Ensuring product and service

‘§ quality

2 BREMNMREES

= e Anti-corruption

S RE R

B o Customer satisfaction

2 BREMBE

(—cz (i e Customer privacy protection

== EFALBRE

£ §\ﬂ£ e Supply chain management

g4 e Intellectual property

:;}4‘% prcz}ection

g gﬁé Level 3 A nﬁk@ﬁé{%%

c ™ BL=EK e Occupational safety and

S B = health

5 ) Level 4 BELT R EERE

& FEmER

8

:’E

-(,9; Impact on stakeholders’ assessment and decision making

A RSB A T ETORR T &

Level 2 £ R Level 3 £=E X Level 4 M fE R

e Customer/user health and e Green procurement e Exhaust gas management and
safety R emission reduction
BE/HAFREEZSE e Hazardous waste BE B TR KR B

e Employee communication management and e \Wastewater discharge and
channels emission reduction discharge reduction
BTAEREREE el BEE Y E I KR BE 75 7K HE PR R R

e Employee retainment and e Packaging material e Ecology protection
welfare conservation A RBARGE
BTHEKER BEMEFER e Water resources management

e Community investment e Energy management and and conservation
ftREE conservation KEIRE IR RETA

e Employee training and BERE R KEA e Non-hazardous waste
promotion e Human rights management and emission
B TEINREFH N reduction

e Employee diversification e Anti-discrimination mEREEYE R KRB
BISR%it RIEAR

e Child/forced labour preventive e Social investment
measures frERE
BT aHI4 THEEERE * Response to climate change

FE ¥ AR b
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Response to the Material Topics

EEEE M

|

Material Topics

BEEMEE

Ensuring product
and service
quality

T R E o N AR 75

BEE

The Group’s Actions in 2019
AEE2019FMITH

Analysing the technical capability of meeting the requirements
of new product development and customers

AT i R R EE an AT B N B P B SRRl e

Carrying out product quality inspection on raw materials,
production process, product finishing process and delivery
process

HEMH HEERE KmBiE XNARETEMEERR

Performing static prevention at anti-static areas and regularly
inspecting the workplace
R BETIERMBIFFENEEH TE THRBRIFR

Providing staff with static prevention training
HETETHEHESEI

Corresponding
Sections

HEEH

Quality assurance
HE2RE

Anti-corruption
RERE

Prohibiting direct or indirect solicitation or maintenance of
business relationships by way of bribery or rebate
BREEARGRE - IS A BB HERRSREFEEER

Prohibiting the staff to abuse their job positions to obtain or
illegally accept properties

BEETHABE ZERMIIDERZMY

Eliminating the undesirable phenomenon of appointment by
favouritism

HEEAERHTRAR

Encouraging the report of corruption
SRR BELTR

Regularly organising training and promotion of business ethics
EHRERFERTAEILREFEED

Building integrity
BRR R

Customer
satisfaction

EPREE

Promptly negotiating with clients and implementing measures
such as product exchange or repair, etc. if defect product is
found after delivery to the market
RNTHRER IS Bm MNEEFHE KRBRE-
=P}

EEF

Promptly making confirmation and carrying out counter
measures after receiving complaints from customers

EERTPIRFELR KRR RERE 5 5

Addressing client complaints and formulating short-term and
long-term improvement measures to fundamentally improve
customer service

HEEPRFEM FITHBARRANSHEE URALHER
F Bk 75

Quality assurance
EEIRE
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Corresponding

Material Topics The Group’s Actions in 2019 Sections
EEMEE AEBE2019FWITE HEZ®H

e  Passing the ISO/IEC27001:2013 information security
management system certification
AiBE R L2 BRI RISO/IEC27001:2013RF

e  Evaluating information risk and determining responsible
department, method and time for risk handling
S E SRk - E R EIEE T AR

Information
security
ZELRE

Customer privacy

protection

=2l &= =

FEPALBRE ° Providing staff with information security training

HETHETESLEEI

° Evaluating information security scope, direction and control
measures, etc.

HWEESRZHE T8 RIEHIE EFETHE

e  Carrying out information collection and on-site investigation on
new suppliers and requiring suppliers to perform self-assessment

HHHERETERNBERRSER Y EREREETA

° Performing quarterly and annual review on qualified suppliers
HERHENETTERFEEZ

Supply chain e Executing “Corporate Social Responsibility Agreement” and Supplier
fga”agi;”e”t “Supplier Environmental Protection Material Management r?tanag(iinent
g sEE R Agreement” with suppliers HRERE 2

HHUEHEE (CELGREHZR) k (RERRRMEEERZ)

e  Regularly assessing the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
performance of suppliers and irregularly carrying out on-site
investigation

EHFHEHERNCEL SR ECSRER T EHETRISER

° Preventing infringement of third-party patent by looking up existing
registrations on searching platform

BERRTFEaEIAERRAEMER B LRILMEAER

Intellectual

property e  Engaging patent firms to assist in screening to ensure no R&D innovation
protection infringement risk fift 55 81 %

B E R E ERAENEBBYEGS  BERDT RIZERR

e  (Offering invention rewards to patent inventors

RENZERHARKEA LD
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Material Topics

BEEMEE

Occupational
safety and health
B HEER

The Group’s Actions in 2019
REBE019FEWITEH

Holding OSHAS18001 Safety Management System Certificate,
Production Safety Standardisation Level 3 Enterprise Certificate
and Compliance Certificate of Production Safety
FFAOSHAS18001 2 X2 E R B ERE L2 AEZRELL=Rd
XRE LERHEETEER

Carrying out potential hazard inspection and performing
rectification on the potential hazard identified

ETRBEE  BRBI LR BEITER

Carrying out stringent management over procurement, storage
and stock-out process of chemicals
HEEmORE 2R HEFERETERER

Performing safety inspection on equipment on a monthly basis
BRURBETLZERE

Displaying safety risk notice and sign at places where risk exists

RAERBRE )T RE R 2 B & NIRE

Organising safety trainings such as trainings about chemical usage
and treatment, fire drill, etc.
FERCERERREEEI  EEBEER 25

Providing health check for new employees or existing employees
facing occupational hazard

HETHAHYBEXCENERE IRIBEBRER

Corresponding
Sections

HESH

Occupational
safety and health
BETrEER
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Environmental Management

The Group endeavours to minimise the impact on the environment
through measures including optimised emission management and
resources conservation. The environmental management system
of the Group is certified with 1ISO14001:2015 and the Group
has formulated a “Management Manual” which specified the
responsibilities of each department. CEO guides the organisation
of environmental and safety management system and allocates
manpower, equipment, technology and other resources from each
department to implement the internal environmental approach
and goals. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations' that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous waste.

Resources Consumption

Energy

During the Year, the total energy consumption of the Group was
approximately 571,267 GJ and energy consumption density was
approximately 1.12 GJ per thousand of products sold. Electricity was
the major energy consumption of the Group’s business, which was
used for the operation of production plants and office equipment.
During the Year, we have consumed approximately 158,140,861
kWh of electricity in total, representing an increase of approximately
11.3% as compared to that of last year, which was lower than the
growth rate of approximately 36.8% of product sales volume in the
same period. We also consumed approximately 55,189 litres gasoline
for vehicle transportation and approximately 4 tonnes of liquefied
petroleum gas for operation of factory equipment.

The manufacturing of precision components has a relatively
high requirement on the production site, such as powerful air-
conditioning and ventilation system in the clean rooms. As such,
the Group proactively adopts various energy-saving measures to
enhance energy efficiency and reduce the energy consumption
in its operation. We improved the energy-saving technology for
ice water machines, which would automatically switch on/off the
machines in the clean room according to the season in order to
reduce waste of electricity. Solar heating hot water pump system
was also installed in staff dormitories to provide staff with hot water
for showering.

! Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for laws

and regulations related to environmental management

RIR HERERRSE

AEBER IR BRALZEHEREER
BHOEBERSERE REEEHREN
FE-AEBENRREEERERBREDE
ISO14001:20155R 78 » W 1% B R 12 25T
VEEFM HHRZIMFBE-R
B LrERRRABAITRAREE
FERZIPIAN  RE - HMEER A
EENIREAHLBEZE -FRN AEE
WA EBEENEREEAERIAERE
PR Mkt s REEBERNE
EEREYNEREARBEANERERE
AEEWNEE -

BIRAEH
HER

FRA AEBENBEREREE ALY
571,267 T KEE REREETZELN A
112FKEE / THERHEEZ-E
EEEERNETERRERE BREE
BEMRAEREEE TR RMERE
P& 11#9158,140,861 T FL B » tL =418
MH11.3% BERBEHERBESERERYL
36.8% ° F 1 IR )8 #E £955,189A F+ /5 )H
EARBEEHMNOANNE R ARART
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RIR HERERRSE

The use of fuel oil for vehicles and liquefied petroleum gas for
factory would generate emission of greenhouse gas in Scope 1
(direct emission) and approximately 159 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent was emitted during the Year. The source of Scope
2 (indirect emission) was from electricity consumption and the
emission volume was approximately 111 thousand tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent. The emission density of the Group
was approximately 0.22 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per
thousand of products sold.

Water resources

The major usages of water resources of the Group were water for
production, domestic water, greening and replenishment of cooling
tower, water screens and water for spray tower. During the Year,
we consumed approximately 1,609,423 m® of municipal water,
representing an increase of approximately 10.6% as compared
to that of last year, which was lower than the growth rate of
approximately 36.8% of product sales volume in the same period.
The total water consumption density was approximately 3.17 m?
per thousand of products sold. There were no issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.

The factory affairs department recorded and analysed the
production and domestic water consumption and regularly
inspected the water pipe equipment to prevent water leakage. We
reused the wastewater generated from production in the flushing
system in toilets in replace of fresh water.

N TR S 0 S A B R
ROEHASELRE - BEREH
BOEZEHN)  FRTERE RGN
ME— S b EE-HBE - (FEHR) K
KRBENEBR BEREN/IABR
W—fEREE - AKEHREENR
0.22 AW —

X & & °
SILREE/ THERMEE
%o

KER

Kﬁlmﬁfzxﬁﬁ NEERNK-EE
FA oK~ 8k 1 0 /2 Al 32 m@%ﬁ G 7KK
BE BEHERK-FR RMEREY
1,609,423 KM A K « tb X F 380
#910.6% ERRPERBEEEREERY
36.8% ° A KBZEH BIATL K,/
THERMEEE I ETAEIGEBK
TR R o

P%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ SATEERAEERKE

FHBREKERME B LERK - HAFIE
%Eﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬁﬁmgm,ﬁﬁﬁ
RABa®RKe

Total water consumption (thousand cubic meters)

wrEkE (T XK)

2,000
1,500 1,495
1,000
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2018
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Emission Monitoring and Control

The Group strictly monitors and controls the emission of waste,
wastewater, flue gas (the “Three Wastes”) and generation of
noise and ensures that the emission is in compliance with the
requirement of statutory standards. We have set up emission
targets for emission of wastewater, exhaust gas and noise and
engaged professional third-party institutions for environmental
inspection, achieving 100% compliance emission during the Year.

Waste

The Group duly managed and disposed approximately 265.2
tonnes of hazardous waste and approximately 600 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste generated during the Year and the
emission density was approximately 0.52 kg per thousand of
products sold and 1.18 kg per thousand of products sold,
respectively. The hazardous waste was processed pursuant to
the Administrative Method for Waste Chemicals and Materials
which stipulated the classification and collection procedure of all
production departments. Hazardous waste was required to be
stored in specific containers and shall be processed by third-party
institutions recognised by the government, which shall be engaged
by the administration department. The relevant records shall be
regularly reported on the official website of the local environmental
authority of the place where the production base was located.

RIR HERERRSE

PR EEEE

AEE BT R RIEHIREEY) - BEK - RE
ROTZEED MRZ PR RERT A
REIRER R AR LEEK - BER IR
EHRER YEFZAEXF=THK
BETRRRA RFEAERI100%AE H
BEM

R

AREBRZEEBNREFANELENY
265.2 A WE B EREEY K #6000 M/ E
BEZEY) BEMBEE D R4 B0.52F =,/
THERHEEENMIA8T R/ THE®R
HEE - AEEEVR (BELERK
MBI EERE) BB HBOESEES
FIDBENMEERF BEBEEVTER
BEMITTAS  XBATEIHEBRT
RAME=Z T HRIERE - BB T
HELEREMAENIRRBNE HH
EHFR-

2018 2019 Change
Hazardous waste (tonnes) BEEREEY (LH) T—NF —E-AF - X[
Liquid waste from the water screens” KR EE R - 102.8 -
Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning FARE A E 1R KO RE 2 Bk
spray guns Z B 97.9 82.3 (15.9%)
Waste paint slag RE R A 25.0 23.5 (6.0%)
Hydrocarbons and water mixtures ~— FARBE B LA -
for ultrasonic cleaning PEEW 26.0 19.5 (25.0%)
Industrial glue and plastic tubes TEBKRBE 8.8 10.8 23.7%
Waste paint empty bucket JB% R Z= 1 6.8 10.5 54.7%
Waste alcohol wipes BB M 7.8 9.8 26.5%
Waste tooling R E - 6.0 -
Total F 172.2 265.2 54.0%

Relevant equipment installed by 2019 and recorded accordingly

MR RBR2019F R E I F 1A ST
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RIR HERERRSE

In the approximately 600 tonnes of non-hazardous waste,
approximately 75.0%, or 450 tonnes, was domestic waste, the
rest was industrial waste (construction waste and packaging
materials). Before executing contracts with contractors, we
required them to provide documents such as Treatment of Waste
Regulations ((EEWRIEEZX L)L) ) and Environmental
Guidelines ( (ZR3EJ778T) ), to ensure that they duly processed
construction waste. Non-hazardous waste including domestic
waste and packaging materials shall be classified and stored and
shall then be handled by professional institutions.

Wastewater

The Group formulated a wastewater management procedure
and handled industrial water from factory area and domestic
wastewater in staff dormitory separately, in order to ensure
the wastewater discharge was in compliance with the relevant
standards. During the Year, the wastewater we discharged
contained approximately 74 kg of chemical oxygen demand and
approximately 1kg of ammonia nitrogen wastewater pollutant.

There are respective wastewater pipes and rain water pipes in
the factories. The domestic wastewater shall be discharged to
municipal wastewater pipe network after processing in septic
tanks. Factory workers inspected the wastewater treatment
system every day and recorded the data of wastewater discharge
and reported it to the local work safety and environmental
protection department for filing on a monthly basis.

We established an industrial wastewater recycle system pursuant
to the Wastewater Recycling System Management Regulation
( CEE/K[EI A ZEEIRIEE) ), which filtered the wastewater from
cleaning mobile phone camera module products and it would
be recycled for the use in production line in order to reduce
consumption of water resources. Wastewater recycling rate was
about the same as last year, maintaining at around 90.0%. After
meeting Class | Standard of Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard ( (5K A HERIZAE) )
(GB8978-1996), the remaining
approximately 10.0% wastewater
was discharged together with
domestic wastewater through the

REIB00AMEEEEZEYHF » £975.0%3K
450 e B EEN R BB T E MR
(BEBEHNLBEDR) - RMERER
BRIAHMAMERMMIRE (BEEYERRE
TEZEPNE) M1 GRBAE) FXXH - BR
HMEEEEEEREN £FNREE
RYHEEEEEVESERT RE
REEFEMERIE -

&k

AEBEHEFEKERRER DREERK
BT REEKKREB T ESEIERENK AR
FEKBEIAT & IR E - £ TAPFIPTEE
M EEKRZHTARTIEBEFAEM
IR BRBENKITRY

TRADFSKEMBEKE 48 REK
B EBRIBERIEATBIOSKER -
BEEBRMEBKEERS §AR
BO5KBEBUR B BUR I £ Wi )T RIRH
FIfFHE -

BPEE (BRKEBRAEREINE) &
YIX¥BEKOBARG BREBXFHE
GERBEREBEKDAREERYT
BAKER B BEKE B XBETFHE
4 HEEEE KHE90.0% © T2 4910.0%RE
KEZER OF5/KEREBEUE %) (GB89I78-
19096)— IR K% - ERAETFEE/K—RIKLM
BUSKE B R )5 KR I8 R I8 -

Total volume of wastewater recycled and discharged (m?)

REKEY R B8 E (S277K)

municipal wastewater pipe network 50,000
to wastewater treatment plant for 40000
treatment. ' [4,101]
30,000 36,909
30,445 1 Total recycled volume
ER S
20,000
m Total discharged volume
10,000 s
2018 2019
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Noise

Noise pollution would be generated when the equipment of the
Group is in operation. In order to minimise the impact on the
staff and nearby residents, the Noise Management Regulation
((BZEEPEL) ) was formulated and a special department
was established to manage the relevant matters. We introduced
advanced noise prevention and control technologies and used
low-noise equipment whenever possible. Indoor noise elimination
treatment was conducted in factories with loud noise generation
and the greening in factory area was enhanced to augment the
sound absorbing effect. These measures could lower the noise by
15-30 decibel.

Flue gas

During the Year, the combustion of gasoline for vehicles emitted
a total of approximately 0.81 kg of sulphur oxide (SOx), 28.86 kg
of nitrogen oxide (NOx) and 2.12 kg of particulate matter (PM).
We encouraged staff to use public transports or ride on bikes
and regularly inspected company vehicles to ensure the exhaust
emission was in compliance with the standards. With regard to the
exhaust generated in the production process, we controlled the
emission through a series of corresponding measures in order to
reduce the impact on the environment.

Flue gas emission procedure

BRERTF

Tin-containing exhaust in vv|e|d|ng process

REBEEENS

Organic exhaust generated in the course of
spray painting, drying, washing spray guns

R HERERKRE
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B EERNEEER T 5L
REETRWOAERFZE  §IE <§é§
PEY RN ZBEEIHMMAEERABEE
AGE! |iE§'EiE”7EE|BE/ Ry 26
RREXRE ReoRBAETRET
ﬁéﬁéfi jtbu%ﬁﬁlu:uiﬂmibu
R B A R E R E15-305
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FA - BB H R E R ERL0.81A
TS L (SOx -~ 28.86 2T RE 1LY
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Treatment method

BEGE

Emission through 15m-tall emission pipes after filtering
with activated charcoal filter pad

PUB PGB IBAR BB IR - 16K B BB B K

MR EAEREFBREELNBERER

Exhaust generated from the combustion of liquefied
petroleum gas in regenerative thermal oxidiser

ERARMBERERCOARELRER

Emission through the chimney of the oxidiser

BB IE A E B HE R

Exhaust gas not collected in the course of wiping,
spray-painting and washing spray guns

RER  BEZR BAERSERRERENER

Flue gas treatment measures

FER IR e i
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R HERERKRE

Response to Environmental Emergency Incident

In order to ensure that the Group can maintain normal operation
in the event of material natural disaster, post-disaster emergency
team shall commence recovery work in accordance with the
Post-disaster Recovery Work Regulation under the guidance of
the CEO. The factory affairs department is responsible for the
procurement of power facilities and special equipment within
three months to allow the factory to resume production, while the
administration department shall arrange staff members to work
at other subsidiaries temporarily and organise the handover of
constructions in order to minimise the impact of the disaster. We
formulated emergency plans to tackle the leakage accidents in the
storage and use of dangerous chemicals for production.

Emergency plan

FHEZEE
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Talent Management

Adhering to the recruitment principle of “open recruitment, fair
competition, just assessment, merit-based recruitment”, the
Group recruits talents from various channels such as on-campus
recruitment, labour market recruitment and factory recruitment. In
line with the rapid development of the Group, we applied different
recruitment methods in a flexible manner to attract talents in order
to tackle problems such as the increase in demand for production
line workers and top-notch talents.

Lower stability of production line workers

FERERZABREMERE

Higher demand for technicians in
newly-built factory

FRIBYHRTATBRERE

Experienced and top-notch talents

required for specific positions
BHERUEZEERDmAL

R HERERKRE

ATER

FRHIARABE RFHEFE DIEFE
BESFIR] WBERA NEERBRE
BE-ATTSHRE IREEEZREER
BEREETL ARRaEBEREER
MEEERTRAEEE T X RAAT
NEHTERIEXE "amALTHERE
J:ﬂ%ﬁ:ﬁ%"

Offering referral bonus to encourage internal employees to
refer suitable candidates externally

REEERS BN E THBIN A EAR

Transferring some technicians from an old factory to the new
one through internal talent transferring procedure
BRARAT BET R BE LIRS KM A EREH K

Offering high salary to employ talents with long working
experience and industry experience as an “expert”
SHEFRLEFRA TEKREANDABER [EXR] —H

Talent recruitment problem and solution

AT R ETE R B ARIE b

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 3,745
employees (excluding staff under labour service agreements and
internship agreements). The male and female staff proportion
was approximately 73:27 and the management accounted for
approximately 13.0% of the total number of staff. With regard to the
age profile, staff aged below 30 accounted for approximately 62.0%
whereas staff aged 30-50 accounted for approximately 37.9%.
Regarding academic qualification, staff members holding university
degrees and above accounted for approximately 17.6%. During
the Year, new recruits of the Group were 2,320 in total. Total staff
turnover was 1,449 and annual turnover rate was approximately
27.9%. The reason for relatively high turnover rate was mainly
because of the lower demand for production line workers as the
Group’s development on intelligent and automatic operation during
the Year.

HZE2019F12A31H K"EBHA
7452 ET (TRELAKKEIMNE
BE) BIMELHIHN AT 27 &
BREME TH#HA13.0% FHHMmA
M 305 A TH B T154962.0% ' 30&
50516 4)37.9% - EF DM AEH  KEK
A FEBFENE T(E417.6% - R A&
B HEF AR 3208 ET MKABAHE
1,449 N FEMRKEL B27.9% ° i
ERENFTERAAFALAEEERE
REEMBELIEE WEERETINS
SKTBE o

Gender profile Age profile Professional profile Education profile
5l 5 4o FHeDM Baco BIFE 5
~0%(3A) 13.0% 17.6%
37.9%

26.6(y‘

87.0%

4 4

82.4%

m Male m <30 m Management level = University degree and above
S ® 30-50 ERR RERLERE

= Female m >50 ® Non-management level ¥ Below university degree
7k FEERR RETEE
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R HERERRSE

The Group prohibits the involvement or support of any
discrimination based on race, social status, religion, gender, etc.
in the recruitment, remuneration and promotion affairs and strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations®. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hour, rest period, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination

and other welfare and benefits.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group safeguards the employees’ reasonable level of salary
and various benefits pursuant to the requirements. We provided
employees with a salary level which shall not be lower than
the minimum wage standards as required by the local labour

AEBBERNER FM SHEEHKL
AR ERNER HEEL - FH

T Bl B 8 AT IR AR 1T & W B AR 3B <7 4R
BRBER -FR NEBEL FHAERML
MEREEHM N EE RERET T
ERE - REY - FEERE REBBUAKRE
fFBRENBHAERENEATE
HERERER

FHRER

AEERFREREEISENHFEKT

&%Eﬁﬂ°ﬁﬁﬁél%ﬁ$ﬁﬁ%
Mﬁ%ﬁﬁm?ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁi

KB E B TR EARFE KA & KF

department and shall cover the basic needs of an employee. We B8 TR = TR H X BI& T 4 jJ[]
encourage employees to enhance work-hour utilisation rate and BT fil B + LA # R s hn I 88 19 72 32 4 0
impose strict control over overtime work and provide overtime IT#{E - R ELRF N PN BESIR
reimbursement in form of compensation leave or overtime fees. In {454 - FR &L HRELEFHEKIE
addition to basic salary, we also provide performance bonus, year- #&4 N #E Fl| o
end bonus, cash rewards and other rewards and benefits.
Five insurances and Incentive share
one fund ;
5o options
i A6 12 22
%
N
Paid annual leave Free
mEFR accommodation
REETE
Night shift
allowance ﬁ Free meals at
T YT Bl work
RETIEE

Festival Qonus
i f 43 F)

2 Please see the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for the
relevant laws and regulations of employment and labour standards
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Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour

The Group forbids the employment of child labour under the age of
16 and forced labour and corresponding management procedures
were formulated. By performing face recognition on candidates,
we verify consistency of their identity cards and themselves and
confirm whether they are of suitable employment age. In the event
of discovery of child labour, we will take necessary actions to
safeguard their safety, health and educational development.

In order to ensure that the employees can work in a peaceful and
willing environment, we prohibited forced labour and checked in
every internal inspection whether there was forced labouring. If
an employee experience forced labouring, he/she can report such
event verbally or in written form to the representative of labour
union or through the opinion box. Once it is verified, the labour
union representative and the forced labour can report to the public
security bureau.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour and
there was no case related to child and forced labour.

Employee Communication

The Group attaches high importance to the opinions of staff and
strived to establish a comprehensive staff communication platform.
The staff can give feedbacks and consultation advices through
various communication channels such as opinion box, WeChat,
“Sunshine Station”, complaint hotline and mailbox, talks, etc.
Among which, by virtue of the face-to-face communication feature,
“Sunshine Station” has become the first-choice channel of the staff
to give feedbacks and suggestions. By visiting “Sunshine Station”
directly, staff members can provide opinions of improvement in
respect of canteen, catered meals, accommodation, etc., or have
mental health consultation.

We also provided staff with large staff activity centres and held
diversified cultural and sports events, such as company trip, club
activity, birthday party etc., in order to provide staff with internal
communication opportunities and help them achieve better work-
life balance, thereby allowing them to also obtain the return of
achieving industry-leading level of mental health.

RIR HERERRSE
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RIR HERERRSE

Training and Development

Adhering to the core value of “upholding striver spirit”, the Group
is committed to providing staff with skill enhancement and
career development opportunities in order to augment the work
satisfaction of the staff and actualise their personal values.

Talent Cultivation

The Group established a comprehensive pre-employment and on-
the-job training system to facilitate the learning and growth of the
staff and the establishment of talent team. For new recruits, we
provide induction training and work licence training or mentorship
training. The eligibility of induction is subject to the assessment of
training.

Induction training

Work licence training

AR E

5 5 A

EEI AR

RETNEMAERAN] OZLEER K
SEZ NN RETRMETE N MBE
HROKE UWERSEINIERER"
EREAEE-

AT EE

7R S B R 5 0 TR A B I 08
% REEIMBERRREASBKER
R o BIRHTABE B T RREAR
2 9 B AR 0 1 5 96 4R 0 A 2B o
B0 B4 ) JEFUBE I e B T
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Mentorship training
B A 5

Trainings are provided to the
staff in respect of the corporate
system, culture, occupational
safety, etc. and there are
corresponding assessments
REEHE - X BERE2FER
% 8 THETIR - W R A MEE
E1z

The production line workers shall
have work licence training and
those who pass the assessment
can obtain a work licence
SERBTHET FEEE-
BREZMNE TS FMEE

Pre-employment training
&5 BT 25 3l
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Office worker on probation

shall have mentorship training
and can only become a regular
employee after passing various
assessments including regular
staff Q&A, assessment by
relevant department and mentor
assessment
ERHAAHNRAZTETESR
EERREI ETERBEHIELS
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RIEHERERRS

In order to enhance the professional capability of the employees Ai2FFE THERE N R EHHEE K
and help them accumulate experience, we established company- B - 3 935 37 28 7 40 & 20 P9 4% &9 52 501 51
level and department-level training programmes. We understand Z| @B FHFA THE THEIIERK L E
the staff training demand and the talent weakness faced by ¥ B AAIEE - 7B ERPY & ¥ M iy
the Group by conducting research, targeted trainings could be IR SR N B KM B B W B 5%
provided by the departments. For training demand that cannot be  FIE K K IR F IR K IZHE I
satisfied internally, we would engage external experts for training & B) o BT IRIEFIN A=A X BFIE
assistance. To systemise the knowledge in trainings, we are liaising B2 8¢ {4 & T #E 1T 04+ 52120204 H#E
with software companies and plan to launch a knowledge sharing HHEI#HEZF 5 ERHETAIRTEES
platform in 2020. Employees can then acquire relevant knowledge B =B EL A B8 8 &0 3% R O fRR 77 0% -
and solution from case study by themselves and constantly LA{E#HE B H e TEIRS ©

facilitate the improvement of their own abilities.

e To provide knowledge and skill trainings corresponding to the
characteristic of each position enhancing staff competence

S8 oA R AR R IR A A A BRSO  RTT B TR (B

e To share working experience by senior employees related to work
challenges and typical cases at work, which would become internal
resources
BRAEIBBHOZTITHEY TIEHRANARRY BITELRI =
LEME T R RIE R

e Various training methods such as mentorship system, experience
sharing meeting, corporate quality and culture promotion seminar, etc.
BEH KREASEE PEMEVHEDEEZSERITER

On-the-job training
T 15 3l
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R HERERKRE

By establishing a closed-loop procedure of “Talent Appraisal —
Performance and Effectiveness Verification — Assessment and
Training”, the Group identified internal talents with high potentials
and provided them with development opportunities.

REBBAIZ AL BRI —EREX
MEE-EZLEIN] E—FHARRER
BRI =B N AA I A H IR SR

&= o

Regular qualification appraisal: To appraise the basic
abilities of the employees on an interim or annual basis
EHERBN Y ER—FRE - REINEREE

Talent Appraisal Potentials appraisal: To explore the potentials of
A7 B8 B employees by testing their ability distribution with software

To verify the appraisal
results by consolidating
staff performance and
verify whether the high-
potential talents from the Performance and
results actually possess Effectiveness
high potentials Verification
HLBIMERERRE \GRGESET &
AT BEER BERE
HHNEBNIAT REHE
EEABSEBENEE

To satisfy business development needs, the Group established dual-
path career development, providing the employees with two major
career development paths, i.e. management type and professional
or technical type. We respect the employees’ decision of career
development and the employees can choose their own career
development direction and decide to pursue promotion vertically in
the same path or switch to another based on their own strengths,
professional interests and the development plan of the Group.

Assessment
and Training

EFRIE

BERNBR BAUHEAABRINEI DM ZEET
CONEEER= P!

To identify talents with high potentials and
arrange communication with supervisors,
verify whether both parties have the same
recognition on the ability and requirements
of the employee, and consider to include
specific training requirements into the
annual training programmes

BRI L EEN AT EAPIEE N &
E%E%‘f%lﬁ’] jj&ﬁﬁj:wu%u‘a?r_
BORBETINEIFER ERGEED
ol Sk AN EEIETIE &

AREGEBERFTE FAEEERES
T ERRERE AETREEER &
EARMBEMAEBREERBT - &M
BEEETIWBEZERER BIABETT
EERERRIMC JEELT—KBE
W%ﬁﬂﬂ'ﬁﬂmﬁﬂA$E~%¥
BRECEBRRREREETEABE

Supervisor Experienced Senior Engineer
TE B R R TI2RD
Management ] ] o . Professional/
ype path Senior Engineer = &% T 2l technical type path
BEERE Engineer T2 i =¥ RTERE

Assistant Engineer B2 T 2 A

Dual-path career development

SRR EREE

1 52 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Occupational Safety and Health

The Group cares about staff members’ occupational safety
and health and has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations®. The Group has established a comprehensive
occupational health and safety system to prevent accident and
strived for providing a safe and healthy working environment for
staff members. Currently, we have received the OSHAS18001
certification, the certificate on lll-grade enterprise of work safety
standardisation and the compliance certificate in terms of work
safety. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any violation
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group on providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Create Safe Production Environment

During production, staff members face two major safety risks of
flammable and explosive as well as mechanical injury. To create
a safe and healthy production environment, the Group has
established a series of policies on safe production, which focused
on identified significant sources of risks, determined control
procedures such as target setting, management plan, contingency
plan and response. Through comprehensive corporate safety risk
assessment on factories including production areas, staff living
areas and public areas, we have formed a “List of Company
Safety Risks” with 369 items and prepared a safety risks map.
Among which, 26 were of greater risk, 54 were of general risk
and 289 were of low risk and there was no significant risk. We
used the information from the assessment to further improve safe
production standards and system and optimise management and
control measures. In addition, adhering to the safety work policy
of “Safety and Prevention First”, we inspect daily production and
system operation regularly to eliminate existing or potential safety
risks.

RIR - HERERRE

BEZ2HRER

REERIEINBELHEEE &
BIBTHBERERS B TERR
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During the Year, through potential risk investigation, we
discovered 78 potential safety risks on safe production. All
of them had been rectified and responded by corresponding
departments and all rectifications had been completed or in
progress.

FA-RMAEBREHERRELTS
Rz ERE AEREHGIY
FERFIM BN EE 2752 TM K
THEETER-

3 For relevant laws and regulations on occupational safety and health,
please refer to the section of “Laws and Regulations”

¢ BELZPEBFABAIREIMFLE DA
BIMEAR]EH

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 153



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERQRE

Chemicals management
ftEmEE

e Fully consider storage space during
procurement, understand conditions
of safe storage, production period
and storage period
HERAZSDZREFEER BRELZE
BERENGEY EERRERDAR

e Sealed storage, separate storage,
clear labelling
BHEM DRER BHER

e Keep outbound records and use
them correctly

fior B RS 8 - IEHE(E

Safety risk signs
Z2EBENES

al ° Put up safety risk signs and prepare
a standing book for signs
BREZ2RBHBTEERRE
ZERARENRE  YETREER

e Put up safety risk signs at risky spots
and sources of danger
RERE ERREERENEM

e Put up emergency evacuation maps
at eye-catching positions of all sites
&35 FrEE B i & 2R B & =5 Ak E

i

o

Safety check for equipment
RERERE

e The Factory Affairs Department
conducts monthly safety
inspection for workshop, identifies
issues and follows up rectification
results
B E AHEMETEERE
B30 ) RED DR B B AU AR R

e Carry out safety performance
inspections on specific equipment
according to their inspection
cycles
RigRRRHEBREETLES
M et R

Contingency plan

i =S EES

e Establish comprehensive
contingency plans and specific
contingency plans for various
potential safety incidents
R BAREENT DT
ERaRSRARKREEESTEAR

e | aunch the response and carry
out remedy in occurrence of
incidents
EWE LB E R T HREBER

e Analyse process of incidents and
improve contingency plans

ERAMEMBIE ERIEE

Management measures for safe production
LEEEEEEI
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Create Safety Culture

Reinforcing staff safety education is an important component
of safe production, which helps raise staff members’ safety
production awareness and emergency response capabilities. The
human resources department is responsible for providing a health
and safety training scheme. After training, staff members are
required to pass an assessment before they take up their roles. We
carry out regular trainings about chemical usage and treatment to
ensure reasonable measures are adopted by relevant personnel in
case of emergency. We hold fire drill twice a year to provide staff
members with safety and fire education and allow them to keep
abreast of knowledge such as general knowledge on fire safety,
use of fire equipment and evacuation and self-help measures.
During the Year, the Group’s total person-times that have received
safety and health training reached approximately 14,124 and total
training hours was approximately 19,077 hours.

Prevention of Occupational Diseases

The Group has developed the Management Measures on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ( (B2 R T2 &2
wHEIEMTY ) to prevent, control and eliminate occupational
diseases and protect staff members’ physical and mental health.
We fulfill disclosure obligations on occupational disease risks
in compliance with the laws, clearly inform staff members risk
factors and consequences exposing at work and provide them
with correspondence precautions. In addition, occupational health
checks are required before new staff members start working, and
health checks for current staff members exposing to occupational
risks have been arranged to monitor staff health. If occupational
risk factors in working environment are found inconsistent with
health standards, the competent department shall carry out
rectifications immediately. The administration department shall
follow up and reassess the rectifications continuously until in
conformity with national health standards.

RIR HERERRSE
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RIEHERERRE

Response to Emergency Safety Incident EHESZ2SH

To control the impact of loss and casualties from risks on the AIEHIEAREROBENGTHAEE
Group, we have established a “Contingency Plan” to effectively B2 BT (B2 EEE) - A
respond to emergency safety incidents such as earthquake and NEHHME - BIESBE2 L2 FW - 5%
explosion. In case of significant risk anomalies, we shall initiate the 4+ B KRB EEBRE  BME —F
emergency response team at once and assign responsibilites in @ ERABIE AR R B2 EE/NE  BIES
regard of department functions and professional characteristics i~ Bk BERRPFIA X BB ETTH T T1E- &

an endeavour to minimise impact of emergencies. EREEZSUNTERER/ -

Case study: Fight against COVID-19 to protect staff
RO GEHFEABREEHL RETREEM

In late January 2020, the Group started to fight the epidemic. We formed an epidemic response team with
nearly 100 staff members from administration and human resources departments. They worked overtime to
facilitate the Group’s epidemic response work. By issuing the “Notice to All Staff Members” ( (52 E&
T£) ), the Group specified management and control requirements and precautions during the epidemic.
The Group prepared for the “Q Technology Staff Prevention Knowledge Manual”( (T $A &l B T Bf & &0 3%
Fft) ) to promote epidemic prevention knowledge; and issued the “Punishment in Breach of Company’s
Requirements During Epidemic Prevention”( (R ZEHEHEER A RRENEIIIEH) ) to ensure
effective implementation of epidemic precautionary actions. Detailed epidemic precautionary measures are
as follows:

REBER2020F1 A TAITERBH ERZE - RAK I ERZ/NE TBRTHR ASEPIE T MM
EFrESENMEI - RREM(SE2RETIE) HAREBHHANERRE EEFHE: HIE (R#KHE
REIMEHNBFM UEEHEME: WEM (AR EBENERERER A FRENEIR) AR Z
TENBRER PR EBARZIRMNT

e  Carry out regular disinfection in production areas and living areas and maintain good ventilation
HEETHERMATEETERHS BRIFRIFBRRE

e  “Risk persons”, such as those who have been to major epidemic areas in the near term, are prohibited
from entering the premises of the Group

ZIFTRBRAR] MABAEZBEARBHENABEALEE

o Returning personnel are requested to be put in quarantine and observation at the established

quarantine area with meals provided
EREBMAEFTRRINGEHEETRESRS RHIEH=2

e Public areas such as the activity centre and smoking areas are closed
BREESH L RERE QLR

e  Partition plates are put at the canteen to prevent staff members from dining face-to-face
REEZERER RIEETEHHEAE
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Research and Development (R&D) Innovation

The Group has continuously promoted R&D of new products
and new processes, with an emphasis on the R&D work of
miniaturisation technology and ultra-high-end pixel camera
modules to strive for satisfying customers’ further product needs
and to provide consumers with better products and experience.
Currently, we have a total of 126 authorised and valid inventions
and utility model patents and 201 inventions and utility model
patents under review. In addition, we have a total of 5 PCT patent
applications and 1 patent application for a Korean invention.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has formulated the Intellectual Property Management
Practices ( K(ANBHERE BT EIEZEME) ) to regulate patent
application and management work. Upon filing of a project, the
patent engineer will keep in touch with the R&D engineer in charge
of the project to learn comprehensively the technology solution for
project design and carry out patent layout specifically. The Group
also screens existing technology through third-party searching
tools to prevent infringement. We will also submit relevant
information to the patent firm for secondary screening to ensure
no risk of infringement. Based on the patent rating results, we will
determine the type of patent application and award the patent
inventor with invention bonus according to patent rating. During
the Year, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations* and did not involve in any important litigation regarding
infringement of intellectual property.

4 For relevant laws and regulations on intellectual property protection,
please refer to the section of “Laws and Regulations”

RIR HERERRSE
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R HERERRSE

Supplier Management

Qualified and responsible suppliers are essential to the quality of
the products provided by us. Through enhancing development and
regular assessment and management on suppliers, we ensured
stable supply of qualified and reasonably-priced materials and
services by suppliers in long run. To timely identify procurement
risks, the Group has analysed suppliers’ resource pool, material
supply risks and procurement price regularly. If risks are found,
procurement strategies will be adjusted immediately. During the
Year, the Group had over 200 qualified suppliers, most of which
were located in Mainland China.

HEFEE

EREBEAEEMNHERERNEMAREN
EmEEEHER - BBMBRYHER
MR ENREHEFER BERHEEDR
FREH REMREHREEAR BRARE
B PR B AR 7% BE N o /s B B G Bl BR R AL
% NEEEHHEERERL - MR
R RBEB=TEHETON F&
BRER SZAFHERBREE - FA K
SEXAERHERERE-_AR K&
7 14 7 7 5 70 B K o

Sl

Investigation and
data collection on new
suppliers
HRERRER

® jnitially investigate and

assess suppliers’ basic
information, such as product
information, productivity and
equipment information
NFASHEHEFHORAR
EEWMERES Ef R
BEEE

suppliers carry out self-
evaluation by completing the
“Supplier Evaluation Form”
((HEFTEXR) )
HEEEDS (HEBTER)
T

suppliers submit relevant
certificate and information
HEBRIBBEMALES

»

On-site evaluation
BIGTE

* the procurement
department leads
the R&D, quality and
engineering departments
to form an evaluation
team and each of
the departments rate
suppliers respectively
REHEEHME B2
THTIRBKITEN
B BEPID R RRER
1%

¢ obtain final rating based

on weighting method,
eliminate unqualified
suppliers and follow

up rectification carried
out by suppliers which
require improvement
BREGHRETNN 8
ATEBEER HHER
ERHEREITIRME N

' Signing agreements
HREE

® sign agreements with
qualified suppliers
which have passed on-
site evaluation or were
exempted from on-site
evaluation
HEBRSNERERS
FENAREREEER
=3

2

¢ include environment
and social responsibility
requirements for
suppliers in terms of
agreements
HEHEFNRR e
EGESSUNIE 2

¢ the Qualified Supplier
Directory ( (A&
#44%) ) is updated with
any newly added supplier
A8 — {8 (PR R S
(BRHEREEHE)

¢ the Updated Qualified
Supplier Directory ( (&
R ER R )is
imported into the ERP
system
HEHN (AREREA
%) B AERPZ &

Screening and evaluation of suppliers

HREFEEREFR

1 58 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Quarter/annual
review on suppliers
HEGEE/
FEER

e quarter review includes

three dimensions, which
are procurement, R&D

and quality. According

to the ratings, measures
such as increasing order
amounts in priority, guiding
improvements or eliminating
will be adopted
FEEZOERE WE -8
BHE REBTRERE
SBMATERE G ENL
ERER

audit plan for next year

is formulated at the end

of each year, guidance is
required when issues arise
and improvements will be
followed up
BEERFLT —FEER
rE HRMERHELR
HE s
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Social Responsibility of Suppliers

With global social responsibility as objective, we have implemented
socially responsible procurement. Through signing the Corporate
Social Responsibility Agreements ( (b ¥t & & TH:E) ) (“‘CSR
Agreements”), we set out social responsibility requirements to be
followed by suppliers when they provide products or services to
facilitate sustainable development of the industry value chain.

The Group’s qualified supplies are required to obtain the
OHSAS18001certificate and the ISO14001 certificate and enhance
CSR system establishment and implementation in respect of
human rights, health and safety, environment protection, business
ethics, social responsibility and management according to the
signed CSR agreements. We also require qualified suppliers to list
CSR as requisite conditions or threshold criteria for the selection of
new suppliers so as to extend sustainable development to second-
tier suppliers.

We evaluate suppliers’ CSR performance regularly and carry out
on-site review from time to time. If suppliers are found to fail in
fulfilling requirements under the agreements, we will require timely
improvements by them; if supplies are found to have serious CSR
issues or fail to make timely improvements, we will reduce orders
gradually or even cancel cooperation.

RIR HERERRSE

HEBZHEEM
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RIEHERERRE

Environmental and Substance Control REYEEE

To enhance environmental and toxic and hazardous substance A/RENBIRRAMESTSEEMENE
control from the source, we have signed the Suppliers’ # KM EHEFRII (HEFRRY
Environment and Substance Management Agreements ( (fitfErs EE B k) KPR MU B EEETT
BRYBEERE) ) with suppliers to specify our expectations 4k EBIRFRETAHHE -

on the fulfilment of green and environmental responsibilities by the

suppliers.

Products provided by suppliers shall be conformed with the content requirements of prohibited
substances under the Group’s Environment and Substance Control Standards ( (GRIZ#E B EiZ%) )

HEBRHENERTTAARE CREMEEERE) T ERAMENSEEX

Green materials provided by suppliers shall be conformed with local environment laws and
regulations in the place of shipment, such as the UN’s RoHS Directive and Reach Regulation
HEFRENRRYEFTETEEMEMRRERER WK EROHSIES * ReachE %

Suppliers shall establish an environment control system for toxic and hazardous substances

HEBTRELESAEWERREEZRER

Suppliers shall provide a test report of specific toxic and hazardous substances contents

HEBTREECESASNE S ENRARS

Suppliers are encouraged to convey the contents of the agreements to second-tier suppliers

sBHERSHEATEEE _RHER

If the material batches provided by suppliers are not environmentally friendly, the Group is entitled to
request for compensation and investigate legal liability of suppliers as the case may be

FHEBEHRNYHARENRR AEEERERBELRBERERERHERET

Toxic and hazardous substance control requirements for suppliers
BEEAENEREFERFZK
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Supplier Communication

The Group is committed to maintaining sound and effective
communication with suppliers and ensure consistent information
and objective of both parties through interactions with suppliers in
respect of core value and procurement vision. In addition, we also
provide integrity training for suppliers and explained specific contents
and violation under the Anti-corruption Procurement Agreements
( (FZ¥t#REEWE) ) signed to the suppliers in order to achieve the
goals of cooperating in good faith and realising win-win situations.

Quality Assurance

The Group’s quality policy is “Standardised management,
technology innovation, continuous improvement, customer
satisfaction”. Through combining industry characteristics, we
have carried out quality management work orderly and pursued
continuous enhancement of products and service quality. During
the Year, we have obtained certification of the 1ISO9001:2015
Quality Management System and set out quality management roles
of all departments in the Quality Manual ( (& & F ) ). Among
which, the technology department is required to understand
technology and parameter requirements under contracts or
orders correctly, analyse the Group’s technology capability to
meet contracts or orders and ensure that the Group is capable to
provide products that meet customers’ requirements. The quality
department is responsible for product quality examination of raw
materials, production process, finishing process and delivery
process. All departments are responsible for their own functions
and coordinated with one another. The Group has strictly complied
with relevant laws and regulations® and was not aware of any
violation of laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group regarding health and safety, advertising, advertising and
confidentiality of products and services and remedies during the
Year.

6 For relevant laws and regulations on quality management, please refer
to the section of “Laws and Regulations”

RIR HERERRSE
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RIR HERERRSE

Protection from Electrostatics

Preventing and eliminating static electricity risks at storage and
production site play a key role in stabilising and enhancing product
yield and quality. We required class 10 clean room workshops,
fingerprint workshops and working areas involving electrostatic
discharge device within the factory to be strictly conformed with
the ESD Protection and Control Procedures ( {ESDP # 3% #i
F2F) ) and perform electrostatic protection and control works
comprehensively. Receiving electrostatic knowledge training and
education was a basic requirement for staff members working
at the anti-static work areas and also the fundamental method
to reduce static electricity risks. Staff members must receive
electrostatic protection training and pass certification. In addition,
we carried out regular examination on anti-static work areas,
checking all equipment, major areas and whether staff training was
qualified so that we could identify issues and adopt rectification
measures in a timely manner.

Disposal of Unqualified Products

We have rigidly controlled and disposed of unqualified products
(including doubt products) arising from feedstock, production and
processing and after delivery. In compliance with the Unqualified
Products Control Procedures ( (TABEREFIRF) ), we
have adopted different disposal methods for unqualified products
discovered from different processes in order to prevent unqualified
products from unexpected use or delivery.
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Handling Customers’ Complaints

We have accepted customers’ feedback and complaints sincerely,
strived for handling customers’ complaints properly in shortest
time and satisfied other requests from customers as far as we
could to maintain customers’ satisfactory.

R HERERRSE

ERRFEE

BMPEREX TP RERIRTH  F I
ERENRBHEAZERERPRF X

BERMEEPMEMER HEEP W

Confirm customers’

complaints

EHREEER

e after receiving
customers’
complaints, confirm
severity and specific
circumstances of the
events complained by
customers by method
including on-site and
email within 3 hours
BERHRE SR N3N
RAEAERE EHER
NEREFEHOBRER
ERABER

Record customers’
complaints

BEHRIR

if the events complained
by customer is true,
record such events and
notify all internal units
within 1 hour
EMBRFEHEE A
N RETT I R IR AN
& ME R B AL

Formulate and
implement
preventions and
interventions

R T B B Hfe B 3 46 i

e focusing on the quality
issues reflected by
customers’ complaints,
carry out inspections
on the same batch of
products within 1 hour
and confirm disposal
method for doubt
products
ﬁﬂ%;ﬁ&ﬁs g2 M

1N RN Z L E B

Analyse and put
forward solutions

S REHREHER

e carry out in-depth
analysis on events
reflected by customers’
complaints and
formulate short term and
long term remedies
HEFEERMAEGFE
FTRE DM 67 588 &
RIS R

%%@Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ * I FE AR AE

B2

Customer Complaint Handling Procedure

B FE i 1E

Information Security

“Meeting customers’ requirements, ensuring information security,
complying with laws and regulations as well as improving
management continuously “ is the Group’s policy direction on the
information security management. We understand that information
security is of utmost importance to the corporate management.
During the Year, the Group’s information security management

system was certified with the ISO/IEC27001:2013 standard.

By analysing the conditions of each information asset and other
factors, we identify the threats faced by all information assets
and assess the risk level and possible degree of loss. The “Risk
Management Plans” is formulated based on the assessment result
to clearly state the responsible department for risk management,
approach and time frame. Moreover, we attach great importance
to the information security training for our employees to improve
their awareness and capabilities of information security.

%/%\ié
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RIR HERERRSE

In order to test the operating effectiveness of the information
security management system and its compatibility with the Group’s
operations, we organise an internal review for the information
security scope and direction as well as the effectiveness of control
measures at least once a year, so as to continuously improve the
information security management system.

Building Integrity

The Group is committed to operating its business with fairness,
honesty, integrity and transparency, and opposes obtaining
commercial or personal benefits through, whether directly or
indirectly, bribery. In addition to complying with relevant laws and
regulations’, we have formulated internal policies including the
“Management System of Anti-Unfair Competition and Prevention
of Insider Trading” and the “Anti-Fraud Management System” to
strengthen internal integrity management and ensure a healthy and
sustainable development for the Group.

We require all staff members, including managers and directors,
to adhere to business ethics management, and always strive to
maintain a fair relationship with customers, suppliers, competitors
and the public. It is prohibited to obtain or maintain business
relationships by bribery, kickbacks or offering money to other
person in any direct or indirect way. Employees shall not take
or illegally receive properties by taking advantage of their
positions. Moreover, we have extended the integrity works to
the employment mechanism to prevent nepotism. For personnel
promotion, salary adjustment, rewards and appraisal, employees
with higher rank and having intimate relationship with the
appraisee should be avoided.

’ For anti-corruption laws and regulations, please refer to the section
headed “Law and Regulations”
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Whistle-blowing Policy

The procedure department is the Group’s anti-fraud reporting
centre, which is responsible for accepting reports and complaints
of fraudulent practice as well as recording, reporting, investigating
and following up on disciplinary violations. In order to effectively
prevent fraudulent practice, we encourage our employees
to report disciplinary violations by phone, email, etc. The
procedure department regularly checks whether the reporting
channels are functional or not. After receiving a report, the
procedure department will conduct an investigation and report
the investigation result to the management with suggestions
for rectification and treatment, so as to assist the management
in carrying out remedial measures. During the Year, the Group

RIR - HERERRE

HEEE

TIENEAEERFERRIER L
/\Exfiﬁﬁiﬁﬁ TREBRINF  HiE
WERTRETIE EBR AERRE
Rt o BB # %?ﬁ TR EMBEE
THRBEREF- HAEE LR
BREMRTAR mﬁiuﬁ EHlim & R
RERARGB BHWHRBREEE R
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TREBALEREREZ  HYERER
RAERIEE - FA > NE BN A AEAEM
ERBEBADILHE 9% MEFEREERE
WERERBEHAEEERERATLER

was not aware of any violation of laws and regulations related to S H @ JNVEW NI &5 EZR
the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
which had a significant impact on the Group, nor did it involve any
corruption cases.
Whistle-blower protection measures: BIRIRE T
 Reporting information and record is confidential e HEREREORBHRIHERE
e Whistle-blower can choose to report anonymously o BRETEREE
e Those who violate the rules to disclose the information of o ¥fEMH BERFEES Y‘%“T
whistle-blower or take revenge on the whistleblower will be EBETITERENAR 4 7"$HF§
punished accordingly or even transferred to judicial authorities REEEBRXAEHKBREIE

for handling
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RIR HERERRSE

Integrity Education

We pay great attention to integrity education. Trainings and
communication activities for professional code of ethics are
organised on a regular basis, and the anti-fraud policies and
whistle-blowing procedures are promoted though employee
manuals, rules and systems and internal networks to ensure our
employees understand the full content of anti-fraud policies and
clarify their responsibilities in complying with anti-fraud policies. We
also conduct integrity trainings and sign integrity agreements with
relevant employees. If a material fraudulent event is discovered to
be universal, we will notify all employees and make it as a warning.

Community Engagement

As a socially responsible group, we actively participate in the
construction and development of the local community and fulfil our
corporate citizenship responsibilities, focusing on caring for the
elderly, helping the disabled and the poor, caring for children, etc.
We have organized employees to make donation to Huanglong
Village, Anhui Province in assisting poverty alleviation, which
was fully recognised by the villagers. Besides, the summer camp
which we organised for the first time was highly appreciated.
By providing three meals a day and guidance to children, their
lives during summer were enriched. The Group’s voluntary work
accumulated to approximately 1,000 hours during the Year.
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RIEHERERRE

Laws and Regulations EERER
For different ESG aspects, the Group strictly complies with the T ¥ T~ R ESGE | @ 7N & B &R 1% & ~F [

applicable national laws and regulations listed in the following ZKiE A RIEREAR  WHR T K
table:

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section

fEmE BRAMNERRER HEZH

Emissions e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention Emission Monitoring

23087 and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and Control
(PEARLAMBE KRR GTREAE) PER B 1R

° Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China
(REE AR LRMBEKT A E)

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
(REARLNMBEEREEYSRIREN G

e Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(REARLRMETZESERE)

° Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(REARLMEEREERMEE)

o Directory of National Hazardous Wastes

(BRBEREDS)

o Integrated Emission Standards of Air Pollutants

(KRR DEE B FHIEE)

e Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards
COFKEE B PR 2E)

e  Standards on Storage and Pollution Control of Hazardous
Wastes

(R BE MR 1705 242 B 1R %)

e  Emission standard of air pollutants for coal-burning oil-
burning gas-fired boiler
CHRIE R RO5 R R 2E)

e Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 1: Chemical hazardous agents
(THESMEEREBEEZBERES1HD
tEFEEAER)

e Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 2: Physical agents
(IESMBEERAZREEEBREF2HS !

WIEAZ)
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RIEHERERRE

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
fEmE BRAMNERRER HEZH
Resources o Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of Resources
consumption China consumption
ER#EA (FREE AR MBS L8 TRE) BIRFER

e  Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(R EE N R RN B 18 3R A B8 1R 3 V)

Environmental and
natural resources

BERRRER

° Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(RE NRAMBIIRIRIREE)

Environment
management
RIEEHE
Response to
environmental

emergency incident
EHRERFEM

Employment

e Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARLMEL EE)

o Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARANBEE B & RE)

o Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

B (RBIEG)D

Talent management

AT EE

Health and safety
RERZZ

° Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China
(REARLMBEZ 2 4EEZE)

e Regulations of Jiangsu Province on Work Safety
CIBAL 2 EEBRDD

e  Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
CFREE NR MBS )

° Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases

(hEARAMBB RN AZE)
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RIEHERERRE

Aspect
EBm

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRANEERZER

Corresponding
Section

HEEH

Labour standards
“TEA

e  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
(RIEFERETIRE)

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Minors

(hEARKMBRKE AREZE)

Talent management-
prohibition of child and
forced labour
ATBEE-MHBEIR
SR8 T

Product
responsibilities
EmEE

° Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FEARANBEREEZE)

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests

(FEARRMBEIEE ERDREER)

° Intellectual Property Law of
the People’s Republic of China
G EYNEE SR 3 -3 57 )

e  Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARANMBERES EE)

o Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARAMBEHERE)

e Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

&8 (EABER (L) &H1)

R&D innovation
ot 2% gl

Quiality assurance

HERE

Information security
ERLE

Anti-corruption

RE&

e  Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REE NRAFBEFE)

e Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of

China
(PEARAMBRTEEHTFE)

e Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

&8 By L BRER 1R D1

Building integrity
FROZER
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RIR HERERRSE

Performance Data Summary

BERERE

Flue Gas Emissions* BERBE B>
Non-methane hydrocarbons (kg) FER GBI (AFT) 163.73 -
Sulphur oxides (SO (kg) BELY(S0) (AF) 0.81 -
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (kg) BEILWINOY (AFT) 28.86 -
Particulate matter (PM) (kg) BFERL(PM) (A T) 212 -
Wastewater Discharge BEKBERE
Total wastewater discharge BEKBERAEE (LK)

volume (m°) 4,101 3,374
Total wastewater recycling EEkEIW B E (LK)

volume (m?3) 36,909 30,445
COD discharge (kg) COD¥EpE (A ) 74.36 -
Ammonia nitrogen emissions (kg) &AHEHE (AT) 1.08 -
Waste =E2)

EPR— Non-hazardous waste EEBREY
=i Industrial waste (ton) T (AWE) 150 -

Household waste (ton) AR (AME) 450 -
Hazardous waste BEEBEY
Hydrocarbons and water mixtures — F3 7 B R 75 Y 89 4% -

for ultrasonic cleaning (ton) FOREY (AHE) 19.5 26.0
Industrial glue and hose (ton) ITEBKBE (AH) 10.8 8.8
Waste alcohol soaked wiping BB EE A (A6)

cloth (ton) 9.8 7.8
Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning BB %RER R

lances (ton) & 7B 7 B (ZAME) 82.3 97.9
Waste paint empty bucket (ton) EEmARzE R (ANE) 10.5 6.8
Waste paint slag (ton) RESMARE (AME) 23.5 25.0
Waste tooling (ton) AR (AmE) 6.0 -
Liquid waste from the water IKEBRER (ANE)

screens (ton) 102.8

Y 2018EERPFM B IR EER  AYEEAM
HiVOCR #8 - A P M & #) /35,2652
Fro 20195 #2 - PRI ESE =7 SRR
RERNHDANERRS T ESRYIEF
AR PERUE R - 58 TR ER R
HHEUWE Ay RELHNBT
BN RERBEEMOTHRERER
KA H R TTRT E -

Exhaust gas emissions in 2018 included welding waste gas, hot
exhaust air and other VOC gas, with a total emission of approximately
5,265 kg. Since 2019, we have been calculating the emissions based
on the monitoring report of the emission rate of the major pollutant,
non-methane hydrocarbons, issued by the third-party monitoring
agency during the Year, while taking into account of the production
time of factories. Emissions of SOx, NOx and PM are calculated based
on the travel distance and fuel consumption of vehicles.
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Greenhouse Gas

Total emissions (tonnes of COz¢)

Direct emissions (Scope 1)
(tonnes of CO2e)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2)
(tonnes of CO2e)

Emission intensity
(tonnes of CO2e/
’000 pcs sales volume)

Total resource consumption
Direct energy

Liquified natural gas (kg)
Gasoline (litre)

Indirect energy

Electricity consumption (kWh)

Tap water (m®)

Packaging material consumption

Carton (ton)

Tray (ton)

BERE

mEEmE
(M — i E &

EEm(BE—)
(M — SR LI EE

AP (88 =)
(W — S i EE)

PRI (W= AL
HE/THES
HEE)

VLY !

H iR

BACR AR (AT

o (271

M AR

FEE (TRE)

Bk (T 5K)

GEUER S

A6 (D)

Tray® (A87)

2019
—2-NF

111,411

159

111,252

0.22

4,000

55,189

158,140,861

1,609,423

188
100

2019% 5% EsME (@) 5R2T 171

2018
—E-N\F

142,024,989

1,455,034
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)

Employees
BT

Total headcount®

By gender

Male

Female

By professional profile
Managerial personnel
Non-managerial personnel
By age

<30

30-50

>50

By region

Mainland China

Hong Kong

By educational background
University degree and above
Below university degree

New employees - by region
Number of new employees
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Employee turnover — by region

Employee turnover number
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Employee turnover rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PN (U 3,745
Bl 2 5

sl 2,748
2z 997
BEED

ERRANE 487
FEEEBPAE 3,258
FHRDM

<30 2,322
30-50 1,420
>50 3
ih & 2 5

A 3,745
BB 0
¥l

RER FEF 660
REBATEE 3,085
FABERL-RZHEE

AR A

A 2,320
G 0
EIRKER-RHE

EIRKAH

opi 1,449
BB 0
BIRAE

A Hh 27.9%
BB -

Excluding staff under labour service agreements and internship 0

agreements.

1 72 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

TERSBIRKEIMER L



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERKRE

Community
HE

Occupational safety and
health training

Total number of trainees
Total training hours

Occupational safety and
health performance

Number of work accidents
Number of workers injured

Lost working days due to work-
related injury

Work-related fatalities
Voluntary work (hour)

BEZ2EREREE

BB AR
15 51 4 By B
BEZZREEN

TESEHEE
ATIZE A
ATIEBIEAXTIEER

AIT A
EB TR (/NEF)

14,124 -
19,077 -

24 -

1,000 -

2019% % EsME (%M FRAT {73
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RIEHERERRE

Content Index

RAERG|

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land,
waste.

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRERER EEXSHM(RIR HBERERHES) ER BEH B

A. Environmental 25

Aspect A1: General Disclosure Emission Monitoring
fEEAT: —REE and Control,
Emissions Information on: Laws and Regulations
B R (a) the policies; and BETREE YR RENIAR

BRBERIMAZERBYNR MKK LS BEEREEEEY
BEEER:
(a) B3 &
(o) BFHBEITABEATENHBERE LA
ok=g =
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Performance Data
B E N data. Summary
EEALA PE R W) R R Ko AR B B B o BIEREME
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Performance Data
B AN and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | Summary
EEAL.2 production volume, per facility). HERBERE
RERBAEME (U8R (ER)BE
(MABESEBENMN - FHEERBETE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Performance Data
AR E N where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Summary
EEA1.3 production volume, per facility). %(Tfﬁfﬁﬁzz
FMEEEEEEYEE (U8 (ER) %
B (MASES S SEBMHHE) -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Performance Data
R E X and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of |Summary
EEA1.4 production volume, per facility). HERBERE
FELRERRMBE (URE) X (MER) =
B (MAGESEM BEREFE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions Emission Monitoring
AR E N and results achieved. and Control
EEA15 R EHE R B B b R PTISRCR - HEp B i
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Emission Monitoring
B AN hazardous wastes are handled, reduction and Control
EEA1.6 initiatives and results achieved. PEnk Es 5

Ml EEEERBEZERYMNT L HEELEERN
B e R FTISRCR
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRENER EBRBHM (BIR HERERHES) EXR 4k
Aspect A2: General Disclosure Resources
EHEA2: —REE Consumption
Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water BIRFEMA
Resources and other raw materials.
BERER BRERER(BIEER KREAMEREME) B -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Performance Data
AR E N type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in Summary
EEA2.1 ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production HERBERE
volume, per facility).
REAESNEER SHEER (WE - f3d)
BREE (UTETERAE) RBE(ABES
B SERMBTE) -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per |Performance Data
BREX unit of production volume, per facility). Summary
EEA2.2 REKEREE (WMABESE N BERBEE BIBEREME
/%( o
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Resources
AR E N and results achieved. Consumption
EEA2.3 it ae IR A st B RFTERR - &R 7% A
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Resources
B R E N sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption
EEA2.4 efficiency initiatives and results achieved. BIRFEMA
F K EUGE AR S BERIERE - AREF AKX
W 5T B RFTIGHR ©
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Performance Data
BAREN products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with Summary
{EEA2.5 reference to per unit produced. HERBERE
R mAABEMENEE (AETE) R (10E
R)BEYEBENESE-
Aspect AS: General Disclosure Environmental
[EHEAS: —REE Management
The Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the RIEERE
Environment |environment and natural resources.
and Natural |FEZETABREIRAERENERTENBR -
Resources . - ) - i
EER KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities | Environmental
XRERE B E N on the environment and natural resources and Management,
$E1ZEA3.1 the actions taken to manage them. Response to

MR EHHRBENRARBERNEATERE
RKRMEEARAZENTY-

Environmental
Emergency Incident
BEED

R RERIREM

2019 F 8/ ESKPE (£E) ARAH
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RIEHERERRE

significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FRARHKRLZ2THEREMERERLBELREN:

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRENER EBRSM(BIR HERERHES) EXR 4 F
B. Social #&
Aspect B1: General Disclosure Talent Management,
[EHEB1: —RIEE Laws and Regulations
Employment |Information on: AT ERE -
EE (a) the policies; and ERERER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

FlEw Mk E BREEREA  TERE - B FERE 21

P B A8 A B B At 5 38 R 4 A1 Y -

(a) K &

(o) BFHBETABEATZENHBEEELAN

B & Ko

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age |Performance Data

AR E X group and geographical region. Summary

EEB1.1 g\i%ﬂ~1E1E£‘§,E_ﬂ~E‘@%%EE\J&WE%ME’ME%%@ HERLREE

Aspect B2: General Disclosure Occupational
BmEB2: —BEE Safety and Health,
Health and Information on: Laws and Regulations
Safety (a) the policies; and B 2 EEE-
BRERZZ (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a ER AR

(a) BE: &

(b) BTFHEITABEAZENHEBLE RS

B &Ko

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Performance Data

AR E X ATHEBEMPLTHAB KR E- Summary
E1EB2.1 BEREME

KPI B2.2 Lost working days due to work injury. Performance Data

BEAN EATEHEELXTIIERH- Summary
E1EB2.2 BBEREHE

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Occupational Safety

AR E N measures adopted, how they are implemented and Health
{EEB2.3 and monitored. BETDHEER

R PTRANB R RFERT 25 A REERT
RESET -
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BREVER EBRBHM (BIR HERERHES) EXR 3-8 i
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Training and
[EEBS: —REE Development

Development
and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training aotivities

%R

BRERE ERARATEEBITIERENMERRENERE -HRIEIES -
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Talent Management,
[E EmB4: —REE Laws and Regulations
Labour Information on: AT ER
Standards (a) the policies; and EE AR
B I AR (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAD IEE TR % T :

(a) BER s &

(o) BFHEITABERTENMABERE KR

& K o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Talent Management

RARE N practices to avoid child and forced labour. AT ER

E1ZEB4.1 i R EMNERABRE T REHET -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Talent Management
B E N practices when discovered. AT ER
E1EB4.2 %ﬁ%}i&%&fﬁéﬁ’\ 50U E B A BB O PTERER &Y 25
WAR ©

Aspect B5: General Disclosure Supplier Management
& EB5: —REE HERMER
Supply Chain |Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
Management |chain.
HrEgEEE B M ESE A IRIE KA & RBRIBUR o

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
AR E N suppliers, number of suppliers where the
#54ZB5.2 practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.
B AR AHEEENEN  mERTTHE BB
HEFHE ULBREMNNMITRERT -

Supplier Management

HrEmE e
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significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRENER EBRSM(BIR HERERHES) EXR 4 F

Aspect B6: General Disclosure R&D Innovation,

& H B6: —REE Quality Assurance,
Product Information on: Information Security,
Responsibility | (a) the policies; and Laws and Regulations
ERER (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a MR EERFE -

ERRE EBER

FHEFMEHERMNBRENREEREZY BEE RERMEBEEUR
RO ER
(a) BUR &
(o) BFHEITABEARTENABERE KR
& £ o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Quality Assurance
B E X complaints received and how they are dealt with. |& &% &
1E1ZB6.2 RERNERNMRBOIRFEEAREH T XA
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and |R&D Innovation
AREN protecting intellectual property rights. it 2% &1 37
1E12B6.3 Mg ERRENBEREANED -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Quality Assurance
AR E N recall procedures. HE2RFEF
1E1£B6.4 At EEmTEREREMEKEF -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Information Security
AR E N privacy policies, how they are implemented and EELTE
51EB6.5 monitored.
it E B & ERHRE RILBBOR - ARBEHITR
ERFE-
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRENER EBRBHM (BIR HERERHES) EXR 4k
Aspect B7: General Disclosure Building Integrity,
[EEB7: — R E Laws and Regulations
g)g:gtlon (a) the policies; and
7/
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B LR PR HFERESN:
(a) L% &
(b) BFHEITABEAZENHEAEERRD
B o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding No legal proceedings
B E N corrupt practices brought against the issuer or regarding corruption
EEB7.1 its employees during the reporting period and the | occurred during the
outcomes of the cases. Year
RERMAHBTAXEEERHTEEANE |FREAFEGFLEH
IR AARYAEA RFRER-
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Building Integrity
RARE N blowing procedures, how they are implemented RRER
{EEB7.2 and monitored.
TSR R RMET  AREERNITRERS
VA e
Aspect BS8: General Disclosure Community
[ EBS: —REE Engagement
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Y
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
HERE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BN EBESERTHEEMELRFTENRREREEDHEEE
A8 ) & MR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
BEAEN ErEREE - Engagement
1512 B8.1 flm 2w
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
BREEN EEIHEMBAER - Engagement
1E1EB8.2 HE2m
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

e

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 190 to 344, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

1 80 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BB RS

ERHNER

HZPERBEESGHEAE ([EREF
fng]) | (EBEERD ([&
BB ER]) EITE - B AFE
AIIETAENEECEARNRS [ZREE
REFFAHMBHRRAAENEE] —
EiFR Rl - RIBF B GETED S RM A
(BXEgTEERTR) ([578)1) &F
SHETIMNERMFFAHYBERE
BEENERES RMABUNESEE I
EEBEZTERERLTHFHNEME
RERET - -RMBRE RAMESHNE
AAREEEEMEE AR MNERRE
A -

FARESTEIR

ARBETFEEEREBERMANFEEH
B REYAHRAHHHRENESR
REENFHE -RFFTHEEELMFT
EEAHUBHRRLRMHARRKETR
BH-BMATeHZETRERERN
BRe
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BB

Timing of revenue recognition

Wy 555 72 52 B b

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(u) on page 239.
DA IR FEIRE N T2 R 2398 By G5 R MT5F1(u)

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESTNEELE

The Group’s revenue arises from the sales of camera and
fingerprint recognition modules.

BERENRREEBREBELIEEERRENHE -

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and manufactures products based
on purchase orders. Products are delivered to a location
designated by the respective customer where they undergo
a quality examination. After satisfactory completion of
the quality examination the control over the products is
considered to have been transferred to the respective
customer and revenue is recognised.
EEFEXTIBRFAIVIEREE RS URERBIIES
EEm EmXNERBEEFPNE T ITETER - FE
mEKMEE BREMEHEEERCERERBETS
TR M A
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Qur audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

B R EERRSHN BT EFEEATIE

e inspecting contracts with customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of
the sale transactions, including the terms of
delivery and goods acceptance and any sales
return arrangements, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s MERBERTFPHNAEL THEEXZINER
BREEMER KB IERT AR EFHERE
ZH U ERENKREEREEESHA
BITEFHERINENR:



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEESSEE EEPNERELE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a e  assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific

key audit matter because revenue is one of the key revenue transactions around the financial year
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is end had been recognised in the appropriate
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition financial period on the basis of the terms
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or of sale as set out in the sales contracts by
expectations. comparing the details in the relevant sales
BMENEERERIEABRENSIE EARNEEREE invoices to customers’ acceptance documents
EEEEMNBRERy — GEEREATEIFEEE or customers’ inventory records which are
S HA B R A s T R S B Y (&1 B 3 s o available from shared platforms the customers

have with the Group;

o  HHMBFERMILNEE RS SETHER
B HEAHEEEFBEREPBKAFRE
EEEREFPHAZTYA FNFRELEEZYE &
MR EREHESRTNHEERERS
B B IS EA R R

o

e scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify sales returns and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial
period; and

s REFHEBHREMIESENH JFPHERE Wig
BRI AR AR e i 2
BHEEE I BEEER &

=
BR

‘EE%, /

e scrutinising all the sales journals raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which
met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.

s REREHAMBNHEDH RESETAR
1R AR R ER 5 SR A AN I B AR 8 ST FF I SO AR o
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BB

Loss allowance for trade receivables

EZRURENBERRE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(k)(i) on page 227.
DS GIIFEIREZN 16 R E227 B 0y &5 I F M1 5E1(K)()

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESTNEELE

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross trade receivables
totalled RMB4,779,052,000, against which allowances of
RMB1,297,000 were recorded.
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ESEEZRKFIELS
RANRM4,779,052,0007T " $THZHIAD AREBARK
1,297,0007T °

The Group’s allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the expected credit losses to be incurred, which
is estimated by taking into account the ageing of overdue
balances, the repayment history of the Group’s individual
customers, current market conditions and customer-
specific conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.
EXEENEREEBYHERBEENERBRNMTIRE
HeAFtNBRER T APRKRENKRR EEBRSETEFPHN
BYRg RITNMBSREUREFOREBR  ELEE
BERAZE P RERRE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance
for trade receivables included the following:

BT HESRRFENBERENETIEFEE
AT :

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit
losses;

s THEREHEFEEN BRAEWKLRBEHEE
BEGTHENERASZES YFEELER
BB R AT T BT R AL

e assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables ageing
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with underlying sales invoices;

s MEMEEBEHEWHIAHENRMEZE  UF
8 5 W RIA MR i W5 8 0 2 5 B
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The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

BB RS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEGTPNEES X

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the Group’s customers are mainly
smartphone manufacturers which are facing challenges in
terms of their profitability due to the competitive market
environment, which increases the inherent uncertainty in
assessing the loss allowance for trade receivables, and
because determining the level of allowances requires the
exercise of significant management judgement.

B E SRUFIEBRBEEERBRENFE SEARE
SENEFFERERTFHRERE  RERMRNTISHF M
EFREZ NN ERE - Mg T EEEFEE SR
REEBRBHENEETEEN  TEAEEREKTEAITR
BBREEEE FIE -

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individually material and
all overdue trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowances recognised by
management for these balances with reference
to the debtors’ financial condition, the industry
in which the debtors are operating, the ageing
of overdue balances and historical and post
year end payment records; and
THREBEBHEBEHEARMEAHRE HEK
FIEREA AT RE N ER WRB2EED
AR BTSN - BTSN RIS PR EE B1T 5 » B AR
MR  BERPRERTE UTHEEE
AZERBERNREE KX

inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances at
31 December 2019.

HE T - NF+ZA=+—HESHEWHE
B MEBREEPRYBELBZNHERIE
Mo
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

BB RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Chu Fai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

9 March 2020

BB RS
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
effERkHMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR%I7R)

2019 2018
—B-NF A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B at AR® T AREFIT
(Note)
(P 7E)
Revenue Wz 2 13,169,678 8,135,161
Cost of sales 55 A (11,989,806) (7,782,053)
Gross profit E A 1,179,872 353,108
Other revenue H bz 3 43,013 133,113
Other net loss H b FEE 3 (63,839) (50,223)
Selling and distribution expenses #5% & 5 5 % (14,946) (18,562)
Administrative and other TR B b A& & 5 S
operating expenses (128,140) (81,201)
Research and development 85 =2
expenses (396,244) (266,198)
Profit from operations Fe-pnd 619,716 70,037
Finance costs b & B A 4(a) (52,811) (44,146)
Share of profit/(loss) of FEREEE ATDEN, (EE)
an associate 39,996 (24,561)
Profit before taxation R %4 A1 % F 4 606,901 1,330
Income tax Frig®t 5 (64,529) 13,069
Profit for the year FRER 542,372 14,399
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Bt ERREMEEKER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ —T—hF+-_A=1+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR 5I7R)

2019 2018
—2-NF A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt it AR T ARKETTT
(Note)
CPf7E)
Attributable to: B8

Equity shareholders of RRRREREE A
the Company 542,372 14,399
Profit for the year FRBEF 542,372 14,399
Earnings per share BRER RMB Cents RMB Cents
AR® D AR
Basic BSSVIN 9 47.6 1.3
Diluted e 9 47.2 1.3

Note: The group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The accompanying notes on pages 198 to 344 form part of
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year
are set out in note 29(b).

fist: AEEER _ZE-NF—A—BER
BETEWEERERBRBRTBRE
RERIEA65R - IRIFEZ A LBRERAL
EES RHfEE1(C) °

FE198E344E W BE M M B AN 3% F 1
BmEAN &0 BN ARRRERA
ARIEFERE N 2 BE 2 7B HN I &
29(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
effERkHMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR%I7R)

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B at ARE T AR¥ETTT
(Note)
(P 7E)
Profit for the year FREF 542,372 14,399
Other comprehensive income HFREMEANES (BRHERE
for the year (after tax and FoEAER):
reclassification adjustments): 8
ltem that may be reclassified HigesgrBEEEN
subsequently to profit or loss: BH:
- Exchange differences on —IRE R B A AN B A
translation of the financial EERGE €
statements of subsidiaries HGE H Z 5
outside the Mainland China (3,842) (23,667)
Other comprehensive income HFREMEZEUE
for the year (3,842) (23,667)
Total comprehensive income  FREZHEUFELEHE
for the year 538,530 (9,268)
Attributable to: 58
Equity shareholders of RRRIREREE A
the Company 538,530 (9,268)
Total comprehensive income  FRE2HEUFEEE
for the year 538,530 (9,268)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using Mii: ZEBEER T —NF—A—HEHR

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the CIEFTRPFERERBERYERE
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). HERIZE165E - IRIBZ 75 LEEE R I

BEY| - BEE10) -

The accompanying notes on pages 198 to 344 form part of these 55 198% 344 B & P Y 7E 18 Ak 7% %5 01 15
financial statements. Ham)—HMm e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SO IR R

as at 31 December 2019 R - ZE—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2019 2018
=E-hF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR® T AREFT
(Note)
(HF5E)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LES N 10 2,703,926 1,888,524
Interest in an associate i ) W/NCT = ok 12 433,190 229,407
Lease prepayments HEENFIA 13 - 51,790
Intangible assets EmEE 14 4,895 1,427
Deferred tax assets EEBIREE 28(c) 43,504 21,985
Prepayment for acquisition of W IEREN & ER TR SKIB
non-current assets 64,476 10,770
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 21,917 7,050
3,271,908 2,210,953
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 1,913,368 703,818
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H A & WKIR 16 4,919,289 3,031,367
Derivative financial assets ITETREE 17 26,472 105,251
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 18 92,647 288,302
Cash and cash equivalents BeMR2ZEEY 19 411,517 99,920
7,363,293 4,228,658
Current liabilities REEE
Short-term bank borrowings HMHIRITER 20 1,269,548 1,178,241
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A& RIA 21 5,934,662 3,061,432
Contract liabilities BHAER 22 257,072 28,391
Derivative financial liabilities tEeRBE 17 9,142 201
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 23,355 -
Current tax payable J& <t B AT 1R 28(a) 49,387 1,835
7,543,166 4,270,100
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (179,873) (41,442)
Total assets less HEERABERE
current liabilities 3,092,035 2,169,511

(AAR®ZIR)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOFF BRI &R

as at 31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR%I7R)

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term bank borrowings REJIRITIER
Lease liabilities HEAE
Deferred income PRIE WA
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEFE
NET ASSETS BEEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXARRE
Share Capital B A
Reserves G

TOTAL EQUITY B

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 09
March 2020.

He Ningning .
i i Directors
Wang Jiangiang

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The accompanying notes on pages 198 to 344 form part of these
financial statements.
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2019 2018

—B-hF —E-NF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaiE AR®TR ARETT
(Note)

(Bi&E)

23 59,237 -
24 30,786 -
25 129,655 65,648
28(c) 5,402 428
225,080 66,076

2,866,955 2,108,435

29 9,248 9,022
29 2,857,707 2,094,413
2,866,955 2,103,435

KEFeN _ T _TF=ANBHER
T2 o

i

am

s =

Bt AREESR-F—hE—B—B
(1 ST T I R S
T
B BRI -
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T—HIEFE
(AAR®ZIR)

A

RS BR
—naEt

(Expressed in Renminbi)

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BORSRER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR%I7R)

Note
liogZ3

Operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated/(used in)
from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of
non-current assets

(Increase)/decrease in deposits

Payment for capital injection
in an associate

Net cash inflow of purchase
and redemption of other
financial assets

Net proceeds from derivative
financial instruments

Payment for purchase of
intangible assets

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

BEzEy

wEmE/ (A RE
19(b)
ETETEM

RETBHRE (FA)
BEFH

REED
EUEN- L

18 3R
B E R B A
TR CGEmM),/ R
BB E AR AR

12

o I % B L o L E
REFRA
(TSR RRFT B FE

BEEVEENA

2 A E

REED (A FiE
B&FH
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2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
(Note)

(M$5E)
2,432,967 (159,754)
(33,416) (12,751)
2,399,551 (172,505)
23,372 3,529
(1,156,255) (493,496)
(1,876) 720
(155,799) -

- 873,486

8,820 4,650
(4,026) (28,133)
14,277 25,765
(1,271,487) 386,521



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHIRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ —T—hF+-_A=1+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR 5I7R)

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt i AR TR AREFTT
(Note)
(P 7E)
Financing activities RLESEE
Capital element of lease ENEEHSEREER
rentals paid 19(c) (13,110) -
Interest element of ENHEHSREBEE
lease rentals paid 19(c) (1,230) -
Proceeds from share issued RIS R AT B BT IR
under shares option scheme P15 5878 29(c)(ii) 39,784 54,593
Proceeds from share issued BLER & BT AR 0 FT 1S BUA
for the Placement 29(c)(iii) 182,155 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 1T & P15 2018 19(c) 1,921,727 1,537,615
Repayment of bank borrowings  {Ei& $R1THE & 19(c) (3,008,131) (1,883,980)
Decrease/(Increase) in BRI R
pledged bank deposits wA () 115,009 (156,232)
Other interest paid Hib 2 52 (52,943) (44,379)
Dividends paid BB 29(b)(ii) - (91,622)
Net cash used in RETBMARESFE
financing activities (816,739) (584,005)
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRESEEY
cash and cash equivalents #wm,/ R ) B8 311,325 (369,989)
Cash and cash equivalents BR—B—HHEER
at 1 January BEEEY 99,920 464,982
Effect of foreign exchange ERESHNEE
rate changes 272 4,927
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—88K
at 31 December BHeRREEEY 19(a) 411,517 99,920
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using MitE: AEBEER _ZE—NLFE— A —BEFEH

RIETEPEERERABERIM GRS
FRIEA65E - IRIBEZ A LBRERAL
EES - RHf () °

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

F198E 344 B MBEMN I T B X &
MR — 21D o

f1 75

The accompanying notes on pages 198 to 344 form part of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=xiid W‘iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company, its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in an associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(continued)

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the Mainland China. The functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and BVI is
US dollars. The functional currency of the Company’s
subsidiary in Taiwan is New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”). The
functional currency of the Company’s subsidiary in India
is Indian Rupee (“INR”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial instruments (note 1(f)) are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Notwithstanding the Group’s net current liabilities of
RMB179,873,000 as at 31 December 2019, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Company’s board of
directors considered that the Groups has unutilised
banking facilities of RMB1,562,788,000 as of 31
December 2019, and that the Group is able to generate
adequate cash flow to finance the working capital and
capital expenditure requirements for the twelve months
ending 31 December 2020 based on the cash flow
forecast of the Group for the year 31 December 2020.
The directors are of the opinion that the assumptions
and sensitivities which are included in the cash flow
forecast are reasonable and that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 34.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16, Leases, and
a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEE (2Z)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c) BFtBUREE (&)

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15, Operating leases
— incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance
of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It
introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from IAS
17 substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17.
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

TESTHBE (&)

(c) Bt BEEE (&

B BHREERF165 HE

(#&)

previous accounting policies and the transition options N

M — SRERIIMT

applied are set out below:

a

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. IFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the
use of an identified asset for a period of time, which
may be determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both
the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in IFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019,
the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under IAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under IFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE ()

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c) BFtBUREE (&)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB BRI F168 HE

(#&)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by IAS 17.
Instead, the group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets which are exempt. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are
primarily in relation to property, plant and equipment
as disclosed in note 31(b). For an explanation of
how the group applies lessee accounting, see note

1().

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease
liabilities for the leases previously classified as
operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 January
2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease payments was
approximately 3.46%.
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of IFRS
16:

() the group elected not to apply the
requirements of IFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets to leases for which the remaining lease
term ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31 December
2019;

(i)  when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of IFRS 16, the group
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of underlying asset in a
similar economic environment); and

(i) when measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application of IFRS 16, the group
relied on the previous assessment for onerous
contract provisions as at 31 December 2018
as an alternative to performing an impairment
review.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 31(b) as at 31
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

1 EREFHHE(E)
() EHHEREH (&)

B BHEERF165 HE
(#&)

b ABARBIELERBRE
(%)

T &R A M EE31(0)FT B B R
=T )/\FFTZA=1t—H
M EHERER_T— 1
F-A-BHEANEHERRE
Z BR) K5 R B HT R -

1 January
2019
“EB-hF

—HR—H
RMB’000
AR®ET T

Operating lease commitments at
31 December 2018
Less: commitments relating to
leases exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other
leases with remaining lease
term ending on or before
31 December 2019

Less: total future interest expenses

Present value of remaining lease
payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate and
total lease liabilities recognised
at 1 January 2019

R-ZE-N\F+-_A=1+—HH®

RETHEAE

8,506
B RRERNMENIEE R R RE:
—RHAE B THBAR
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ZAEmKEmAE
(1,657)
6,849
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

TESTHBE (&)

(c) Bt BEEE (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BRI EERF168 HE

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have been
recognised at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the statement of financial position at 31 December
2018.

So far as the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16
on leases previously classified as finance leases
is concerned, the Group is not required to make
any adjustments at the date of initial application of
IFRS 16, other than changing the captions for the
balances. Accordingly, instead of “obligations under
finance leases”, these amounts are included within
“lease liabilities”, and the depreciated carrying
amount of the corresponding leased assets is
identified as right-of-use assets. There is no impact
on the opening balance of equity.
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

TESTHHE (&)

(c) BFtBUREE (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB BRI F168 HE

(%)

b Lessee accounting and transitional impact b AEHBACIHEERERBEY

(continued) Z (&)

The following table summarises the impacts of the TRBMA AR EEE G
A T 2% BR A4 B B B 75 i o 4

AIZE165k c & -

adoption of IFRS 16 on the group’s consolidated
statement of financial position:

Carrying Carrying
amount at Capitalisation amount at
31 December of operating 1 January
2018 lease contracts 2019
RZZ—N\F RZE-NEF
+ZA=+—H Ke2HE —A—H
ZIREE BHEX ZIREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Line items in the THRNEARREREEDE
consolidated 16 L2 BB EM
statement of financial ~ RKER :
position impacted by
the adoption of
IFRS 16:
Property, plant and ER
equipment 1,888,524 58,182 1,946,706
Lease prepayments HERMNRE 51,790 (51,790) -
Total non-current assets ¥ HBEELME 2,210,953 6,392 2,217,345
Lease liabilities (current) ~ FE & & (1) - (3,319) (3,319)
Current liabilities RBAE 4,270,100 (3,319) 4,266,781
Net current liabilites ~ REIEEFE (41,442) (3,319) (44,761)
Total assets less BEEHRBEE
current liabilities 2,169,511 3,073 2,172,584
Lease liabilities HEEE (GEAE)
(non-current) - (3,073) (3,073)
Total non-current FRBeEARE
liabilities 66,076 (3,073) 63,003
Net assets BEEFE 2,103,435 - 2,103,435
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

TESTHBE (&)

(c) Bt BEEE (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BRI EERF168 HE

Impact on the financial result, segment results and
cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as
a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. This results
in a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as compared to the results if IAS 17
had been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest
element (see note 19(c)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows, similar to
how leases previously classified as finance leases
under IAS 17 were treated, rather than as operating
cash outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under IAS 17. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption of IFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the cash flow statement (see note
19(d)).
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE ()

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c) BFtBUREE (&)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB BRI F168 HE

(#&)

Impact on the financial result, segment results and
cash flows of the Group (continued)

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
the Group’s financial result, segment results and
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019,
by adjusting the amounts reported under IFRS

HEEEYFFE 7 EIRE
KRBz nBEZZE (&)

T 3R B R B A B PR B S R s
HHFIGREANEEEE
—E-AF+ZHA=1+—H
IEFERNMBREE  DE %
BERReROMHFTE H

AR BRE B R %R
HFERE 1651‘? R&FHEE

16 in these consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts

that would have been recognised under IAS 17 if HmREBHENLSEE LR
this superseded standard had continued to apply in BEEEe .ﬁ' Q’E Bl 81757 18
2019 instead of IFRS 16, and by comparing these RAHEtERESENEHIHE
hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018 (MR —ZE—hFHEER
corresponding amounts which were prepared under WEARHEER et ERE
IAS 17. 175 AR B BB BT i &5
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EFtBX2E (£)
IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB FEEAFE165 HE
(#)
¢ Impact on the financial result, segment results and c HAEREEYBFREE SEEE
cash flows of the Group (continued) LB REZFE (E)

2019 2018
%-hE It Syit:2

Deduct;
Estimated

amounts
Add back: relatedto  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts IFRS 16 operating amounts to amounts
reported  depreciation lease asif ~ for 2019 as reported for
under  andinterest  under IAS 17 if under 2018 under
IFRS 16 expense (note 1) IAS 17 IAS 17

IER LS
BREEN  NREER
REEREE  NE:ER  F7%EE R ERE]
RERA  MEESEN  SEREN  BUSeiy REEEE
K2R FI6RAER #iteE  ZE-NF it
&8 AERX (W) BReHE SERAL

(A) (B) (€ (D=A+B-C)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET R ARET R ARET R ARBTT

Financial result for the year ended X RAEBEFHREEH
31 December 2019 impacted by ~ F16EHENEZ

the adoption of IFRS 16; ZE-hEtZAZt-R
LEEHBEE:
Profit from operations BEEA 619,716 13,659 14,340 619,035 70,097
Finance costs BEME (52,811) 1230 - (51581) (44,146)
Profit before taxation KHAER 606,901 14,889 14,340 607,450 1,330
Profit for the year EREF 542,372 14,889 14,340 542,921 14,399
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BFtHXEH (&2)
IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB FEERFE165 HE
(#&)
¢ Impact on the financial result, segment results and c YAREFHBEE SEEE
cash flows of the Group (continued) RBEeREZFE (F)

2019 2018
Z%-hE It SitE
Estimated

amounts
related to

operating  Hypothetical

Amounts leases amounts Compared
reported as if under for 2019 as to amounts
under IAS 17 (AT reported under
IFRS 16 (notes 1&2) [AS 17 IAS 17
nREER

G MR EER
REER  E17%%E git 2l EREEAR
ABEEA REREN  F1TREHN R
F16H 2R #iteE  ZEF-0F EElEEE
£ (K1 R2) BReH gl

(A) B) (C=A+B)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T AREFT

Line items in the consolidated cash flow ~ ZFMEBHEREL RS
statement for the year ended 31 December ~ £16%FENEE
2019 impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16:  —Z-A&+-F=1-H

LEENEHEETERER
Net cash generated from/{used in) operations ~ &&F8/ (F1F) B 258 2,432,967 (14,340) 2,418,627 (159,754)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBAE/ (KR RLRE
operating activities 2,399,551 (14,340) 2,385,211 (172,505)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BBEHMETER (13,110) 13,110 - -
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERfgHNSER (1,230 1230 - -
Net cash used in financing activities RETBHAREEE (816,739) 14,340 (802,399) (584,005)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

C

Impact on the financial result, segment results and

cash flows of the Group (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the cash
flows in 2019 that relate to leases which would
have been classified as operating leases, if IAS 17
had still applied in 2019. This estimate assumes
that there were no differences between rentals
and cash flows and that all of the new leases
entered into in 2019 would have been classified
as operating leases under IAS 17, if IAS 17 had
still applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is
ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order
to compute hypothetical amounts of net cash
generated from operating activities and net
cash used in financing activities as if IAS 17 still
applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

(e)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-Group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(K)(ii)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

over its management,

31 December 2019 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
SEEFIN LARBIIR)

1 EBSFHXR(E)

(d) HEBA A

(e)

B AREASEESNELR -
HAKREERLBEESEKEB
e ERN A #o®R  WHEE
NEBHZEBNENTEX
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B EERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (note 1(K)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate (continued)

(f)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associate is stated at cost less
impairment losses (note 1(k)(ii))

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

BB R MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note
1(k)(ii), include the following items:

— interest in buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest;

—  items of plant and equipment; and

— interests in leasehold land where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest; and

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and leases
of underlying plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(note 1(w)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land 50 years
—  Buildings 20 years
—  Machinery 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3 -5 years

- Right-of-use assets unexpired term of lease
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are
as follows:

Residual value rates (%)

Leasehold land 0%
Buildings 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Lease prepayments

Prior to 1 January 2019, lease prepayments represent
cost of acquiring land use rights paid to the PRC’s
governmental authorities. Land use rights are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (note 1(K)(ii)). Amortisation is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the respective periods
of the rights which are 50 years.

From 1 January 2019, lease prepayments were
reclassified to right-of-use assets for presentation
purpose upon initial application of IFRS 16(note 1(c)).

BB R MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 1(k)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (note

1(K)(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Computer software is
amortised from the date they are available for the use for
5 years.

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily buildings.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

FEEFBX (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
() Leased assets (continued) () HEBE£Z)
As a lessee (continued) ERRHEAN ()

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued) A B-ZFE—NF—HA—HEE#EH

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(g),

1(h) and 1(K)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019 — &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

B)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets excluding
lease prepayments in “property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately

in the statement of financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as operating
leases.
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

FEEFBX (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

HEEE (&)

() Leased assets (continued) )]
As a lessee (continued) ERRHEAN ()

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 B) RZFE—-NF—H—-Hi#AH

(continued)

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, were recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it was likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 1(g). Impairment losses were accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(k)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments were charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals were charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they were incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

(continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they were
incurred.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and pledged bank deposits).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the
ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments ()
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit

losses. Credit losses are measured

as the present

value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows

that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using

the following discount rates where the effect of

discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other

receivables: effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition or an approximation

thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective

interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which

the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

U

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

U

For all other financial instruments (including cash

and cash equivalents, and pledged bank deposits),

the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to

12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant

increase in credit risk of the financial instrument

since initial recognition, in which

case the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial

instrument has increased significantly since initial

recognition, the Group compares the risk of default

occurring on the financial instrument assessed at

the reporting date with that assessed at the date of

initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the

Group considers that a default event

occurs when (i)

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations

to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group

to actions such as realising security

(if any is held);

or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The

Group considers both quantitative

and qualitative

information that is reasonable and supportable,

including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(u)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
— lease prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates in
the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
Group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or Group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

(continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see note 1(K)(i)).

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(n)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(K)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
1(w)).
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(P)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses
(ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

TESTHHE (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
EBEEA (&)

(1 Employee benefits (continued) (n

(i) Share-based payments (i) UG BEE

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

TESTHHE (&)

(s) Frie®i(#&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(s) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

FEEFBX (&)

(s) FRs®L (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(s) Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—NE+-A=1+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of good’s

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfiilment of a contract
covering other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred
income that is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the government authorities are recognised in the
profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of an asset

which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as

part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(M

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a Group of which the other
entity is a member).

242 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

1

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

TESTHBE (&)

(w)

(x)

EEDRS

NEZRREBE BELEEXRA
BE (ZEAEVAKBERRKH
SHUFRERERELE)EH
MERRA  BERMCRELEE
EVRR 1D BN o AR R SRR ARG R
A B A S8 e

BT

(@) M—RALFE FINBER:
Hel BT B B RIS
SEABE:

() HAREEFZEHEHK
[F) 22 71/ 4%

(i) SAEBBEEAFTE
=

(i) RAKENAKERAR
AEEEEAB-

(b) & FIMEA G ERR
NG E A R

() ZERSAEEAF—
EEHRE (A5 A
BAF WBAARA
EMEBARAZEER

Bt ) o

B —E BB L E
THRERFANBEAF
HABRE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(ii) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Revenue and segmental reporting

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
for mobile phones and other mobile communication terminals.
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold, excludes
VAT and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified reportable
segments as follows:

—  Design, manufacture and sales of camera modules

—  Design, manufacture and sales of fingerprint recognition
modules
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

31 December 2019 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
SEEFIN LARBIIR)

2 WERDEB®E (&

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the PIERANEBR TSRS DR
reportable segments of the Group. mEB OISt
Fingerprint ~ Subtotal of
Camera  recognition reportable
modules modules segments Others Total
REHE BEGE R HE
B ok ik e Hitr wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
2019 =B-NF
Revenue Wa 10,360,228 2,758,860 13,119,088 50,590 13,169,678
Cost of sales THE AR (9,531,731)  (2,423,154) (11,954,885) (34,921) (11,989,806)
Gross profit EH 828,497 335,706 1,164,203 15,669 1,179,872
2018 —E-N\F
Revenue e 6,272,686 1,832,022 8,104,708 30,453 8,135,161
Cost of sales #HE A (6,959,798)  (1,798,026)  (7,757,824) (24,229)  (7,782,053)
Gross profit FE A 312,888 33,996 346,884 6,224 353,108

Others mainly represent revenue from sales of waste
materials.

Segment profit represents the gross profit earned by each
segment without allocation of expenses and other income
and profit for the year. This is the measure reported to the
most senior executive management of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

The Group does not allocate specific assets or liabilities
to the operating segments as the most senior executive
management does not use the information to measure the
performance of the segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties.

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

2 WamkoE|E (&)

AEBERMWIELE S 2 WaE R
BENTHEEWETETE -

Revenue I =
PRC (including Hong Kong) EF' B (BEEE)
Overseas iR

The Group had three (2018: three) customers with
whom transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
amount of sales to these customers amounted to
approximately RMB10,808,346,000 (2018: approximately
RMB5,862,835,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 30(a).

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related
parties (see note 32).
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3 HittlkmRHMFEEE
2019 2018
—B-NhEF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETTT
Other revenue H bz
Government grants (note) BT (KaE) 28,986 103,908
Interest income FLE WA 13,911 29,058
Others HAth 116 147
43,013 133,113
Note: Government grants were received from several local MisE . BT Bh J5 B EUE 3 5 BT S0P Uk
government authorities as a recognition of the Group’s B 1EAAREBEE MW EERE
contribution towards the local economic development, of HERBEE HPhEfEs AEE
which the entitlement was unconditional and under the HRBEBEPAMIEETE -

discretion of the relevant authorities.

2019 2018
—EB-hE —E-N\fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Other net loss HitFEE
Net foreign exchange loss AINEE JE5 18 )5 KB (25,373) (44,613)
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE HE K&
plant and equipment REHEE (17,514) (15,687)
Loss on impairment of machinery 1 23 &% 1 &k 1B /&5 18 (10,587) -
Net realised and unrealised INEEESANEER KRR
loss on foreign exchange EREBFE
option contracts (9,864) (2,341)
Net realised and unrealised INERBEANEER KRR
(loss)/gain on foreign currency T (BB MWaFE
forward contracts (501) 12,418

(63,839) (50,223)
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=xiid ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

4 Profit before taxation 4 BRFAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: MR BDERN NIRRT & IE % E
2

2019 2018

—E-NE —ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREFT

(Note)

(PF5E)

(@) Finance costs (a) BMERA&

Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 51,581 44,146

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,230 -

52,811 44,146
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 Mz NEBER-_ZE—NLFE—AF—
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this H{&E A &g ETL/Fﬂ E B IR FER
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See B PR B 75 3 & 2E I 5516557 » 1R 1B
note 1(c). A EERERWEES R

MsE1(c) °
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

4 Profit before taxation (continued) 4 PBR¥IENER (&
2019 2018
—B-NhEF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
(b) Staff costs (b) BT A&
Contributions to defined ATEHFERRETEIMH K
contribution retirement plans (Hti#26)
(note 26) 18,961 15,326
Salaries, wages and e ITERHMET
other benefits 703,379 603,600
Equity settled share-based AR 2= 65 HE WD
payment expenses (note 27) NRAX (Hite7) 3,051 4,075
725,391 623,001
(c) Other items (c) H#EE
Amortisation 5
— lease prepayments (note 13) —MHEEMNRE
(Hf13) - 1,080
— intangible assets (note 14) —EmEEE
(Hiit14) 558 175
558 1,255
Depreciation charge (note 10) WeESZH (#iE10)
— owned property, plant and —BEVE BERK
equipment (note () B (HE0)) 275,958 234,486
— right-of-use assets (note (i) —FREEE
(HtaE()) 14,799 -
290,757 234,486
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=xiid ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

4 Profit before taxation (continued) 4 BRBANER (&
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EFIT
(c) Other items (continued) (c) EfEE ( f‘%)
Total minimum lease payments 5% B AR 1% B R A8
for leases previously classified FEATIHR D *E ﬁ Z% &
as operating leases under HEMA i}\ E’] &K
IAS 17 (note()&(iii) MER KB
(B &t 0) % (///)) - 13,528
Impairment losses VERIEN SR
— trade and other receivables - B REAM
F&“ WK I8 766 182
— machinery — B 1% 10,587 -
— inventories —F i? 53,067 11,374
64,420 11,556
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR Fr B
— Audit and review services —AREEEFLRER
for the Group PR 15 1,981 1,934
— Audit services for —WBREEFT RS
subsidiaries 170 168
Research and development B A AS (KT 22 (i) )
costs (note (i) 396,244 266,198
Cost of inventories (note (i) &R (K1 a (i) 12,232,550 7,909,358
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4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets
which were previously included in property, plant and equipment
is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition
of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

Research and development costs include staff costs of
employees in the design, research and development department
of approximately RMB103,013,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: approximately RMB81,472,000), which
are included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 4(b).

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB778,634,000
(2018: approximately RMB696,778,000) for the year ended
31 December 2019 relating to staff costs, depreciation, lease
expenses and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.

31 December 2019 =
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
E?a SN AAREESIR)

4 BRBIADEF (&)

P & -

U

(i)

REBERAKETEWETRE
FA I B B 5 e 5 A BN BB 165K 0 0 5
BRZZ-NF-—A—A0NHYE
BRUATER R RIEE R &R 2R F
17RO B REEHER BT EHE
BWERAEEE - LR AYE &K
EREENRENEEENITER
HETHNAERAEEE -R_Z
—NF-—A—BYLHEREAEE
Bk ANEB (1EAEBA)EER
FREEEMNITE  MIFRTAEER
REBAREGREERKLERER
TEENHESFA RIEZAE L
RERWESS] - BHE1(C)

HEzE-T—-h&F+=-A=1+—H
IEFE - FEXNEBIERE H
BHAMREEMEINANARK
103,013,000 (ZZ — N\F: HHA
R #81,472,0007T) * 5 A M 7E4(b)
BREOHBIKA-

HZEXAER R —HEENRE
—REZEHEB REIRERBERTH
BRI AE AR &0 E - Bt -
MARERFERA—BRREESL
MR R -

BHE-_FE-NAF+ZA=+—8H
EFE FERABENHNARE
778,634,0007C (Z T — \F : H A
R #696,778,0007T) " D RIEE T
BRA-TE HERTREHEAYE
B ZE BN AZESHERFF
SAE ESCE B EE A M R4 (o) I EE
MEEBESEE-

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement 5 2f#fiExXREMIZEHIKEER

of profit or loss and other comprehensive ==l )=
income
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of () EHtEEREMZEREERTH
profit or loss and other comprehensive income RBBiE:
represents:
2019 2018
—E-hLF —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBETFIT
Current tax B HA B 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax RS 80,968 2,333
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax 1 B i% &, 78 $0 %% - 3,977
80,968 6,310
Deferred tax iE 3 B 18
Origination and reversal of TR ESBES RER
temporary differences (K12228(b))
(note 28(b)) (16,439) (19,379)
64,529 (13,069)
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

EOEEREMEERER
HEFRES (&)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 5
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b) HERABRITENBEMAIES
FHm A B9 B -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Profit before taxation B 15 A& A 606,901 1,330
Notional tax on profit before B 75 B 8 A BY B F AR 1A
taxation, calculated at the RERRBET S
rates applicable to the tax EERENRETE
jurisdictions concerned 142,988 10,719
Tax effect of PRC preferential FREEHEFENHIEE
tax treatments (note (iii)) & (fazn) (58,653) (7,077)
Tax effect of additional B 2% B ZS 89 B8 7N HIRUAY
deduction on research and mMBEE
development costs (26,344) (17,795)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A RS2
expenses 752 1,059
Tax effect of non-taxable BEARMBANT G2
income (129) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses A T 58 A Eh A3 % 18 &5 18 AY
not recognised MG 941 -
Under provision in prior years BEFEREDTE - 25
Withholding tax on profit retained A B ff /8 2 4R B8 Ja 71| AY
by PRC subsidiaries (note (iv)  FEIF (H1 & (iv)) 4,974 -
Actual tax expense ERHEBEREX 64,529 (13,069)
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

—hE+-A=+—H

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”) is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%
in 2019 and 2018.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC statutory
income tax rate is 25%. Kunshan Q Technology Limited
(“Kunshan QT China”) was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) in 2009, which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from the year
2009 to 2011 according to relevant regulations in the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Kunshan QT China
successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 21 May
2012, 6 July 2015 and 24 October 2018 respectively and
continued to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
for another three years commenced from 1 January 2018.
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5 SO EsERAEMEEKER
R FRES (&)

(b) HERABRITENBEMAIES
RN BR: (&)

(i

(i)

REFSHEREBREZES
(IEBREXEE]HMRAR
AR AEEBEARREES
Ko 35 8 Be 2 B & UM AT (] P S
i

RZE-NEFRZZE-NF"
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited ([ 1L L3 &
B1)ER16.5% M B R MM E
BREE

BTN\ F-—A—HBE H
B 1)) TE FT 15 B 3R /325% o
BILERKMEFREER AR
(TBWWESKHER])R=ZZEZAN
FRESFEMEE ([
MEEDER FHER_ZTZ
NEFEE_Z——FREPHD
EMEREANBBREER=
B1I5%WBEMBEH X2
ERFBEDIR =2 —=F+
AZ+—8 -ZZ—AFtA
ANARZE-NFTHZ=+MX
A EFT e EMEEER
B BZE-N\F-A—HE
ARIN=FBEZHI5%NEE
FRiGHiE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. According
to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

5 SfEEREMEEEKER

HEFRES (&)

(b) HERABRITENBEMAIES
FHOREMNHR: (&)

BieE: (&)

(iv) RIEPESEMESHEREE
BT ASBEARFESE
BT NF-—H—HEmME
ER BT R E P EEINE
B AR R IR B IR10% (1
IR IR W55 8 Sk L BEFRBR 5N )
MREHRENT R_FF
NE—A—BRIEEHERD K
B ERCHNZIBTENE -
RIEREM L R EE
AT SAIESHEAAlL
BA B ¥E25%5 A ERE
MEERBAENBERBEIER
5% H £ 58 5 B 4N A R AT o
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SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments 6 E=%M
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEEE R A EH E383(1)1E XA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the A(BBEEENRER)BROIE2E
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of HEFMHWEZESHMMT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—_E—-hE+=-—B=+—HI=E
E

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total Notg)
BB A

Fo 2ER ERNAH

fig REEA  BAHBER BiERa it , #it
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBI00
AERTR  ARWTr  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARWTI  AR®TR

Executive directors #1783

Mr. He Ningning EEES X 317 - - - 317 - 317
Mr.Weng Jangiang ~ THEEEE - 789 16 767 1,522 87 1,559
M. Hu Sanmu BoA%E - 452 17 486 955 a 982

Independentnon-  BUFUTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang ~ IFH %L - 88 - - 88 - 88
M. Ko Ping Keung BRRLE - 88 - - 88 - 88
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRELE - 88 - - 88 - 88
Total e 37 1,455 3 1,253 3,058 64 3122
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 6 EZHM (&

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E—N\S+=-HA=+—-B1LEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total Notg)

R A

Fo 2R BRONT
fig REEA  BAHBHE BiEwA it it
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBY00
AR®TR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARMTr  AR%TR

Executive directors ~ #117E%

M. He Ningning eSS T 315 - - - 315 - 315
Mr.Weng Jangiang ~ THEEEE - 340 16 300 656 160 816
Mr. Hu Sanmu HoR%E - 391 18 257 666 119 78

Independentnon-  BUFHTES

executive directors

Mr. ChuChiaHsiang ~ HFHEE - 88 - - 88 - 88

Mr. Ko Ping Keung BRRLE - 88 - - 88 - 8

Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRERAE - 88 - - 88 - 88

Total @t 315 995 34 557 1,901 279 2,180

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted st ZESo5IEREAERNEKRE

to the directors under the Group’s share option scheme. AEAESFEOBRENGET
The value of these share options is measured according to BE ZEERENEBEEENT
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment 1N (NPT A = B AR D BB~
transactions as set out in note 1(r)qii). TR G E K=
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEEMENOFES (BEDED
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note RN TR NEE ) RMTT
27. Q7R FE -
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 6 EEHM (&)
During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable NARNFE NEEBHERES
by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid XHE7FEER RS HATE T
individuals set out in note 7 below as an inducement to join JERTE (] R IBEE A BB N ANE
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of SR IMABRER S E AR E
office. There was no arrangement under which a director B -NAEE HIEESNENRE
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year. PR {R] 37 BN A9 &2 BE -
7 Individual with highest emoluments 7 BEH AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two HE-_ZTZ—NLF+_A=+—81t
(2018: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31 FE AEEHFATHRERE (=
December 2019, whose emoluments are disclosed in note ZE-NE ML) AES HEBMR
6 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the FY T E - T AT E A
remaining individuals are as follows: RN
2019 2018
—E—NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Salaries and other emoluments & N H Ath 7 B 1,772 1,773
Discretionary bonuses 1B TE AL 1,321 537
Contributions to retirement BRIREFE K
benefit scheme 64 33
Share-based payments VARR 19 & B B9 < 3k 187 268
3,344 2,611
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

Individual with highest emoluments 7 BEEHEAL (&
(continued)
The emoluments of the remaining three (2018: three) BHE_Z—hhFEF+-_R=+—81F
individuals with the highest emoluments for the year ended 31 FE - FABp=2%(ZF—N\F: =
December 2019 are within the following bands: Z)EEHFATHEINN FLATE
:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 7T %£1,000,000/% 7T 0 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 1
3 3
Other comprehensive income 8 HttzmEUE
Tax effects relating to each component of other FREHEMEE WS S ER I 0B
comprehensive income =4

2019 2018
“E-0fF ENEF

Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax

amount Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
KHAeE hB¥E  KHGeE EEYTE hBTE  KHkeE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR  ARETR NS AN DN S

Exchange difference on BENTEENELZE:
tranglation of:
-~ financial statements of ~HEABAHE
subsidiaries outside the RAMBHERR
Mainland China (3,948) 106 (3,842) (23,910) 243 (23,667)
Other comprenensive income 2 EMA (3,948) 106 (3,842) 23910) 243 23,667)
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

9 Earnings per share 9 BRER

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of approximately RMB542,372,000
(2018: approximately RMB14,399,000) and the weighted
average of 1,139,599,000 (2018: 1,127,614,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(a)

Issued ordinary share at R—A—BHRWBRETEER
1 January

Effect of share options EITEERENTE
exercised (note 29(c)(ii) (Bt a£29(c)i) )

Effect of shares issued for the FLEEEEZEITRMHHTE
Placement (note 29(c)(iii) (/1 7229(c)ii))

Weighted average number of R+ -A=+—HH
ordinary shares at 38 A% N AE 19 &
31 December
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W B A FI Th LAA A 7] iR
BRiEEEABGENOARE
542,372,0007T ( =& — )\ 4 :
49 A R #14,399,0007T) & 4
NE BT E @R INEF &
1,139,599,000/% ( =& — N\
% :1,127,614,0000% ) & H %
EMT

2 AR IE T
2018
—E-\F
'000
T i
1,131,722 1,115,697
7,836 12,017
41 -
1,139,599 1,127,614
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BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

Earnings per share (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB542,372,000 (2018:
RMB14,399,000) and the weighted average of ordinary
shares of 1,150,230,000 shares (2018: 1,138,491,000)
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

9 BRER (Z&)

(b) ER#EFRR

EREBERFTIARNAR LB
KEFEE ARG AR
54237200075(__:—:-—)@E
AR #14,399,0007T ) & &
&bu%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬂwo,mo,oooﬂﬁ
(Z=Z— )4 :1,138,491,000
R)BEEHENT :

BERMEFIE (#E)

2018
—E-NF
000

TR

Weighted average number of R+ -A=+—H#H
ordinary shares at T B AR N 1 B
31 December

Effect of deemed issue BRAERIE AR 7] B8 B =1 2
of shares under the BITRMDEOTE
Company’s share
option schemes

A=+—88

Weighted average number of A+
ordinary shares Z
(diluted)
at 31 December

BRI TS 8 (#58)

1,139,599 1,127,614

10,631 10,877

1,150,230 1,138,491
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB HEI  AARIETIR)
10 1% - BEKRE

(a) FREEHIK

10 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Office and
Leasehold Motor other Construction
land Buildings  Machinery vehicles  equipment Sub-total in progress Total
BAR
HELH BF  BERB RE Rtk Mt EBIR &3
HM’B’OOO RMB'OOO RMB'000 RM’B’OOO RM’B'OOO RMB‘OOO RMB'000 RM’B’OOO
AREFTT  AREBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost: R
At 1 January 2018 R=%-\5-F-H - 264,761 1,163,153 821 205,599 1,634,334 141,003 1,775,337
Additions HE - 87,604 499,189 214 42,355 629,262 32,302 661,564
Transfer from construction ERATRIR
in progress - 89 60,810 - - 60,899 (60,899 -
Disposals i - - - B0%4  (E6241) - (24
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+-f=1-H - 362,364 1,695,006 1,035 230860 2,288,254 112,406 2,400,660
Impact on initial application of EAERERHEREER
IFRS 16 (Note) F16%2FE (M) 57,029 - 6,392 - - 63,421 - 63,421
At1 January 2019 RZZ2-n%5-A-H 57,029 352,354 1,701,397 1,085 239,860 2,351,675 112,406 2,464,081
Additions AE - 46,483 858,377 185 61,096 966,141 133,309 1,099,450
Transfer from construction in progress EE BEETRE - 50917 928 - - 51,840 (51,840) -
Disposals LE - - (73,100 - (32,143 (105,249) - (105,243)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=1-H 57,029 449,754 2,487,597 1,220 208813 3,264,413 193875 3,458,288
Accumulated depreciation: 2ithE:
At 1 January 2018 R-F-N\5-F-H - (47395 (152616) (551) 04113 (294,675) - (294679)
Charge for the year ERAIR - (33503 (140,004) 87) (60,892 (234,486) - (234,480)
Wiitten back on disposals HERER - - 10,676 - 6,349 17,025 - 17,025
At 31 December 2018 R-F-N\Et-fA=t+-H - (80.898)  (281,944) (638) (148656  (512,136) - [512.13)
Impact on initial application of EAERERIBREER
IFRS 16 (Note) F1652 Y8 (M) (5,239) - - - - (5,239) - (5,239)
At 1 January 2019 R-F-N%5-F-H (5,239) (80,898 (281,944) (638) (148656  (517,375) - 1737
Charge for the year ERAHR (1,140) (45679 (187953) 9) (55,889 (290,757) - (290,757)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 37470 - 26,887 64,357 - 64,357
At 31 December 2019 RoE-hE+-A=1-H (6379 (126577)  (432,427) (738 (177,658 (743775) - (143,779)
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BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

Leasehold
land Buildings
HELH By

RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARETTE  ARETR

10 X -BERSKE (&)

(a) BREEYHKR(Z)

Office and
Motor other Construction
Machinery vehicles  equipment Sub-total in progress Total
BAR
HWERE RE RftRE Mt EBIBR &3t

RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0D
ARETL ARETZ ARETZ ARETR ARETR ARETR

Provision for impairment; AERE:
At 1 January 2018 R=%-\5-f-H - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year FRR - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 and RZF-\E+Zf=1-R

1 January 2019 k=Z-h%-A-H - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year ERnk - - (10,587) - - (10587) - [10587)
At 31 December 2019 WoZ-AEtZA=1-A - - (10,587) - - (10,587) - (10587)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 W-Z-N\EtZA=t-8 - 71486 1413061 397 91204 1776118 112406 188852
At1 January 2019 W-Z-nE-F-8 51790 271486 1419453 397 91204 1834300 112406 1,946,706
At 31 December 2019 W=B-AEtZA=1-A 50650 88177 2044583 186 91185 2510051 193875 2,703,926
As at 31 December 2019, the Group was in the RZE—NFF+_A=+—
process of obtaining the ownership certificate in H - = IEE B ALK A
respect of buildings in the PRC with net book value of LEEBIFERHODARK

approximately RMB86,629,000 (2018: approximately
RMB29,702,000).

In December 2019, a number of machines are aging
and unable to meet the production needs. The Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of those machines
and as a result the carrying amount of the machines
was written down to their recoverable amount. An
impairment loss of approximately RMB10,587,000 was
recognised in “Other net loss”.

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. See note
1(c).

86,629,0007T ( =& — )\ F :
4 AN R #29,702,0007T ) 2 1
FEHREMBEE-

RZE—NF+_A &THE
BREELELRETEEES
EoREEFHZEHERE
AW El &R R RE
REEMREE T KRB S
AEE B ARE10,587,000
TERTEMFEE] AE

ol

izt : AEEER_Z—HhF—A
—RERKEBCEE
J& PR B BR B 75 s E RIS
1655 I 5 B 4] 45 B8R 1 I 59
BUERELHREERS
AEREITR O BERELE
MEZHERBZEREER
o BFfEE1(0) °

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 263



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 10 Y% -BERFZE (Z)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EFHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets HHBEEBRRE D 2FRE
by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEZEEFESTHOT
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NEF —E-NEF
+=HA=+—H —H—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARET T ARBEF T
Leasehold land, carried 1% 8K K 51| B (i)
at amortized cost WS i 50,650 51,790
Properties leased for LT E KA BRHY (i)
own use, carried at ERMAEmE
depreciated cost 13,777 6,392
Machinery, carried at RITEKAFBRAMESEE (i)
depreciated cost 39,348 -

103,775 58,182
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 10 Y% -BERHRHE (&

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) EFREEE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases REZAEZEBEEZRAX
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: EE ST :

2018
—ZE-NF
(Note)
(PRFEE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT
Amortisation and REBEEERNED Z
depreciation charge of FHRAEEE#HR
right-of-use assets wERX:
by class of underlying
assets:
Leasehold land HE 1 1,140 -
Properties leased for own use HBERHEEYWE 5,494 -
Machinery MR 8,165 -
14,799 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEME
(note 4(a)) (H15#4(a)) 1,230 -
Expense relating to short-term B THBER T —NF
leases and other leases with + =B =+—H= Z &
remaining lease term ending ERCEHHEER
on or before 31 December HBEE A
2019 3,891 -
Total minimum lease payments 5t A 18 1% B % & =1 2 A
for leases previously classified 175D EAKEHRE
as operating leases under IAS  ZHEZ HEKHAE
17 eSS - 13,528
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets
which were previously included in property, plant and
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After
initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

During the Year, additions to right-of-use assets were

approximately RMB60,392,000. This amount primarily

related to the capitalised lease payments payable under

new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity

analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 19(d) and

24, respectively.
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10 X -BEKSKE (&)

(b) EREEE (&

REE D ERIERTE WAV
SRR BREERE
1655 W —_F—NF—H
fEZEMiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂu
RELNRIBEEE S
W;ﬂ?ﬁ””ﬁﬁﬂ“'ﬁ%‘
ZTHEEBRZERAEEE-
LRI AME -BEKEE
MR EEEEENERAEE
NHERRERAEEE -R=
E-NF—A—HULER
FRAREER XEEEAR
EAANBAEREREEER
E ML EHAERRNIR
BERLABRKEHEEED
MERZ 2BE-BEZA
% L RERLEES o BT
FT1(0) °

FR EAECHBEEN/A

K #60,392,000  #Z & BT &
HFHERZRBETRETEAR

ENHEENKAR-

EEHEaBEcHEREHY
MzBReREBEFBED A
R FE19(d) K224 ©
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10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

U

(i)

(iii)

Leasehold land

Leasehold land represent the ownership interests
in leasehold land located in China. The Group is
granted land use rights for a period of 50 years.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its factory, warehouse, staff dormitory
and office through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years.
Lease payments are usually increased every 1 years
to reflect market rentals.

Machinery, carried at depreciated cost

The Group leases machinery under a lease expiring
3 years. The lease includes an option to purchase
the leased equipment at the end of the lease term
at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option.
The lease does not include variable lease payment.

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

10 X -BERSKE (&)

(b) EREEE (&)

@

(ii)

HE L1

HMELMEUATE 2 HE
Tt EEEED - ARE
BERFHRE0F 2 T ik
FA#E -

ERAHEEY#

AEBEEBHEERZR
BEMME (PIWEE &
B-BIBEEMRRAE)Z
ERE-HE-—RINT B
1E5F - HENFTBTEZF
BMARRTSEE -

(iii) 7T B A B R HY 75 AR 1

REERBRIFRE 2
HEAHEKERE - ZHE
BN B RIS IR IEH
BREEEMNZERBEEHE
RN - ZAET B
AEEEN R
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11

Investments in subsidiaries

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

11 RBATIMNKRE

TREIARAMBEMBRRZE
*

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless o BAEHBAIN BTG EER A
otherwise stated. IR o
Proportion of equity
Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid-up capital/ interest attributable to
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BHRELR/
RAER ERMAL/ RIEHREH EXBE ZRER ARREERELS TEER
Direct Indirect
HE GF:3
Q Technology (Great China) Inc. British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ BVI US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
(‘T Great China) 3 July 2007 RBRINE 10,000% T REER
Q Technology (Great China) Inc. ([QT Great EBRAEE ([KBRLHEE])/
China ) “EREELACH
Kunshan Q Technology Limited* People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’)/ PRC US$375,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(RIEEBETREBRAR) Note ) 15 Qctober 2007 & 375,000,0005% 7T Camera Modules and
BIERMETREBRAR (M) REARLANE ([RE])/ Fingerprint Recognition
ZTZ+ETATAR Modules
REREERGARAR
SAERIEA
Kunshan Q Technology (Hongkong) Limited Hong Kong/ 15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of Camera
B/ -T-=5-At%A8 i 10,0007 Modules and Fingerprint
Recognition Modules
EERBERA
BHREREAR
Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/ 6 June 2014 PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Research and development
(“Chengdu QT Subsidiary”) H8/ZF-MERAAE HE AR %1,000,0007C of Camera Modules and
(RBEHHEFREARLR) Note i) Fingerprint Recognition
KB HRHEFRRERAR Modules
([XBERMBRR]) (Ara2i) HERGEREAR
BERERIEA
Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/ 19 June 2015 PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Trading, research and
(“Shenzhen QT Subsidiary’) T8/ -Z-RE~ETHA HE B 5,000,000 development of Camera
CRYI ESAE FREBRAR) Notef) Modules and Fingerprint
RAMERAEFRHERAA Recognition Modules
(TR Sk B R R ) Aty BEE HEBGERAR
EHEAEAR
Taiwan Q Technology Limited* Taiwan/ 1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD452,998,422 100% - Trading of
(“Taiwan QT Subsidiary’) a%/-%-nFEtA-H ag e 452,998,427 Camera Modules and
(REERMEERAR) Fingerprint Recognition
RECHBMHARAR ([RELANEAR]) Modules
BERBARAR
BHERIEAR
Zhuhai Q Technology Limited" PRC/ 20 December 2018 PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Research and development
(“Zhuhai QT Subsidiary’) w8/ -3 \F+-A=1H HE AR 5,000,000 of Camera Modules and
(HEmERHEFREBRAR) Notefi) Fingerprint Recognition
KAMERHEFREERARA Modules
(REERMBRR]) M) HERGEREAR
BEERIEA
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics India/ 10 January 2019 India US$5,152,513 - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(Inclia) Private Limited 0/ -Z-NE—FTH g 5,152,513% T Camera Modules and

*

The English translation of the companies’ names are for

reference only. The official names of the companies are in

Chinese.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
(BRAEEPIN UARBIIR)

11 RMBRARMNKRE (&)

Notes: Bt o

()  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in () ZEBARFBEZEMAZAINGTE
the PRC. B,

(i)  The three entities are limited liabilities companies established in il Z=FREBANRPREKINERE
the PRC. (FVNCT

Interest in an associate

12 R —EBHEQTNESR

Place of Proportion of equity
operation and interest attributable to
Name of Associate Date of incorporation business Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
BENRER ERERLAH EEREBHE BHZER ARREERELS  TTER
Direct Indirect
E# Gf::
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. 10 August 1999 Taiwan TWD3,670,493,480 30.8% 4.5% Design, research,
(FERERHERRF) -AAAENRTE =) & 13,670,493,4807T development,
HERERHERAA manufacture and
sales of optical lens
et HE - RERITH
REFH
On 18 March 2017, the Group entered into a share R-ZE—tF=A+N\H KEBH

subscription agreement with Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. Upon the settlement of the total consideration of EHaE N -
approximately RMB275,236,000 on 31 August 2017, an

aggregate of 57,008,888 placing shares have been allotted 1% -

and issued to the Company, representing approximately
36% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Newmax

Technology Co.,

Ltd. as enlarged upon completion of the

private placement. Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. became an 36% °

associate of the Group.

On 20 August 2019, Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.
completed a capital injection by issuing 25,000,000
new ordinary shares to subscribers including its current
shareholders, employees and the public. The Group
subscribed 8,321,701 shares with a consideration of
approximately RMB155,799,000. Upon completion of the

43z
,ZD/E

R B R QAR DR

—tFNA=1—

BREHARE275,236,000
& #57,008,8880% it & A% 15
BB REFEITTARA  HERRNE
BX FL 5 B 6 18 S B R TSR BBk 10
ERRAABIZEHEEHTEBARZAD
FERERNBRARKE

ANEE T BN T o

capital injection, the Group held approximately 35.3% of the [

total issued ordinary shares of Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.

as at 31 December 2019.

A —NENAZ+H #FER
EBRMDBRAFRNRAREA (BE
HEKERR EERARAL)E
725,000,000 ¥ L@ IR Ay 5 X
ERIFE - AEEBNREHARE
155, 799 0007t R f§8,321,701 & I
RIEETKE NEERHEN
ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂxfnﬁﬁﬁ Tﬁ_i@—ni

TZAZtT - BZ2HERTER
AR #35.3% e
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

12 Interest in an associate (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, 16,160,850 shares of Newmax
Technology Co., Ltd. held by the Group were pledged as
security for long-term bank borrowings (see note 23).

Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial are
disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the associate

12 A — S QR ES
(#4&)

RZZE—-—AF+-_A=+—H =«
%= @ A #916,160,8500% 1 48 B £
BHERARKRGEEBIEARE
RITERHER (RHI5E23) o

TXHEBZERAR W B ERB
2 ZEEMEREAREZEM
ZRFELARE YRS HFTBEHRE
ZEREES K

Current assets mEEE
Non-current assets FnBEE
Current liabilities mBAE
Non-current liabilities FEREBBE
Equity i 1%
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BeENT 2B
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—NF RZZT—N\F
t-—A=+—8
(Note)
(ME3E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
1,008,186 409,548
590,990 303,701
(393,427) (267,723)
(142,664) (6,519)
(1,063,085) (439,007)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

12 Interest in an associate (continued)

Gross amounts of the associate (continued)

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—hFE+-A=+—H
BEERIN UAREHIR)

12 PR 2 R

BMENRZHRE(E)

For the year

For the year

Note:

right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
RMB3,044,000 and approximately RMB3,044,000
respectively, relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.

The associates have initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise additional

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz H=
—E—hE —E-N\F
+=A=1+—0 R
LFEE IEFE
Revenue WA 776,067 362,082
Profit/(Loss) from operations mEEBRN, (E8) 113,223 (68,225)
Other comprehensive income H 2wl (14,555) (12,085)
Total comprehensive income ZHE 4T 98,668 (80,310)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the associate REBRBENTES ZHE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—NF RZE—N\F
t=A=+-8 REERs
Gross amounts of net assets of G NREEFEARE
the associate 1,063,085 439,007
Group's effective interest AEBEREEZR 35.3% 36.0%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBELEBEERAEEFE
the associate 375,316 158,043
Goodwill [EkS 57,874 71,364
Carrying amount in the AP BHRERNEREE
consolidated financial statements 433,190 229,407

MieE: BME AR EEREBTRBP AV
JE FB B B B 75 3k 2 ZE Bl S8 1657
jﬁt% NE—R—BZF

ﬁ%{’ﬁﬁﬂ%uﬁ&%ﬁﬁuffﬁ%ﬁ
,TE..: EBIEI7TR D B AL S
ME e EMEREE
ENHESEHARES,044,000
7T N #9 N R #53,044,0007T ° 1R #
HOTE BB EET -

2019F 3 ESPE (RE) ARAF
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

13 Lease prepayments 13 HEFEFKIE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: )N
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H 20,791
Addition NE 36,238
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+_A=+—H 57,029
Impact on initial application of IFRS 16 (Note) & /X JiE F BR B 75 3R & 2 A
F1e5 22 (M) (57,029)
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NEF—HA—BRK
—E-hFt+=ZA=1+—H -
Accumulated amortisation: REtes:
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—H—H (4,159)
Amortisation for the year F R (1,080)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-NF+_A=+—H
rZFE—-h&F—H—H (5,239)
Impact on initial application EPN G
of IFRS 16 (Note) F169 2 8 (M) 5,239
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZE-NF-—HA—BRK
—E-hFt+-_A=+—H -
Net book value: BREEE:
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+_A=+—H 51,790
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE-NWEF—-—A—BRK
—EZ-hAhF+=-A=+—H -
Note: Upon initial application of IFRS 16, the net carrying amount Misr: MEXRERRREEREERFE
of lease prepayments was reclassified to property, plant and 165712 - HE B[ FE 2 BREF
equipment for presentation purpose. Also, there were no B2V m=EFoEEYE -
ongoing payment obligations under the terms of the land B N5 o pboh - T TR E IR
lease, so no lease liabilities were recognied. I N EESEMN R ER B

BHEREERAG-
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

14 Intangible assets

14 BEEE

Computer
software
FrEME G
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\F—H—H 1,608
Addition NE 448
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—HK
—ET—-NF—H—H 2,056
Addition NE 4,026
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 6,082
Accumulated amortisation: REtey
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H (454)
Amortisation for the year F N (175)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—HEK
—ZE-hhHF—H—H (629)
Amortisation for the year F 5 (558)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+ZA=+—H (1,187)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NFE+_A=+—H 1,427
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hE+=ZA=+T—H 4,895

The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses”
in the consolidated income statement of profit or loss.

e

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 273

FRABVEENBHEAXTAAR
HEERPH[TTREEBES

5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 Inventories

H

(BRRBEERPI UAREIITR)

15 &

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise:

BHFFBIR AT

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

R %4 & B 7 i
R
FX dh

The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and

included in profit or loss is as follows:

BB

2019 2018

= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF R ARBFR
614,557 246,396
627,697 201,584
671,114 255,838
1,913,368 703,818

ERAXFABRETNFESEN

Carrying amount of inventories sold

Carrying amount of inventories
recognised as administrative
and other operating expenses
and research and development
expenses

Write-down of inventories

ELEFENREE
ERBITHREEMES
ERLMEERD

FEMNREE

17 & R
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DR
2019 2018
S —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
11,936,485 7,762,043
242,998 135,941
53,067 11,374
12,232,550 7,909,358




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

16 Trade and other receivables

16 EZ R HMBEWRIE

Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE
— third parties —%=h

— related parties (note 32(c))

— B (Ki£32(c))

Bills receivable e E &
— third parties —%=h

Trade and bills receivables

Less: loss allowance

Other deposits, prepayments and
receivables

B 5 ENRE R EREE

R R R B

Hihiz g - FE 508 M B YR IR

2019 2018
—B-NhEF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTITT
4,771,573 2,829,467
7,479 4,242
57,969 170,641
4,837,021 3,004,350
(1,297) (531)
4,835,724 3,008,819
83,565 27,548
4,919,289 3,031,367

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Bills receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance
bills and commercial acceptance bills. As at 31 December
2019, no bills receivable (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB26,047,000) were pledged as security for bills payable
(see note 21(a)). Bills receivable are due in 3 to 6 months from
the date of issue.

FrEE 5 NEAMEWFIREAERKR
—FAREEERHF X

W EEE R BRI RIT AR
ZEREEALERE - RZ2T—N
F+-_A=Z=+—H8 #HE(ZZ
—NFEF+ZA=ZF+—H HARE
26,047,00070) E M EHE B HH E
BEMZENER (RHF21@) -
FEWEE B T ABRH3E6MEA
FIHR -
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 ES REMEWTIE (Z)

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables amounting
approximately RMB278,827,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB147,825,000) were pledged as security for
short-term bank borrowings (see note 20).

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the year, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

RZE-NF+ZA=+—8" 54
H ) NR#278,827,000T (=
—NEF+_A=Z+—"H HARE
147,825,0007T) M2 5 EWKIBEE
BEHREREHRTEENER (R
Bt 5E20) ©

(@) FRER DT

BEFER REFAHIAD M
MR REBREROE SRR
EREREE (B AES A
i FE WK IR ) By BREe D AT 20 TS

Within 1 month R1E A AR

More than 1 month but FB @1 E BB R3E A AR
within 3 months

More than 3 months but B d3ME A ER6E A AR
within 6 months

More than 6 months but HBiE6fE A EM1F AR

within 1 year

Trade debtors are generally due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of which invoice issued.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit

risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable are set
out in note 30(a).
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2019 2018
—2-NF —T-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR®TT
3,076,543 1,695,382
1,733,705 1,249,786
25,178 58,576
298 75
4,835,724 3,003,819

BHRWKRBBFTEMOESR
Z B#EF30E90H A ZH

AEENEERRNREESRE
WHRIBEREWRBEEENEE
[ B &) #E — 2 5F 1B 800 MY 5
30(a) °
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 EE R EMEWFHIE (Z)
(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables b) EZEWREREREERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills B EWRIA N EWNEZE S
receivables are recorded using an allowance account BEEIABRERTE  BRIER
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the EBEEHIOAESZEN T 8
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is MMFEM ERBAT  BE
written off against trade and bills receivables directly. EEEERE S EIRZIE N JE
U SRR o
The movement in the allowance during the year is as FERNEEHESS N T
follows:
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EFIT
As at 1 January n—A—H 531 349
Impairment losses recognised & 1 53 AR (B & 18 766 182
As at 31 December Rt=-—A=+—~8” 1,297 531

20198 E#ME (KE) ARAT D77
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities

17 TTEEREERERS

At 31 December 2019
R-BE-AF+-A=1—H

Notional

amount Assets Liabilities
EREHE 8E 8%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®ET T ARET T

Foreign currency derivative IMESTET R
instruments
- Forward contracts —BHEH 1,112,704 - (9,142)
- Option contracts —HEeY 587,396 26,472 -
Total Bt 1,700,100 26,472 (9,142)
At 31 December 2018
RZZE—NE+=-A=+—8H
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HESHE BE =X
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT AREFTT
Foreign currency derivative SMNESTET A
instruments
— Forward contracts —RZHEH 452,045 - (201)
- Option contracts —HEEH 1,153,361 105,251 -
Total BEr 1,605,406 105,251 (201)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities 17 TTEESREERERE (&
(continued)

The Group entered into foreign currency option and foreign AN ES B B IR 1T AT 37 AN HA B N oM E iR B
currency forward contracts with banks. As at 31 December ER-RZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
2019, the notional amount of outstanding contracts REIHE #) 2 % & 25840 /53243,700,000
amounted to approximately USD243,700,000 (31 December En(ZE—NEFE+ZZA=+—80:4
2018: approximately USD233,915,000). All these option and 233,915,000 7T ) ° FT B % 5 B #E iR
forward contracts are matured within one year. e HR—FREH-

The fair value of the foreign currency option contracts is INEHIRES M A TFEDIEBM DR -
measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. Main AR SERNHE - BRAPEANE
parameters used in the model include the spot price of the DRHUpEGHEARNEER  rTiER .
foreign exchange rates as of the valuation date, strike rates, REAPER  INEERA R EIRE R A RE
forward foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of foreign [ B A1) 2 o

exchange rates and the risk-free rates.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts takes into INERBIEH 2 AFETIEREITISF
account the market interest rate and the estimated future KRR ENBETF ARSI

pay-off of the forward contracts.

18 Pledged bank deposits 18 2 FRITFERK
2019 2018
—z-nr [EEEIUIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Pledged for BT S IBEEH
— short-term bank borrowings — R HRIRITIE K
(note 20) (B z#20) 90,691 205,700
- bills payable (note 21) —ENEE (HiF21) - 82,522
— letter of guarantee —ER K 1,956 80
Pledged bank deposits BB EITER 92,647 288,302
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the EEFETFERSGNEEHBEIET
settlement of relevant bank borrowings, bills payable, and the BN ERRERK D BE R
maturity of letter of guarantee. R o
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash in hand FERe
Cash at bank IRITIE K
Cash at bank and in hand WITERKFERS

As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to
approximately RMB363,608,000 (2018: approximately
RMB64,962,000). Remittance of funds out of the
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.
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19 RERBASEBYRHEMR

ETREEHR

(@ RERBREEEWERE:
2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTITT
97 21
411,420 99,899
411,517 99,920

RZE—-—NF+A=+—
A NEBEFARBEAHRITH
ReERBCEBWHRARKE
863,608,0007T ( — & — J\ 4 :
4 NR#64,962,0007T) © &
© IE A B i Z8 38 5 R B R
JiT 78 5 & 4H B8 SN EE B IR Bl &2
ERR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

19 RERRESE/YREMER
EREER (F)

(b) BRBIAIRF LTS, (Fr
A)ERENYER:

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from/(used in) operations:

2019 £ EHMBE (£E) ARAT 281

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT
(Note)
(HizE)
Profit before taxation B A5 A& A 606,901 1,330
Adjustments for: FRAT B IEFE
Depreciation e 290,757 234,486
Impairment of machinery 1 25 2% 1 Rk (B 10,587 -
Amortisation of lease GEN=SEENE/ QL3
prepayments - 1,080
Amortisation of intangible | A =
assets 558 175
Interest expenses F B 52,811 44,146
Interest income F B WA (13,911) (29,058)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HE &
plant and equipment HENEE 17,514 15,687
Write-down of inventories 7 & #MUR 53,067 11,374
Impairment loss EERESH R
recognised for trade and o e W R IB R B B 18
other receivables 766 182
Equity-settled share-based PARE 25 45 E WU RR {9
payment expenses N3 3,051 4,075
Net loss/(gain) on foreign INERHIAHEIE
currency forward contracts (W) F& 501 (12,418)
Net loss on foreign currency  YMNEHAE & XV 1B 558
option contracts 9,864 2,341



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

19 RERREE/YREMER
TREER (&)

(b) BRBIARF LTS, (Fr

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from/(used in) operations: (continued)

RIBRENHEKR: (&)

2019 2018
—z-ngs [EEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
(Note)
(HH3E)
Share of (profit)/loss of an FEEEE AR CER)
associate &8 (39,996) 24,561
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNERSIE S (Meas) 25,373 (14,168)
Changes in working capital: LEEEE:
Increase in inventories 157 & 12 10 (1,262,617) (27,151)
Increase in trade and other 2 5 N B e YRR IR E 1N
receivables (2,433,869) (1,427,683)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N B FE 5 Z OB E hn
payables 4,818,221 918,290
Decrease/(increase) in pledged 17 AR IR1T A E ] #17 3X
deposits with banks B (1) 82,522 (54,321)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEHE I 228,681 -
(Decrease)/increase in JE A< B8 B 5 3k IR
amounts due to related OB A) /1
parties (78,584) 78,617
(Increase)/decrease in 7 Wi 8 Bk 05 3k IR
amounts due from related ($&gm)
parties (8,237) 17,651
Increase in deferred income A UL Nl 64,007 51,050
Cash generated from/(used in) #&&Z 15,/ (FTA)IRE
operations 2,432,967 (159,754)
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31 December 201 9 —

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from/(used in) operations: (continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. Previously, cash payments under
operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of
approximately RMB14,340,000 were classified as
operating activities in the consolidated cash flow
statement. Under IFRS 16, except for short-term
lease payments, payments for leases of low value
assets and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid
on leases are now split into capital element and interest
element (see note 19(c)) and classified as financing cash
outflows. Under the modified retrospective approach,
the comparative information is not restated. Further
details on the impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set
out in note 1(c).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
7(?1?5 SN UARMESIR)

19 BERBTEBYREME
ﬁl)lbéﬁﬂ (/H/\)

(b) BRBL

AR A B AEE R

&, (At

RIBRENHEK: (&)
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ARBEEREFLAR
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

19 RERREE/YREMER
EREER (F)

(c)

MEETHELE2EEHR

TRAAKERERDELZ
BEZEHFE BRAS MR
cEY -MELTDEL ARG
RATREIXBRKRERER
REBEHRERERDER
MEEZREREZEE-

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
BITHK HEAE Bet
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\%F
+t=ZA=+-8
Impact on initial application of 14 e B B A s s
IFRS 16 (Note) AIE165 2 &
(M)
At 1 January 2019 R=ZB-h&—-HA—-H
Changes from financing MERSRELE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans MBTERMERE
Repayment of bank loans BERITER

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENMAEREEATTE
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 & HF B TE

Total changes from financing MEREREZHATE
cash flows
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*

1,178,241 - 1,178,241
- 6,392 6,392

1,178,241 6,392 1,184,633
1,921,727 - 1,921,727
(3,008,131) - (3,008,131)

- (13,110) (13,110)

- (1,230) (1,230)

(1,086,404) (14,340)  (1,100,744)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁ? ﬁ“i&%@ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 19 & RRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) EREEHR (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METHEEBBYHER (Z)
financing activities (continued)
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITHER HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR

Exchange adjustments ELAR 15,617 467 16,084
Other change: Hih# g
Interest expense FEHX - 1,230 1,230
Settlements of trade payables EEMRITERER féﬁ 5
directly by the bank through EXBERER
import trade loan facilities ﬁ‘%ﬁ A 1,221,331 - 1,221,331
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFIVUHHEEEZ
entering into new leases HEAGEM
during the year - 60,392 60,392
1,221,331 61,622 1,282,953
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—-NIE
+=A=+-8 1,328,785 54,141 1,382,926
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the Max: NEBBEREETEBBEY]
modified retrospective method and adjusted the & e FA BB B 75 s 5 22 BI R
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise 165 WH —F — NF— A
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously — B2 FUEBIERAEN
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. See notes R RRIBEE R g5 4
1(c) and 19(b). A7 B AKEHRE Y

HeEsEsHEAEGE R
5E1(c) % 19(b) °
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash

flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities (continued)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

19 RERREE/YREMER
EREER (F)

(c) MEEFBHEEZEBHKR(F)

Bank
borrowings
RITHER
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 R=Z2-N§E—A—8 1,078,119
Changes from financing cash flows: MERESREEE:
Proceeds from new bank loans FRITE RS HIE 1,537,615
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (1,883,980)
Total changes from financing cash flows BI& R & &8 F B 1A% (346,365)
Exchange adjustments BEH AR 10,076
Other change: Hith &g :
Settlements of trade payables directly BEERBRTERENESERRE
by the bank through import trade HEE ZENRIA
loan facilities 436,411
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF-N\E+=A=+-—H 1,178,241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁF ﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁl‘?

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 19 RHERRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) SHREER (&)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases d) EEBEEZRESRHALE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases MBAES AR S RER 2SR
comprise the following: BRENATEE:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEFTT
(Note)
(FF#E)
Within financing cash flows FFARERERE 14,340 -
Within operating cash flows FFAKRERERE 3,891 13,528
18,231 13,528
Note: As explained in the note to note 19(b), the adoption of B &E - 38 20 B 5E19(b) 2 BT 5% £ B
IFRS 16 introduces a change in classification of cash BB B SR E EE
flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The comparative F16ES AMBEELNET
amounts have not been restated. HervHeRheEsEEHo
LGB EET o
These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid. ZESBHAIYEDNEEE

ol
prsiin)
o
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31 December 2019 —T—AF+ - A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 19 RERRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) SHREER (&)
(e) Major non-cash transactions (e) EEHFREXRSF
Major non-cash transactions during the year included the FRN FTEBIEBETHFBIEAT
following items: I8 B :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Settlements of trade payables BEBHEZEEBEESEZHLEEEH
directly by the bills J& < 518
endorsement 548,052 414,771
Settlements of trade payables Eﬁz‘ RIRTTERENE
directly by the bank through ~EXBMELEEZ 5
import trade loan facilities AN 1,221,331 436,411
Total HET 1,769,383 851,182
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ﬁF ﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁl‘?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

20 Short-term bank borrowings 20 FEHASRITIE R
As at 31 December 2019, the short-term bank borrowings N_E—-NhEFE+_A=1+—H ' &
with effective interest rate of approximately 3.49% (2018: Kﬁ%‘—fﬁ“u?ﬁ #)3.49% ( ZE—N\F: 4
approximately 3.67%) were repayable within one year or on 3.67% ) BBR—FARNNIEERKEE
demand as follows: R HARITERWOT

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREFIT

Bank borrowings |ITEN

- secured (note) — BB (HZ) 332,833 342,986

— unsecured — B 4K 936,715 835,255

1,269,548 1,178,241
Note: The short-term bank borrowings were secured by assets of izt RERTTEZTEAEENEEE

the Group and the carrying amounts of these assets are as B ZEEENEREAMENT

follows:

2019 2018

S e %

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR®EFTT

Pledged bank deposits (note 18) E?fﬁﬁ i} ﬁﬁ 90,691 205,700

Trade receivables (note 16) 278,827 147,825

369,518 353,525

2019 £ EHMBE (£E) ARAT 289



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=xiid ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

21 Trade and other payables 21 ES R HMENAFIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARET T

Trade payables and accruals BEoRENRBRETER
— third parties —-%=5" 4,593,637 2,290,395
— related parties (note 32(c)) — B85 (M iE32(c)) 24,367 102,951

Bills payable (note (a)) RS (HitE)

— third parties —-%=5" 973,655 399,892

Trade and bills payables (note (b) B 5 S 5 IE & B E &

(HiaEm)) 5,591,659 2,793,238
Accrued payroll JEETTE 123,013 62,134
Foreign currency option premium  YMNEHi#E & 42,003 110,538
Other payables and accruals Ha e B M EETE B 177,987 95,522
5,934,662 3,061,432
All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2019 N—_E—hE+_B=+—HBHHWHM
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within EE S NEMEMNZBEHER —F
one year or are repayable on demand. NEEHEREBWANBRENRE
3% o
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

21 Trade and other payables (continued) 21 EEREHMENTRE (&)
(a) Bills payable analysed by type of security (a) REHFBEHRINT2ERNERE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Bills payable secured by HUTEBEERAEAMAA
2 BN EE
— Bills receivable (note 16) —EWEE (#iF16) - 21,805
— Pledged bank deposits —BEMRITER
(note 18) (B1:%18) - 70,445
- 92,250
Bills payable unsecured EEHENER 973,655 307,642
973,655 399,892
(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills (b) ZREEHE S 2EZEMRE
payables based on the invoice date is as RENRBEZREITMT:
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFTT
Within 3 months R31E A LA A 4,932,881 2,366,602
More than 3 months but iR @31E A 1B R6fE A AR
within 6 months 345,546 308,632
More than 6 months but HBiEeE AEMFEANRN
within 1 year 5,964 16,217
More than 1 year HBiR1F 12,387 3,379
5,296,778 2,694,830
As at 31 December 2019, the accrued trade payables N —_E—-—hhEFE+_B=+—
which represented the amounts with no invoice received H FEAZE S ENZE (BIEX
by the end of the year, amounted to approximately WHEWREBEZNRIE)LD A A
RMB294,881,000 (31 December 2018: approximately R #294,881,0007C (—ZE— N
RMB98,408,000). F+ZA=T—H:HARK

98,408,0007T ) °
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

22 Contract liabilities 22 eHEE
2019 2018
—B-NhF —T-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBFT
Receipts in advance AW SR IE 257,072 28,391
All of the amount of receipts in advance is expected to be FrE FEWRIBTERT R —F RNER
recognised as income within one year. AU A o
23 Long-term bank borrowings 23 REIRITEN
2019 2018
—2-NF —ET-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT R ARBTT
Long-term bank borrowings-secured & BRIR 1718 3K — A K 17 59,237 -
As at 31 December 2019, the balance was the long-term RZE—-—hAhF+_A=1+—H8 &
bank borrowings with effective interest rate of 1.95% of % 4 8 B3 & %255,000,0007T 2
TWD255,000,000 which was repayable within 3 years. It was REIIRITRER BENER1.95%
secured by 16,160,850 shares of Newmax Technology Co., HANSFNEE-ERAEEFEZ
Ltd. held by the Group (see note 12). 16,160,850 #T SR Bz 10 B R A

Bl R AR (RS EE12) -
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24 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the

current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to IFRS 16:

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

24 HEAE

TREARANEERAREHHE LB
EAENHBRALBEZEEREY G
HELFIHEA CHERER

31 December 2019

“2-NE+ZA=t-R
Present
value of

the minimum

lease

Total
minimum
lease

payments payments

RERE
e A
RMB’000

BERSE
ARAE
RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR

Within 1 year 1ER o _23_,355_ o _23_,815 _____ 3_,319 _____ 3_,332 _______ -
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRER2ER 17,770 18,700 3,073 3217 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBARSER 13,016 14,393 - - - -
(e s e L .
54,141 56,908 6,392 6,639 N -
Less: total future interest expenses B ARFIBEY B8 (2,767) (147) -
Present value of lease liabilties RERERE 54,141 6,392 -
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified MizE: REBBFRAKEBINEY S

TEKHER ¢
1 January 2019 (Note) 31 December 2018 (Note)
ZE-NEtZA=t-H
E-NE-A-B(WiH) (Hit)
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REHE  REEE  RERE  SEHE
fizBE  AREE  HHCRE  f(ReE
RMBOOO  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTRL  ARETL ARETL ARETR

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17. These liabilities have been aggregated with
the brought forward balances relating to leases previously
classified as finance leases. Comparative information as at 31
December 2018 has not been restated and relates solely to
leases previously classified as finance leases. Further details
on the impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set out in note
1(c).

JE A B R B 75 3R 45 4 Bl 28 1655% -
WH—_T—hhFE—A—BZEY
KRR B DA RR B R BT AR 3R
S 2 FI7RDEARE
HMECZHERB s HEAG -%E
BEEHEBHALSEARER
EvHEZEEEREHIE R
—Z-N\E+-_A=+—HB2ZL
RERWESS) BERLRIDLE
RAREHECZHEER - BRBE
ZEIR I mEERE165 2 %
B 7#E—HBERAMEC) -

2019F 3 ESPE (RE) ARAF
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=xiid tiﬁiﬁﬁffﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at the rate of 20% starting from 1
December 2011 (before 1 December 2011: 18%) of the
eligible employees’ salary rate to the Schemes. The Group
has accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees covered under the Schemes.
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25 Deferred income 5 EZEW A
Government
grant
BT Bh
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-NF—H—H 14,598
Additions during the year FARE 56,690
Amortisation credited to consolidated sTAGGHER N E 42 WS R A3 i
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (5,640)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF+_A=+—HK
—NF—H—H 65,648
Additions during the year FRARE 73,816
Amortisation credited to consolidated FFAS iR & H b2 s R A3 5
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (9,809)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NF+=-_A=+—H 129,655
26 Employee retirement benefits 26 EERKER
Defined contribution retirement plans HEMIFEREE
The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined NEENPREKWEAFILERF .

MR E RIRAT RS TR S B R
MFCERKRBEFEE ([ZETE]) - ﬁ
- -BZFE——F+-_HA—BR%B"
FEMNBARIBUNGERREES ©
B20% (ZE——F+T-H—HHA
1ww%m$ﬁa%ﬂ¢ﬁfﬁ;ﬁ
SEEBEZMEH R HEE
I BB < F 5 77 BT 4 8 o i 75 X
I 1% 8 B JE [m) 5% = 2 BT 08 K B9 3R K
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Employee retirement benefits (continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option conversion scheme (the “Conversion
Scheme”) and granted a total of 59,935,500 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to
the Group made or possibly made. The directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite
certain employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options at Nil consideration
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The share options
under Employee Share Option Scheme were converted into
share options of the Company, with 1 share option under
Employee Share Option Scheme being converted into
100,000 share options of the Company, at the same terms
and conditions, except that the respective exercise prices
were adjusted on a proportionate basis from RMB40,000
to RMBO0.4 per share. In 2017, the remaining 13,826,000
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were all
exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company.

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

27 LERGEENRORS

27 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”)
to eligible participants (“Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of
39,425,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of
the Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target of the Company’s 2017, 2018
and 2019 financial years. Details of the three tranches of the
2016 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27(a)(i).

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted share options (the
“2017 Share Option Scheme | and 2017 Share Option
Scheme II”) to 48 Grantees to subscribe for a total of
8,083,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of
the Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target of the Company’s 2017, 2018,
2019 and 2020 financial years. Details of the 2017 Share
Option Scheme | and 2017 Share Option Scheme Il are set
out in note 27(a)(ii) and note 27 (a)(iii).

On 7 December 2018, the Company granted share options
(the “2018 Share Option Scheme”) to 83 Grantees to
subscribe for a total of 12,720,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company, subject to performance
conditions related to certain revenue growth target of the
Company’s 2019, 2020 and 2021 financial years. Details of
the 2018 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27(a)(iv).

296 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

()

RZE—RF+AZ+8 ARF
mMeaBEKR2HEE ([FEAEBELEE
$£39,425,00017 B A% #E ([ = ZF — X
E%h%%%b%%%$ L&
& $£39,425,000% & % 1E0.01
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UEREENRORS
(continued) (#2)

AZE—NFERNAZ+—B AR
AlIFAIGSE AR AR L ERE ([ =
—NFERETE]) URBAQ

On 21 June 2019, the Company granted share options (the
“2019 Share Option Scheme”) to 68 Grantees to subscribe
for a total of 11,454,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company, subject to performance TR At A $£11,454,00008 TR E
conditions related to certain revenue growth target of the =
1 iy z % //E\ N R
Company’s 2020, 2021 and 2022 financial years. Details of Tio 0178 EZ —=. ﬂx% VE/_ &ﬁg
the 2019 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27(a)(v). = - =
::EMAZEF;Z S TWAERBR

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

ZATEARIEZERIL TR {EE - —

T-NEFBEESEZ

F27(a)(v

(a) RHWKRE

Vesting conditions

BB R

S A B
) o

R AR

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
THAYE BERLAPEHZER BRENSHNFH
() 2016 Share Option Scheme:
—E-REBRETE:
Granted to directors:
BY&E%:
- on 26 October 2016 1,124,800 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
-RZE—R"F+AZ+~H 1FZ5(A 2FEE2E A
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
-RZE—R"F+AZ+~H 2F Z5{E A 3FEZ2E A
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RZE-R"E+HA=+H 3FZ5(E A AFT2ME A
Granted to employees:
ETES:
- on 26 October 2016 14,645,200 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
-RIE-RFE+HAZTXE 1EZ5(E A 2F T2 A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
-RIE-RE+HAZTRE 2F Z50E A 3FZ21E A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
-RIE-RFE+HAZTRE 3FZ50E A AFZ2E A
Total 39,425,000
mE
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
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27 IS EENRORS

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued) (#&

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows: (continued)

(a) RHMEAREENT : (&)

Vesting conditions

BB R

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
THEEE BRUEADEHZFR BRENSHNED
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I:
“E-tFBERESE:
Granted to employees:
BTES:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,935,200 9 months 1 year and 6 months
—-RZE—tFXANA ofEl A 1526 A
-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 1 year and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
-RZE—+F<ANA 1EZoE A 2FZ61E A
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFANA 2FZ9fE A 3FZ6fE A
Total 4,838,000
mE
(iii) 2017 Share Option Scheme II:
“E-tFERESEN:
Granted to employees:
ETES:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,298,000 1 year and 9months 2 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFANA 162l A 25 TofE A
-on 9 June 2017 973,500 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
“-RZE—tFRANA 2FZ9fE A 3FZ6(E A
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFANA 3FZOfE A 4FZ6{E A
Total 3,245,000
o
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UREREENRORS
(continued) (#&

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

(a) BHNHERRESFDT (&)

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

BB R

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
THEEE BRUEADEHZFR BRENSHNEH
(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme:
SE-\EBRERE:
Granted to employees:
BTESR:
—on 7 December 2018 5,088,000 1 year and 4 months 2 years and 1 month
-RZE-NF+ZAtH 1EZ4E A 2FF11E A
—on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 2 years and 4 months 3 years and 1 month
-RZZE-N\F+HA+H 2FEZT4E A SEZ1EA
- on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 3 years and 4 months 4 years and 1 month
—-RZE-NFT+ZHLH 3FZT4EA AF T8 A
Total 12,720,000
mE
(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme:
“E-NEEREE:
Granted to employees:
RTEE:
—-on 21 June 2019 4,581,600 1 year and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
-RZE-NFAAZ+—H 15629l A 25 T6f8 A
—-on 21 June 2019 3,436,200 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
“-RZE-NFERAZ+—H 2FZTOEA 3FT6MEA
—-on 21 June 2019 3,436,200 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 months
-RZE-NFAAZ+—H 3FZ9EA AFT6fE A
Total 11,454,000
e
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme:

Outstanding at the AE N RITE
beginning of the year

Forfeited during the year  pA4E A B 2k 3k
Exercised during the year A& R AJ 1T {88

Outstanding at the end REFRNKITE
of the year

2018
—B-7f —2-)N\%
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE TEE  BREHAE
RMB '000 RMB '000
ARBT T4 ARET T
4.13 20,491 4.13 36,765
413 (1,067) 413 (1,568)
413 (9,808) 413 (14,706)
413

Exercisable at the end REKRA1TE
of the year

The 2016 Share Option Scheme outstanding at 31
December 2019 had an exercise price of HKD4.13
(2018: HKD4.13) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1 years (2018: 1.5 years).
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27 IS EENRDRS

(%)

(b) BREHERTEENT:

() =F-—NFHERETE:

9,616 413 20,491

RZE—NF+A=*+—
HRARITEH T FHE
REETEIMTTHE(E B4.18
BT (ZE—N\F 4138
TL) A R g FE g FEgrE 4
FHAIF(ZE— N\F:
1.5%F)
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27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(i) 2017 Option Scheme |

Outstanding at the REERITE
beginning of the year

Forfeited during the year ~ RERNE %

Exercised during the year ~ RERN AT {71

Outstanding at the end RERBARITR
of the year

Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

27 RS EENRORS

TieE
RMB
ARBR

6.22
6.22
6.22

6.22

The 2017 Share Options Scheme | outstanding
at 31 December 2019 had an exercise price of
HKD6.22 (2018: HKD6.22) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1 years (2018: 1.5

years).

(%)

(b) BREHERTEENT:

(%)

(i) =—F—tFBKETEI

2019 2018
—2-hE —2-N\F
Exercise
price

Number of Exercise Number of
options price options
BREHE TRE  EREZEA
’000 RMB '000

T4 AR Tin

1,891 6.22 3,548
- 6.22 (238)
(945) 6.22 (1,419)

946 6.22 1,891

RZEB—NF+_A=+—
BERITEN T —FE
Iz i & IR 1T £ (B R6.22
BT (ZE—N\F:6.22/8
TT) A RN FEgRE K
FHAIF(ZE—N\F:
1.5%)
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(iij) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il

Outstanding at the RERHRTE
beginning of the year
Forfeited during the year ~ RERNE %

Outstanding at the end RERBARITR
of the year

Exercisable at the end RERAITE
of the year

27 IS EENRDRS

2018
—E-nE =
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
THE BREHE TRE  EREZEA

RMB ’000 RMB '000

AR% T T4 AR T

6.22 400 6.22 3,005

6.22 (400) 6.22 (2,605)
6.22

The 2017 Share Options Scheme Il outstanding
at 31 December 2019 had an exercise price of
HKD6.22 (2018: HKD 6.22) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.5 years (2018: 1.9

years).
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(b) BREHERTEENT:

(#&)

(i) —FE—EFHERETEN

- 6.22 400
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BEATEN T —+FE
R BN TTFE R6.22
BT (ZE—N\F:6.228
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27 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

RENERITHE

RERERA
RERT KK

RERFHRITE

RERATE

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

27 URSmEENRORS

(%)

(b) BREHERTEENT:

(%)

(iv) —F—-NNFBKETSZ

2019 2018
—E-nE 0
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE TEE  BREHE
RMB ’000 RMB '000
ARBT T4 ARET T
4.65 12,720 4.65 -
4.65 - 4.65 12,720
4.65 (1,624) 4.65 -
4.65

The 2018 Share Options Scheme outstanding
at 31 December 2019 had an exercise price of
HKD4.65 (2018: HKD 4.65) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.9 years (2018: 2.9

years).

11,096 4.65 12,720

RZE—NF+HA=7+—
HRARITEN T —N\F
BERRtERT B TTE (B B4.65
BT (ZE—/\F 4,658
L) R MEFE RS
HEBRBIIF(ZZE—N
F:209%F)
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

27 URRSmEENRDRS
(%)

(b) BREHERTEENOT
(#%&)

v) =FE-AFBKETS

2019
—B-hE

Exercise Number of

price options

TEE BREHE

HKD '000

BT F15

Granted during the year REANEET 6.02 11,454

Forfeited during the year RERNB KRB 6.02 (4,680)
Outstanding at the end RERMRITE

of the year 6.02 6,774

Exercisable at the end RERTITHE

of the year

The 2019 Share Options Scheme outstanding at 31
December 2019 had an exercise price of HKD 6.02

and a weighted average remaining contractual life of

2.9 years.
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

27 URSmEENRORS
(%)

BRENDIFERRER

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

The estimate of the fair value of each Share Option
Scheme granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the model.

The expected volatility of each Share Option Scheme
was referenced to the average of daily historical share
price volatility of comparable companies operating in
similar industry of the Company. Expected dividends
are estimated as the average of the Company’s
historical dividends. The option scheme was granted
under a performance condition, and management of
the Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.

VAR B8 A pe e B B AR 7% B9 & B
SERNBREN R FEFTE-

ERERSBRES SN FER
AR _AAMEEERIGE-B
BN OFREXZELRERE
ABERER -RETENEBRED
BAZBEIA -

SRR EINERREZ2ER
ARBBUTEEZNAELRA
BE B E S B (B 0 - TR HI AR B
fBEt RARRBESE BTG -
BRER B VRBRAGHERAR
AIEEEGEIRAERBEDN
AIaE R - T E I A BURRER
BRI A FEGERE
REE-ROBERELEN SIS
fEfF -
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UREREENRORS
(continued) (#&)

/1=

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c) BRENLAFEERRBR (&)

factor
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(continued)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme: () =E—NFERETE:
2016 2016 2016
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-XE —E-RE —E-RF
EEBRE EEBRE EEBRE
Vesting date HEAH 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—E-N\%F —E-NEF S
MA—H mMA—H MA—H
Maturity date Epil= 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—E-N\5F —E-NE ZE%H
+ZA=t—-B +ZA=+—B +ZA=+—H
Fair value at REtEREIW HKDO.48 HKD0.35 HKDO.26
measurement date NFE 0.487 7T 0.357%8 7T 0.26 T
Share price B HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
41387 41387 41387
Exercise price (note(b)(i) TEE (Wt m)) HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
41387 4138 41387
Expected volatility KR 40.86% 40.64% 40.63%
Risk-free interest rate 2 [ B F 0.47% 0.51% 0.58%
Expected dividends TEHR S 0.49% 0.49% 0.49%
Forfeiture rate FNIES 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%
Suboptimal early exercise RERBEAFRE 1.85 1.85 1.85
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UREREENRORS
(continued) (#&)

/1=

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENAFERRBR (£Z)

factor

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 307

(continued)

(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I: (il =—EFE—+tFEREFTZ
2017 2017 2017
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E—+F —E-tf§ —E—tF
EEBRE EEBRE EEBRE
Vesting date HEAH 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—E-N\%F —E-NEF S
MA—H mA—A MA—H
Maturity date Epil= 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—E-N\%F —E-NEF ZETH
tZA=t—-B +ZA=t—-A +ZA=t+-A
Fair value at Wi 2B Hm HKDOQ.58 HKDO0.47 HKDO.36
measurement date NFE 0.588 7T 0.477%7T 0.3678 7T
Share price B HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T
Exercise price (note(b)(ii) TEE (Hat o)) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T
Expected volatility TR IR 37.86% 40.07% 39.51%
Risk-free interest 2 [ B F 0.57% 0.71% 0.80%
Expected dividends BHIR S 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
Forfeiture rate FNLES 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%
Suboptimal early exercise RERBEIFRE 1.85 1.85 1.85
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31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEEIN UAREBIIR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UREREENRORS
(continued) (&)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENLAFEERRBR (&)

(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il: (i) —FE—tFBEREAE :

2017 2017 2017

Employee Employee Employee

Share Share Share

Options Options Options

—E—tF —E-t& —E—tF

EEREKRE EEERE EERKRE

Vesting date HEAH 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2021
ZE-NE 3 T %

MA—H MA—H MA—H

Maturity date 38R 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021
ZE-NE a3 T %

+ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—H +ZA=+-—H

Fair value at RETEHH#m HKDO.47 HKD0.36 HKDO.21
measurement date NTEE 04738 T 0.367 7T 02187t
Share price B HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T 6.22/5 7T

Exercise Price (note(b)(ii) TE1E (Wt et w)in)) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
8.2278 7T 6.2278 7T 6.22/8 7T

Expected volatility TR 18 40.07% 39.51% 40.39%
Risk-free interest rate £ [E I A = 0.71% 0.80% 0.90%
Expected dividends TEHR S 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
Forfeiture rate & 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%
Suboptimal early exercise RERBEAFRE 1.85 1.85 1.85

factor
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

27 S EENRORS
(&

/IR

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme: (iv) —E—/\FHERETE:

2018 2018 2018

Employee Employee Employee

Share Share Share

Options Options Options

—E-N\E —E-N\E —E-N\E

EEBRE EEBRE EEREKRE

Veesting date B A 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 01/04/2022
—E-EF —E-—F —E-CF

mA—H mA—H mA—H

Maturity date pas 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022
—ZE-EEF —E-—F —E-CF

+ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H

Fair value at RitEHHH HKDO0.34 HKDO0.40 HKDO.45
measurement date NEE 0.34%8 T 0.407 7T 0.458 7T
Share price & E HKD4.42 HKD4.42 HKD4.42
44278 7T 4.42% T 4428 7C

Exercise Price (note(b)(iv)) TEE (b)) HKD4.65 HKD4.65 HKD4.65
4,658 7C 4.657%7T 46578 TT

Expected volatility TR 18 50.96% 48.60% 48.92%
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ B F 1.99% 2.02% 2.05%
Expected dividends TEHRE 1.76% 1.76% 1.76%
Forfeiture rate Kk 6.57% 6.57% 6.57%
Suboptimal early exercise REREIFRER 1.85 1.85 1.85

factor
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 UREREENRORS
(continued) (4&)

/1B

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c) BRENLAFEERRBR (&)

factor

31 0 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

(continued)

(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme: ) =E—NFBERETE:
2019 2019 2019
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
ZE-nF “E-hE ZE-hF
EEBRE EEHERE EEBRE
Vesting date %8 A 01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2023
—E-—fF —E--F —E--F
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date Ep:iy] 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023
—E-—F —E--F —E-=F
tZA=+—-B +ZA=t—-H +ZA=t+-H
Fair value at REERHMRTE HKDO0.29 HKDO0.33 HKDO0.38
measurement date 0.29% 7T 0.33%87T 0.38%8 7T
Share price B HKD4.42 HKD4.42 HKD4.42
4,428 7T 442787 4,428 7T
Exercise Price (note(b)(v)) TEE (Watb))) HKD6.02 HKD6.02 HKD6.02
6.02% 7T 6.02% T 6.02/8 7T
Expected volatility TR IR 50.96% 48.60% 48.92%
Risk-free interest rate ERRAIE 1.99% 2.02% 2.05%
Expected dividends FEER S 1.76% 1.76% 1.76%
Forfeiture rate EE 6.57% 6.57% 6.57%
Suboptimal early exercise RERBAFRE 1.85 1.85 1.85
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement 28 & tEfi&RRETHWFFEF
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (@) EHtEI MR TP AENHHIE
of financial position represents: 5
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEF T
Current tax payable B B FE 14 Bt 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EASH 49,387 1,835
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EEANEEHEEERERSE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FAREFIHBIRARERD
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEXEMIEEE kA EAEMKS
position and the movements during the year are as P REEFHMT :
follows:
Unrealised
Fair value profit arising Depreciation
change of  Undistributed ~ from intra- charge of
financial  profits of PRC Group Depreciation  right-of-use Deferred  Cumulative
instruments  subsidiaries transactions  Impairment year asset income tax losses Total
BEEALTH
SRIE TEKELAT  RBELEN EREEE
LYE%E HAIEER  AEBEA HE FENE TEXE BEMA RiBERE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARMTR ARETR  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R-E-\§-F-A 476 (4,405 2875 799 - - 2,190 - 1,935
Charged/(credited) to ke/ (rA)

consolidated income B AHNER

statement of profit or loss (Hiitoe)

(ote b)) 347 3977 [21) 1,024 - - 7,657 6,395 19,379
Charged to reserves frote § - MREGE (M:28) - - - - - - - 243 243

At 31 December 2018and 1~ R=EF—/\F

January 2019 TZA=+-BR
“I-N5-F-8 823 (428) 2,854 1,823 - - 9,847 6,638 21,957
Charged/{crecited) to HEEVAGINE -t
proft or loss frofe 45 (Bo) 504 4974 8 9,663 440 13 9,401 1130 16,430
Charged to reserves rote § - MR E&E (Hz28) - - - - - - - 106 106
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
TZA=t-8 1,327 (5,402 2,916 11,486 440 13 19,448 7874 38,102

2019%F# EsME (%E) FRAT 31
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —Z—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position:

(BRRBEERPI UAREIITR)

28 APt BIR R R P ARG

(%)

Net deferred tax assets & B B TSR 5 5% T AR A
recognised in the consolidated  EXEFIBE EFE
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities & OB TSRO R B AR Y
recognised in the consolidated  EXEFIIB A EFHE

statement of financial position

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating
to certain undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2019 since the Group controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based
on the assessment of the management, as of 31
December 2019, the undistributed profits amounted to
approximately RMB1,093,531,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB967,673,000) will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

31 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

(c) BB MRRREIR:

(d)

2019 2018
—B-nE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
43,504 21,985
(5,402) (428)
38,102 21,557
ABERELEBEAE

AEETELFPEMBRER
TE-NFTZA=T—HBH
BEAE T RS G F FTE M T
A BRI ERELEHIES
& REE R A EEIEH ZEN
BRARIMBKRBBE -RIZEEE
Bt B#E-_ZT—NLF+=A
=+t—H RXOWEEFNESENA
A K #1,093,531,0007T (=&
—N\E+_A=Z+—HB:HAR
#967,673,0007T) #5 T~ & WA AJ
B R B KRR D -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 Capital, reserves and dividends

31 December 2019 —
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (x5

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
7(?1?5 SN UARMESIR)

29 B -REERE

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EZIMEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEFBEHERSH OB FET
balances of each component of the Group’s RFEREGEIRE NS i
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated XBEY K o AN B REZSE B ZR 15
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in REFEERNEE ST
the Company’s individual components of equity between AN
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Equity
settled
share-based
Share Share Exchange Other payment accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve loss Total
IEHEEN
HRR A
B& ROEE EXRE e ERGRHEE RitHE @it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARETT ARBFT ARETT
29(d)fi) 29(dl)(i) 29(d)(v) 29(d)(v)/27
At 1 January 2018 W=Z-\$¥-F-H 8,89 1,000,011 41,285 66 7,831 (13,849) 1,044,239
Share issued under share RERRETHETREG
option schemes 290/ 127 61,384 - - (6,918) - 54,593
Equity settled share-based INEREEMNRA K
payment transactions ARAFZS 1) - - - - 4,075 - 4,075
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 64,758 64,758
Dividend approved in respect BEEEHERS
of the previous year 29b)li) - - - - - (91,622) (91,622)
Other comprehensive income Hip2ERE - - 40,916 - - - 40,916
As at 31 December 2018 RZ2-NE+ZA=1+-BR
and1 January 2019 (nofe) ZB-hE-B-B (M) 9,022 1,061,395 82,201 66 4,988 (40,713) 1,116,959
Share issued under share REBRE BIRITRG
option schemes 29(c)i) R 43,032 - - (3,340) - 39,784
Equity settled share-based EREENNRN A
payment transactions ERAZRS 4 - - - - 3,051 - 3,051
Shares issued for the Placement R —REEREER TR
under general mandate 29(c)fii) 134 182,021 - - - - 182,155
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 41,800 41,800
Other comprehensive income Eig2ElE - - 17,270 - - - 17,270
As at 31 December 2019 “Z-AE+ZAZ1-8 9,048 1,286,448 99,471 66 4,699 1,087 1,401,019
Note: The Group, including the company, has initially MysE - RNER (BFEANAT)ER

applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified

retrospective approach. Under this approach,

comparative information is not restated and there is no

net effect on the opening balance of the Company’s

equity as at 1 January 2019. See notes 1(c) and 33.

—T-hhF—-—A—HEA
KASETIB B AV e A
PR B 75 2R 5 2 R 51655 o
BEZ % ERERL
,\\E’;‘\J MR RN B

—E-hF—H—H
Zi%ﬂ,\uﬁ%ﬁi/ﬁ;;
R FE1(c) 33 »

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 313
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 29 ¥& - -H#ERRKRE (&)

715=

(b) Dividends (b) BRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FAEMNELGREZFEAR
Company attributable to the year )|

2019 2018
—2-NF —T-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®TT

Final dividend proposed after 7 ¥k B4t R 1% 12 &%

the end of the reporting NEAR BRI ARE9.09

period of approximately (ZZE—NF: &)

RMB9.0 cents (2018: Nil) (HBZr10.07 10

(equivalent to HKD10.0 ZE-NFE))

cents (2018: Nil) 104,173 -
The final dividend proposed after the end of the year NI EEAR  NAFE &
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end BEZENREARE HKRIER
of the reporting period. REME-

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRAEMERZ(MZ L

Company attributable to the previous financial BEEENKLGRESFEA
year, approved and paid during the year RE

2019 2018

o —E-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETFT

Final dividend in respect BHREFABHERI N2

of the previous financial £ — BB B E R B
year, approved and paid BREBARKES
during the year of RMB —E—)N\F:

Nil cents (2018: RMB7.8 ARB787) (BER

cents) (equivalent to HKD ~ T8l (=T — )\ 4 :

Nil cents (2018: HKD9.6 9.6 11) )

cents)) - 91,622

31 4 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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SO R R

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ B A AN LAARESR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 29 E&€ - -#ERKRE (&)

115

(c) Share capital (c) B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREBRITERE
Number of
shares Amount
&5 & B o]
000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FR%0.0178 T2
HK$0.01 each LR 50,000,000 500,000
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
gnk 4= EBRREE
Note '000 HK$'000 RMB’000
st Tk T  ARETx
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—F—H 1,115,597 11,165 8,895
Shares issued under BEBRETSIBRTRN
Share Option Scheme (i 16,125 161 127
At 31 December 2018 and RZZT-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+-8k
—Z-hFE-R-H 1,181,722 11,316 9,022
Shares issued under RIE BRI BRI D
Share Option Scheme (i) 10,754 108 92
Shares issued for the Placement 181 — #& & 5t &
under general mandate BTN (i) 15,000 150 134
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE
+-ZA=1+—H 1,157,476 11,574 9,248

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 315
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued under Share Option Scheme

During the year, options were exercised to
subscribe for 10,753,800 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of approximately
RMB39,784,000 (2018: 16,125,200 ordinary shares
in the Company at a consideration of approximately
RMB54,593,000). Approximately RMB3,340,000
was transferred from the equity settled share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account
(2018: approximately RMB6,918,000).

Shares issued for the Placement under general
mandate

On 30 December 2019, an aggregate of
15,000,000 shares were allotted and issued at
HKD13.68 per share. The net proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses, is approximately
RMB182,155,000.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

31 6 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

29 B -REERE (&)

(c) B& (&)

(i)

(iii)

REBIKE B RITIR G

FA-BREETERER
B4 AR %39,784,0007C
R KA A]10,753,8000%
TR (- N\F &R
B4 AR 54,593,000
R AN A16,125,2000%
LEIR) c B AKEZR A E A
I BEBNIREEBKLOA
R #3,340,0007T ¥ # = fi%
DHBERE(ZE—\F 4
AR #6,918,0007T) °

RE-—RREREERTRG

RZFE-—NEFE+ZA=+
B - LUEKRKM13.68
BBl B RBETAE K
15,000,000% f& 15  FT15 3K
HFRE (KNKREER:
BEXELE2HEBERE)
#“ A ANR®182,155,000
TT e

(d) BEHEERAZR

U

BG&EE

REFSEERRE (K&
7)) AR R EER L
& & A 2k T AR A K
RO-RAEEEZRER
BERAZ®ER ARAMLARE
NEREXRBGBREFTFES
HIRME -



29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 1(v).

PRC Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

29 B -REERE (&)

d) RENEERAR(E)

(i)

(iii)

EL@EE

EXFERERERBEAL
AN SE 75 0 B 75 S R P EE A
M—YISMNEZRR - HHEARE
THIR R M 521 (V) P& & 5T I
RERIE

o B E 1

P BERERRTE AR A
1A R B A 3 P S e A i B
BRRAKERPEER
MAI KA ETE R BRRR
A E10% (R HEF B
BROBAOEEBHRER
EERAERHBEEMEN
HI50% &3 1E » B T & W
NS RSN PNyl S
17°

EERESAEREIER
75 °] A DA 88 R AT 18 50
MEBARIMNER  HERE
FBITRMN AR TERER
ft & AX#925%
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

—NE+-A=1+—H

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Other reserve

v)

The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 represents the difference between
(i) the carrying amount of share capital of QT
Great China; and (ii) the nominal value of the share
issued by the Company in exchange for all the
issued share capital of QT Great China under the
reorganisation of the Group completed on 26 June
2014.

Equity settled share-based payment reserve

The equity settled share based payment reserve
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

1(r)(ii).

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of reserves (including share premium and
retained profits) available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,287,535,000 (2018: approximately
RMB1,020,682,000).
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(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

29 B -REERE (&

V=3

)

d) RENEERAR (&)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Aftf#fE

REBR-_ZT—HLKR-ZT
—N\F+_A=+—HH
H b & & () QT Great
Chinaf g AR E B &
(I RRIRBEAEER
T—WNENA-tHB®
M EHRAEZIHEQT Great
ChinaZ & 2 1T AR 2N M 3%
TR cEBEEHNZE
Ko

UEZBEURGBERL
e

NS EE AN AERE
NRFEESERENWFE
() (i) BT & mE LA IR 1 A B 7l
B R B 5T R FERR
BTYAEBEEREEZR
TEERENRE AT
BB -
BB T IREED
RZE—-NF+ZA=+—
H - —Hﬁ"ﬁ%%$ A X
EEEANRE (BERKR
7% B MR B a7 ) 4858
4B N R#1,287,535,000
T(ZE—NF:HARE
1,020,682,0007T ) °
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31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
48.2% at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
approximately 56.0%).

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group recognizes right-of-use assets
and corresponding lease liabilities for several leases
previously accounted for as operating leases as from 1
January 2019. This caused no significant change in the
Group’s total debt and hence the Group’s gearing ratio.

29 B -REERE (&)

(e) EXEE

AEEEREANBERRR
REREBEFELLENES ‘%
BEERRKFEFAERTED
MAGEBKAREHE %%%
PR BR 5 R [B] 3 J 7 EL At #E 2
ENG b

AEBEEGRETHERRERH
BARERE  UHFREERKE
HERTARERNESRRE

O REEFEREERNR RO T
BEhkEZeEsEgsTE WAR
ELBIBRHE(LABERE
o

AEBE2BEGEKEBRRER
BRI - AEBEAKREE 2R
EREEHHEE T BRE
EHEEESINER KT
—NF+-_A=1+—8 K&H
MEABELELNR48.2% (=
E-NF+_A=+—8:%
56.0% ) °

%
\

\
,[Iﬂ

AEECFEREBTERENS
FEREBEBRHREERNFE16
FoBBUAE AKEE T
—NF—A—HERLAAR
ARREMECE THERRE
REEERAREEAE Y
$%lm EE&KEIEK
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2019, certain amounts
of sales were related directly to the related parties (note
32(b)).

The management considers that related parties are
under significant influence of the Group’s Controlling
Shareholder, hence no material credit risk exists on sales
to related companies.
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30 EREAREERAFE

AEERABREBBERTELRERE R
$ED FEREEER - TXHAARE
BHEZ SRR E AN EEEEZ
FRRAEANEREAREEBRRIE
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(@ EERK

EERBREXZUFRERTESR
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BEREREE HAEE QRN
HEX T MFEEXEERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €RAEAKESEL AEE
(continued) (&

/IR

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERRK (&)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of
the reporting period, approximately 37.20% (2018:
approximately 30.50%) and approximately 93.16%
(2018: approximately 79.90%) of the total trade and bills
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

ESRAMBEUNE (F)

AEEBRZEERBRNBEETER
ERPMIFERPEEMITITENEH
XOERIFETE  WEERRSE
EFEFEAAERERZEANEANER
FRBRKEE RREHAR BIE
Wk TE I JiE W AR 4R BE A9 4937.20%
(ZZE—\F :#430.50% ) k&
93.16% (= ZF — )\ : £79.90% )
DRENEAEERATL AKX
BFo

fERIE ERF AL A ESRKiEE R ([
BEFENEPIT  LEFHHY
EEBEMMENREEEL B R
NN XEBEPHEEMRE
AEFPREMBEEBERRENER -
B 5 WA A R 3 R A HIHES0
EORMEH - A M3 E A M E
BARBEREEBEE—FOIE
B ZAERAREESER - — KM
5 AKE TERAEFPKEEA R -

AEBRBEREMBAREEERE
MG (MEBEEETE) RTEH
SREFRAEREE AAKEDN

FABBEREZENERERE &
mERE ENERRELAE
AEETRFFEHRAE - FED -
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(BRRBEERPI UAREIITR)

30 *MEREERAFE
(%)

(@) FERM (&)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued) BESREMEWEE (&)
The Group derecognised bills receivable when it REBRUSEF e EE TR

transferred bank acceptance bills to suppliers through
endorsement. Bill holders in due course preserve right
of recourse against the Group in case of dishonor of
the bills. As at the year ended 31 December 2019,
the outstanding bills endorsed with recourse totaled
approximately RMB15,164,000 (2018: approximately
RMB166,409,000),
exposure to credit risk. All of these bills are due within

which represents the Group’s

one year.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills issued
by major banks or banks with qualified rating in the
PRC and thus considers that the credit risk associated
with such bank acceptance bills to be insignificant. The
Group had not suffered any losses in this respect during
the year.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

EETHERRKIBRERSE
BeomBHREEMN MREFEAR
NHEEEASENERBE-BHEZ
T-NF+ZA=+—HLFE"
MERBEEZEBROREERER
A HHEBEANR15,164,0007T (=
T —)\F: H AR %166,409,000
L) EREAEEERNERER
ZERBEHEIR—F NI

& o
ZoN

REEEEMNFEEZRITHTR
AW%ﬁ“ﬁﬂmﬁﬁ%E%ﬁv

MR AEZSRITELEEEHE
MEﬁ BWTEKFN - ANEE
I 4 R ) SRR TR Ak o

TR AKEEEEERRIKO

MERRE S BKKENTRREER
Bia

2019
—E-NF

Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE REAE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET R AR¥T R
Current (not past due) BIHR (K@ k) 0.00% 4,776,699 -
1 - 90 days past due BEI1ZE90H 0.00% 225 -
91 - 180 days past due #EI91 2= 180H 6.01% 566 (34)
181 - 365 days past due # H11812365H 23.53% 391 (92)
More than 1 year past due  #ERHRIB14E 100.00% 1,171 (1,171)
4,779,052 (1,297)
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €RAEAKESEL AEE

(continued) (#)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERRK (&)
Trade and other receivables (continued) ESREMEKGE (£)
2018
—E-N\E
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHEER EEamE BiERE
RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARETTT ARBTTT

Current (not past due) BIHA (R HR) 0.00% 2,832,085 -
1 - 90 days past due #EI1ZEQ0H 0.00% 992 -
91 - 180 days past due # #1912 180H 21.09% 128 (27)
181 - 365 days past due # #11812365H 100.00% 155 (155)
More than 1 year past due  #HAFBBE14F 100.00% 349 (349)
2,833,709 (531)
The Group keeps assessing the expected loss rates AEBREEBAFTEEESEL
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience B(EHEBABRETRZETAE)
over the past years, adjusted for factors that are specific TR EWFIAETEBFR AR ER
to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current HEMKEENERBLEB LN
and forecast general economic conditions at the end iy HTEHIBERETHET G-
of the reporting period over the expected lives of the
receivables.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented E=EERR AGEVBMRRAEKA
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the %@mﬂﬁ&ﬂ’\]ﬁﬁ@@°

consolidated statement of financial position.
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30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €REAKREEL AEE
(continued) (%)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBELRER

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the non-
interest bearing financial liabilities are with maturities
within one year or repayable on demand as at 31
December 2019.
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining scheduled
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period):

19? 7J TR ML

31 December 2019 —E—NF+_-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 7(51?5 BN AARBHIT)

30 *MEREERAFE
(%)

(b) RBESRER (&)

TRINRAKGERBREHREZAD
AURRERENSREE (B
BAKN XS (WEER) RIERRK
EHIARBITHN KA EWF M)
STHTEED MG

Total
contractual
undiscounted More than More than
cash flow/ 1 years but 2 years but
within 1 year less than less than Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
ELEN: 3]
ReRBRE/ BB-F BBME
—FERAREER BLRWE BOREE @t REE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARBFT
Bank borrowings RITEX 1,293,400 1,155 59,974 1,354,529 1,328,785
Lease Liabilties (Note) HEARE (HZ) 23,815 18,700 14,393 56,908 54,141
Trade and other payables &5 & E i 1 508 5,934,662 - - 5,934,662 5,934,662
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-hF
+ZA=+—8H 7,251,877 19,855 74,367 7,346,099 7,317,588
Bank borrowings RITEX 1,199,692 - - 1,199,692 1,178,241
Trade and other payables & 5 & E A JE 58 3,061,432 - - 3,061,432 3,061,432
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+ZA=+-H 4,261,124 - - 4,261,124 4,239,673

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Lease
liabilities include amounts recognised at the date of
transition to IFRS 16 in respect of leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17 and
amounts relating to new leases entered into during the
year. Under this approach, the comparative information
is not restated. See note 1(c).

Misk: AEBEEFEREFTBIEY]
S EFRABIR B RS &R S
1698 W —FT—hF— A
f52¢mm%¢ﬁﬂﬂu
HRELHREER S
J%wﬂ“ﬁﬁﬁéﬂgz
ﬁﬁﬁ%2ﬁ5ﬁ1oﬁg
BERERBESR l%%ﬁ
WMEEDF165EE A Jhit
w@ﬁl\aﬁﬁﬂ”wﬁ
PHEAKEHEZHERR
ZEeRBAREE RN ZH
HEBEZzZEB-BREZA
B HBRAR W EEG o B
T1(c) °
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

Interest rate risk

(c)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

30 EREAREERAFE

(&)

(c)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future

cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest

rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, the Group does not obtain any bank borrowings

at variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Details of the interest rates and terms of short-term and

long-term bank borrowings are disclosed separately in

note 20 and 23, respectively.

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the

opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise

lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously

classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under this

approach, the comparative information is not restated.

See note 1(c).

(d)

Currency risk

(d)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through

bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give

rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables, and

payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,

i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of

the operations to which the transactions relate. The

currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and

RMB.
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €RIEMREE N A FE

(continued) (A&
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () BH¥EpEE
The following table details the Group’s major TRIFAVWAEBNZSHEEHK
exposure at the end of each reporting period to FIASHEITEEERR %%
currency risk arising from recognised assets and EEREEITROEREENLE
liabilities denominated in a currency other than EAHEE BB AEBRNI L
the functional currency of the Group to which they BRI INE A EMmMEL -
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of MERFLEOmMS  EEREIUA
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated BT R I A S S B KA
using the spot rate at the end of each reporting ENHAfE R E o
period.
usD RMB
Ey ARY
2019 2019
—B-NF % —B-1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTR
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEY 91,931 644 1,073 11,178
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & H it fE U 2078 170,766 149,233 22,746 -
Trade and other payables & 5 & Bt e[ 5118 (1,596,754) (561,118) (52,367) (44,303)
Bank loans and borrowings k47 & % R (425,548) (446,108) - -
Gross exposure to EMERAEBS
currency risk (1,759,605) (857,349) (28,548) (33,125)
Notional amounts of P 07 4 B
exchange rate derivatives &#&ESH 1,700,100 1,605,406 - -
- Forward contracts —EHEH 1,112,704 452,045 - -
- Option contracts —-HEAY 587,396 1,153,361 - -
Net exposure to ERERAEFE
currency risk (59,505) 748,057 (28,548) (33,125)
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

(BRRBEERPI UAREIITR)

30 *MEREERAFE
(%)

(d) E¥mE (£)

(i) SBEETH

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained

profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end

of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign
exchange

rates
HMEE =
R/
(TR)
%

usb

RMB

2019

ZB-NF
Effect
Effect on on other
profit component
after tax  of equity
HER
UGk HuBown
BHEE -2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARBTR
(2,261) -
2,261 -
(1,191) -
1,191 -

Results of the analysis above represent an

aggregation of the instantaneous effects on

the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits

measured in the respective functional currencies,

translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling

as at the end of the respective reporting periods for

presentation purposes.
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BEHEMEREZEERFTE)D
BB
2018
-NE
Increase/

(decrease) Effect
in foreign Effect on on other
exchange profit  component

rates after tax of equity

N B & HiER
R/ HEBE HeHon
(TR) BHNPE vE
%  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFRT

5 31,792 -
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5 (1,383) -

(5) 1,383 -
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

30 $RMEAREERATE
(&

/IR

30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

d) EWER (&)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) HBEDH (&)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency at the end of the respective reporting
periods, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis
for 2018.

(e) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

(e)

)

SRR ST RERSNE
FNEHEANENFTELR
BB HRERRAELARE
HENNERBRNERTA &
EAREE AR E)E R RIE R
FEW IR BRARAENERA
HERANREE B AN E B
SME - DXL BEREINE
BUBEBRRALBAEE LT
EREENER - DML
—E -\ FHRFAEEETT

AV

BRFEIEYEZHTA

FRENAEMEBTANA
FE RELBTARESH
REEHIEZRHE DHHA
BERE RS EAEIHA
FEHERATN=RATE
R DT EAE SRS
BIESE W T B R
BAMBHATRRIERES Y
s

o EAIEE:EEHER
AR (DR & A 4
R&ES 8 ERNERTS
SEE LS EET
AFE

ey
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €RIEMREE N A FE

(continued) (&
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) DFE(£Z)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIENELHTA
(continued) (4&)
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o EBH2LME: P EEH2H
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which AEUE (Bl REEED B R
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant 1y R ER R A S ) B
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are REFHE AT EREG A
inputs for which market data are not available HIEAEN A FEETA
BB ABRBREMISH
ER AR
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o  [EMIHME:FEREATA
significant unobservable inputs R ABBTENAF
(=]
The Group has a team headed by the chief financial NEBE B AR GEeEsrsE
officer performing valuations for the financial NExEH R TAE (B8EDE
instruments, including foreign currency option ERNFEZEF B H2HIINE HY
contracts and foreign currency forward contracts BAEANRINERIE L) ETT
which are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value EE ZESEERTRER
hierarchy. The team reports directly to the chief WME - REMEMRERNE
executive officer. A valuation report with analysis of NEEAZEEESH DT HELR
changes in fair value measurement is prepared at & WA= Mg -

the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer.

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

RZB-NE+-A=+-BNATEFELEA

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-hE 8 41 & &2 B&3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Assets: 5E:
Derivative financial assets TEeBEE
~ Foreign currency option —SNEHEAR L
contracts 26,472 - 26,472 -
Liabilities: 8f&:
Derivative financial liabilites ~ $T4£ £ B &
~ Foreign currency forward ~ —SNERE A4
contracts (9,142 - (9,142) -
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ B A AN LAARESR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 €RIEMREE N A FE

(continued) (#&
(e) Fair value (continued) () AF¥E(E)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIEYELHTA
(continued) (%)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 categorised into
RZE-NFT+ZA=+T—BNATEHENER

2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZE-N\F E R B2 B3
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETR

Assets: BE:
Derivative financial assets T4 & BB E
- Foreign currency —SMEHRIES 4
option contracts 105,251 - 105,251 -
Liabilities: RBf:
Derivative financial liabilities 74 % B & &
- Foreign currency —NEERBIAH
forward contracts (201) - (201) -
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts 2 FRoHNER G AR A BTy
in Level 2 is determined by using the forward BAFARERAREERE
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period 7 WA 490E KA - B ATS
and comparing to the contractual rates, with the BEEMBEEZEREE:.
resulting value discounted back to the present
value.
The fair value of foreign exchange option contracts [ R 25MNE HAfE S LB A FEER
in Level 2 is determined by using the Black- AN —FRiT—2ERKER
Scholes-Merton model. The observable inputs for EE o E R A B A SR
valuation were described in note 17. BAKIFET -
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN UAREHIR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

31 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2019 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

30 EREAREERAFE

(%)

(e) DFE(£Z)

(i) IEH LR FESRR E BEE

REEBHAFE

7R 5% (B 2 A 7 B B SH K AN A BR
MEmTANREERZELR —
E-NAFt-_A=+—HAkZ
Z-N\F+-A=+—HHAR
FETEEANE-

31 &iE

@ R=B—AE+=A=+—8M
AMEBERMBHRR LB R
BHEREENT

2019
ZEB-hF

RMB’000
ARBT T

Contracted for 54
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BAEIERAIN AAREFIR)

31 RIE (&

31 Commitments (continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2018, the total future b) R=ZEBE—-NE+=ZB=+—8H"

minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases were payable as
follows:

BESTHEKSLENELFHR
REEBEENRAENT

RMB’000

AREFIT

Within 1 year 1F A 5,117
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B EREER 3,389
8,506

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. The
Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases (see
note 1(c)). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease
payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(j), and the details regarding the
Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in note 24.

AEESRZECAREBER S
AT EARKEHECHER
TETHWEZABA-AEEDE
FRHERT B HA ) 2 e A BIFR B 75 e
FERNE165 - RIEZ T E AR E
B —_FT-NEF-A-—BZFE
BIFHHAENEREZEHERH
ZHERB(RMEI() BZF
—NEFE—A—H RREEMZK
AR IR B T 1 ()P B R R X B AR
FEARMERE BREAKER
KEENKZFHITRBERHIE24
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

32 Material related party transactions 32 EREEBARXS
In addition to the related party information disclosed MR % Z B 5 TR R H b 28 BT 4 52 /Y 8 B
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered FHERIN  NEBET LA TEXBE A
into the following significant related party transactions: 5
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
BEE A8 B E B R
— CK Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK”")* Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(AR BERMRE CR) ARAAF])
—FEABERMERE ODR) BR AR (DADREA ) Fh 0] 8 28 S AR 4R
— Guangzhou CK Telecom Limited (“Guangzhou CK”) Controlled by key management of the Group
(BINTERIBEERMRERRAR)
—BMNARERMREERAR ([EMEAT]) BAEEFZERASEH
— Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(EZRERBERAT)
—ELRRERDA ([ELRERE]) Fh 0] 8 28 5t AR 4R
— C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd.* (“C-Flex Electronic”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(AEETF CR)ARRQF)
EETFOTR)ERAR ([AEEF]) P fA] 28 22 S A
— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd. Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd. FA {n] %8 5 S 4
— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(REFERIRI B R A F])
—BE TR RHE AR A A ([ETEA]) Fh {A] 8 8 S AR 4R
— C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd.(“Huangshi C-Flex) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(BEOBEEEFRRBERAA)
-~ EARETEFRRARAR(IEAAE]) FR {n] 5 35 S 4
— Kunshan KEIRAKU Precision Industrial Company Limited* Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(“Kunshan KEIRAKU") (R ILB S EZ TEBR A )
—BIIEEBETIXERAR (TRILEL]) P fA] 28 28 S A
— Heyuan Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
Limited (Former name “Huizhou Youhua Micro Electronic
Technology Company Limited”) * (“Heyuan Youhua”)
(RREMMEREBRAR")
—FARREMEERRAR AR (AT [EMNKEREFR Fh 0] 8 25 S AR 42
BREBERARL) (DRRE])
— Dongguan Xinxu Optical Limited (“Dongguan Xinxu”)* The subsidiary of associate of the Group
(REFEAXBERRDAF])
—REHBABERAR ([REHE]) REEBERTHNERF]
* The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference * ZENREBzEYHEEH2E %
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. EZNFINIERNEZB AR -
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

32 Material related party transactions N2 ERBHRARS (7)

(continued)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@ TEEBAEHMH
Key management personnel are those persons holding TEERABRETER EEE
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, EHRE EEREHASEEESD
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, BRANEEEZBRBOAL BER
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors. NAE=SE-
Remuneration for key management personnel of the TAEEFTEERASFINREDH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s RARIES (WK sF6misE) ka
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the T ES (WK Z7#E)
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as BREMAT:
follows:

2019 2018
—z-ne LT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T
Short-term employee benefits SHIEBEF 10,709 7,205
Post-employment benefits BER 2T 145 109
Equity compensation benefits & HE 7H B 48 A 402 1,052
11,256 8,366

The above remuneration to key management personnel TR ETEEBABTFMNHERIET

is included in “staff costs” (note 4(b)). A (HIsE4b)) °

2019 F3% E#RE (£8) ARAT 335



336

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2019 —E— N F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(BRRBEERPI UAREIITR)

N2 EXEBAIRS (&

(b) HEBLINXS

2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETTT
Sales of products to EmET
— Heyuan CK — AR 12,117 25,939
Purchases of products from EmER
— Huangshi C-Flex —EAME 101,962 24,749
- Van Telecom PRC — MR - 85
- Kunshan KEIRAKU —BRIlEg 82 -
— Heyuan Youhua — AR R 110,749 76,126
- Dongguan Xinxu —REHNE 39,877 84,824
252,670 185,784
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Rental expenses to TAHMHERY T
- Chengdu CK — B &R P Al 55 90
- Van Telecom PRC — MR - 2,847
55 2,937

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2019 —E— W F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSH1EHIN LAARBHIR)

32 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

At 31 December 2019, the Group had the following

balances with related parties.

(i) Due from related parties

N2 EXEBAIRG (&

(c) ERRAEETS &8k

RZZB-NAF+ZA=+—H &
BB T B A TSR

() FEREHES

2019 2018

o —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TF T ARMT T

Trade-related g 5
Trade receivables 2 5 rEWRIA
— Heyuan CK — AR A 7,479 4,242
(i) Due to related parties (i) ETEHT
2019 2018
o —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR AREFIT
Trade-related B 5 HE
Trade and bills payable B RNRBERENZE
- Van Telecom PRC — ML BHE - 26
- Huangshi C-Flex — =AY 3,794 20,853
— Heyuan Youhua — R R 12,567 63,609
- Dongguan Xinxu —HEHE 8,006 18,463
24,367 102,951
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31 December 2019 —E—NEF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB LAAREHIR)

32 Material related party transactions N ERBEAIRS (&
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) BB &R (Z)
(i) Due to related parties (continued) (i) FEREBES (&)
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 N-_E—-hLhE+-_A=+—H
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were rE—E—NF+_A=+—
expected to be recovered/repaid within one year. B FER R B TE

HR —FAlm EE -

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT

Lease liabilities (Note) HESE (W)

- Van Telecom PRC — ML BHE R E 3,104 -

3,104 -
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31 December 2019 —T—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kxR A AN LAARESR)

32 Material related party transactions N EABEBRAIRS (&
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continueqd)

(c) ERRAME S 458k (42)

(i) Due to related parties (continued)

Notes: In January 2019, the Group entered into a
two-year lease in respect of certain leasehold
properties from a fellow subsidiary of the
Group for produce and storage of inventories
and staff accommodation; the Group also
entered into a one year lease in respect of
certain leasehold properties from a fellow
subsidiary of the group for office matters. The
amount of rent payable by the Group under the
lease is RMB279,000 per month, which was
determined with reference to amounts charged
by the fellow subsidiary to third parties. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability of RMB6,064,000.

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Van Telecom
PRC, Kunshan KEIRAKU, Heyuan Youhua and Huangshi
C-Flex as disclosed above constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
provided in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Directors Report.

(i) FEREHEL (F)

MiE: RZE—AF—A &
EERASEE-—HRZR
MEARKNETHEY
¥ ABRER
B ANEERTFRERT
ERBAEEIERE AR
EENGAEE R
ANBRARMETHE
M — D AB—F
ML UHRAET
ZHA-AEBERELHE
TEMNNESSEAST
A AR¥279,0007t * &
E2EZRZWE R
RIAE = WEHEE
MET -REERKA
H-AEBEERERE
BERHEBBARYE
6,064,0007T °

(d) BFHFEBEXZHEN TR
HE A

EXCET R 2 B R AR R 7 Al
HEEM MELRIFPE- B
IWEZ TR EREARE
BEEGNXIBXEEHRE
RGFMEBERRAAESH EmREA
(TEWABR) F14AZEFTE &
WES SR ERESS -
MRANE4AZFTR T Z B ESH
RESFSSRE (HEBER S
_/E*’ﬁo
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=xiid ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

33 Company level statement of financial 33 ARIEBEMBEARRE
position
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARE T AREF T
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HEM B A A 127,545 22,744
Investments in associate =N /N 275,236 229,407
Amount due from a subsidiary &4 — & Hf B A 75k IE 558,123 549,082
960,904 801,233
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary & U — & B B A 7] 7B 603,524 361,216
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBESEFEYD 2,075 1,662
605,599 362,878
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H M ER IR 8,185 2
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1~ — eI B B A B FR A 157,299 47,150
165,484 47,152
Net current assets REBEEEE 440,115 315,726
Total assets less current HEERABER
liabilities 1,401,019 1,116,959
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EEXR#EE
Share capital f& 7 29(c) 9,248 9,022
Reserves B 29(a) 1,391,771 1,107,937
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,401,019 1,116,959
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EFeRN _E-_TETF=AF LB &
on 9 March 2020. JE I A] B o
He Ningnin =
) g' 9 Directors fr] 5 2 =
Wang Jiangiang FiEea
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company level statement of financial
position (continued)

Note: The Company has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. See note
1(c).

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these

financial statements.
(a) Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
keeps assessing the expected credit loss of trade
receivables during their expected lives.

31 December 2019 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

33

34

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
SEEFIN LARBIIR)

REEEMBARREK (&)

st AARBKR-T—AF—A— AR
ETIE A Y 5 IR BB R 3R
RSB 169 « IR AT - LB S
E51]0 A1) ©

EREFHEE R A E

Rt kAN ERREMEAER (B
AEERBELIRSBHAREMFNAE
B REERENG -

ERSBRNERE PEZFTBRER
M H R E T ABREERARA2HE
,% HHEHERBRREDNHREYR/EN

EMBHRRHMEENEE - TR G5
Eﬁz REDINEE - AEEMRE U TE
BB S R ERMF I REPAE
AW RQSEZHH B R -

() EZERUWFIENEREER

AEBZEBHEAREEBEM
EORBRENERBRE EFE
ERMat A -BHEEERT
BREAEENEEEERELR
RARBEBANARELZHEBR
RIS HRE E A R FEREEE
RS H B B 15 o e 5 S 4T
MEGTHAEZER BHERSTE
B RWFRMREE Bt B
et MR EREEE LIRS

AEESHERPHRATEFGEE
ZENFIBNRBEEEE-
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

34 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

(c)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
preferences and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.
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34 ERGETTRHE (2)

(b) FENTEHEFE

(c)

FENAERFEDRBEEELB
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EEERSREMREFNIEZS
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i 15 LB R B B A BR T B A BE DK
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AU O 5 RS A FER R A
EREEMETFNREE - EEERE
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Comparative figures

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 1(c).

Subsequent Event

The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 has brought
additional uncertainties in the macroeconomic situation. As
of the date of the 2019 annual results announcement of the
Company, the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’
s operation in 2020 was insignificant. However, the epidemic
has spread rapidly in the United States, Europe, India and
other countries and regions in recent times. The Group’s
manufacturing base in India has suspended production
and operation as required by the Indian government. As
the production capacity of the manufacturing base in India
accounts for less than one-tenth of the total production
capacity of the Group, the impact of the suspension of
production and operation of the manufacturing base in India
on the Group'’s capability of delivery is insignificant. Combined
with the development of the epidemic in Mainland China, the
management of the Group also expects that the suspension
of production and operation of the manufacturing base in India
will not be long-lasting. The management of the Group is in the
process of making continuing assessment of the impact of the
outbreak of the COVID-19.

31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

34

35

36

19? 7J TR ML

—hE+-A=t+—H
(BRAEEPIN UARBIIR)

ERGFHEFTRAE (&)

(d) EKR#E

WE - BERREE RETRE
BIAB AR AR 2 /8 4 Ja
E-BEYEENEREAREMGAIE
REREH AEETHEHNEEDN
ET A A - A E R RE
IR TE NS R 2R -1
ERFRAIREAEESEUEE
MB LR YAt RIRRH ORI &L
BISH - WBEMAHREREH
AREHBEOFTERBHEFAZAEE
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EEBmE T
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31 December 2019 =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

37

38

B0 iﬁiﬁ%[‘ﬁ?

—hE+-A=+—H

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2019, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Group to be QT Investment,
which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Group to be Mr. He Ningning.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

37

38

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

BEERRRERT
R=B-NFT=A=+—R EFBAH

AEENEEZERT AN EBRELES
AEMAIZE KR E - AN B R &R
B R EELL-

=

B=z-_ZZ-"LFt+t=A
:‘l'—EIJJ:fiErE',ﬁEﬁF’l’EI"J
REMEMER] - FET R K

BRI E
HENSMBREATE S ABashe

AR SEC B ZIRER R —AHMEE
AR S HmEENFEITRRRA L
ERBE_Z-NAF+-_A=+—H81
FE R AR AR BRI F B % R I R BR
Ao % EFERBEAT AL EAEE AR
o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT3 BHRNZEBEBEN
SMBEXN

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a business
BRI B S R E3S (BEIAR) EHHER
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of material
R ERE 1R RER g ERE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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